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Meeting of the Governing Body 
 

To be held on Tuesday 25 May 2021, 1.45pm to 3.30pm. 
 

THIS MEETING WILL BE HELD VIRTUALLY DUE TO THE  
CURRENT HEALTH SITUATION 

 
AGENDA 

 
1. Welcome and Introduction   

I Pattison, chair 
  

    
2. Apologies for Absence   
    
3. Declarations of Interest   
    
4. Minutes of the previous meeting held on 23 March 

2021 
 Enclosure 

    
4.1 
 

Matters arising from the minutes   Enclosure 
 

5. Notification of Items of Any other business   
    
6. 
 
6.1 
 
 
6.2 
 
 
7 
 
7.1 
 
 
8. 
 
 8.1 
 
 
 
8.2 
 
 
9. 
 
9.1 

Covid update 
 
Covid Recovery and Vaccination Programme 
F Khalil 
 
Phase Three Assurance and Recovery Report 
S Watson 
 
Items for approval 
 
Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Strategy 
D Cornell 
 
Items of Quality and Safety 
 
Minutes of the Quality and Safety Committee 
meeting held on 9 February 2021 
P Harle 
 
Quality and Safeguarding report 
P Harle 
 
Items of Governance and Assurance 
 
Performance Report 

  
 
Presentation 
 
 
Enclosure 
 
 
 
 
Enclosure 
 
 
 
 
Enclosure 
 
 
 
Enclosure 
 
 
 
 
Enclosure 
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9.2 
 
 
9.3 
 
 
9.4 
 
 
9.5 
 
 
9.6 
 
 
 
9.7 
 
 
9.8 
 
 
 
9.9 
 
 
9.10 
 
 
9.11 
 
 
10. 
 
10.1 
 
 
10.2 
 
 
10.3 
 
 
10.4 
 
 

S Watson  
 
Financial Report – year ending 
D Chandler 
 
Budget Setting report 
D Chandler 
 
Annual Accounts 2020/21 
D Chandler 
 
Sub-committee end of year reviews 
D Cornell 
 
CCG Annual Report 2020/21 including Annual 
Governance Statement 
N O'Brien 
 
Management Letter of representation 
N O'Brien 
 
Internal Audit Annual Report and Head of Internal 
Audit Opinion 
G Robson 
 
Audit Completion Report 
C Waddell 
 
Approval of annual accounts and annual report 
I Pattison 
 
Governing Body Assurance Framework 2021/22 
D Cornell 
 
Items for sub-committee assurance 
 
Minutes of the Executive Committee meeting held 
on 2 March 2021 
 
Minute of the Executive Committee meeting held 
on 6 April 2021 
 
Minutes of the Patient and Public Involvement 
Committee meeting held on 9 March 2021 
 
Minutes of the Primary Care Commissioning 
Committee meeting held on 25 February 2021 
 

 
 
Enclosure 
 
 
Enclosure 
 
 
Enclosure 
 
 
Enclosure 
 
 
Enclosure 
 
 
 
Enclosure 
 
 
Enclosure 
 
 
 
Enclosure 
 
 
Verbal 
 
 
Enclosure 
 
 
 
 
Enclosure 
 
 
Enclosure 
 
 
Enclosure 
 
 
Enclosure 
 
 

11. Items for Information Only 
 

 
 

 

11.1 
 
 
11.2 

Accountable Officer’s Report 
N O’Brien 
 
Minute of the Northern CCG Joint Committee 
meeting held on 11 March 2021 

 
 

Enclosure 
 
 
Enclosure 
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12. Any other business   
    
13. Date of next meeting   
 Tuesday 27 July 2021, Via MS Teams..   
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Did  

 

 

GOVERNING BODY 

Minutes of the meeting held on Tuesday 23 March 2021, by Virtual Video 
Conferencing 

Minutes 

Present:  Dr Ian Pattison, Clinical Chair 

  Dr Raj Bethapudi, Elected GP Member 

                        Mrs Debbie Burnicle, Lay Member, PPI 

  Mr David Chandler, Chief Officer /Chief Finance Officer  

  Dr Derek Cruickshank, Secondary Care Clinician 

                       Mrs Ann Fox, Director of Nursing, Quality and Safety 

  Mrs Pat Harle, Lay Member PCCC 

                        Dr Karthik Gellia, Elected GP Member 

  Dr Fadi Khalil, Elected GP Member 

  Dr Tracy Lucas, Elected GP Member 

                         Mr Chris Macklin, Lay Member Audit 

             Dr Saira Malik, Elected GP Member 

             Dr Neil O’Brien, Accountable Officer 
In Attendance:  

  Ms Deborah Cornell, Head of Corporate Affairs 

              Mrs Clare Nesbit, Director of Primary Care and People  

  Mrs Gerry Taylor, Executive Director Public Health and 
Integrated Commissioning, Sunderland County CouncilL 

              Mr Scott Watson, Director of Contracting and Informatics 

  Mrs Jan Thwaites, minutes 

2021/20 Welcome and Introductions 

 The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting and informed those 
present that the meeting would be recorded. This was to support 
administrative accuracy and for robust governance. There were no 
objections to the use of the recording device and the meeting was 
also to be live streamed. 

  

2021/21 Apologies for Absence 
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 Apologies for absence were received from, Mrs Fiona Brown, 
Executive Director of Neighbourhoods, Sunderland City Council, Mr 
Eric Harrison, Lead Practice Manager and Dr Claire Bradford, Medical 
Director. 

 The Chair confirmed that the meeting was quorate. 

 

2021/22 Declaration of Interest 

  
 Ms Cornell declared that she was Head of Corporate Affairs across 
both South Tyneside and Sunderland CCGs.  

 
 Dr O’Brien declared that he was Accountable Officer across Durham, 
South Tyneside and Sunderland CCGs. 

 
Mrs Harle declared that she holds a post as a lay member at South 
Tyneside CCG. The Chair accepted the declaration and noted this 
should be a standard item on the agenda  

Mrs Harle also declared an interest in relation to Item 8.2 the 
proposed joint quality and safety committee terms of reference 
between South Tyneside and Sunderland CCGs.   

The Chair asked the Governing Body as a mark of respect to note the 
sad passing of Councillor Geoff Walker at the end of January. 
Councillor Walker was  the Chair of the Health and Wellbeing Board 
and worked very closely with the CCG. Thoughts at this time were 
with his friends and family, he was a  loyal servant and advocate to 
the Sunderland residents. 

As a mark of respect  a minutes silence was requested for the one 
year anniversary of the national Covid lockdown. On behalf of the 
Governing Body the sacrifices that people had made were 
acknowledged not only personal sacrifices to how they live and work 
but the biggest sacrifice of all to those who had sadly lost their lives 
over the past year.   

2021/23 Minutes of the meeting held on 26 January 2021 

Subject to a minor amendment the minutes of the meeting held on 26 
January were APPROVED as an accurate record.  

2021/24 Matters arising from the minutes  

There were no matters arising from the minutes. 

2021/25 Notifications of items of any other business 

 There were no items of other business. 
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2021/26 Covid recovery and vaccination programme 
 
 Dr Khalil gave a presentation on the Covid recovery and vaccination 

programme. 
 
 Thanks was given to the Sunderland residents for the take-up of the 

offer of the vaccine. 
 
 There was a 95% uptake  in cohorts 1-5 of the over 65 year olds and 

shielded patients which was a monumental figure which showed the 
confidence and trust that the Sunderland population have in the NHS. 

 
 Further detail of the various cohorts across the Primary Care 

Networks (PCNs)were given, the update was stable across the 65-69 
year olds. The focus was now on cohorts 7-9 

  
 Following a request from NHS England it was confirmed that all 

Sunderland practices had renewed their commitment to vaccinate the 
full population for cohorts 10-12. The focus would be on cohorts 6-9 – 
patients at risk and over the age of 50. 

 
 Approximately 120,000 first doses and 13,000 second doses had 

been given. All care home residents had been completed and the 
housebound population second doses would commence this week. 

  
 Work was being undertaken with Public Health and the local authority 

leads to vaccinate BAME, hard to reach groups and asylum seekers. 
Teams were going out to the Bangladeshi Centre and Mosques. 

 
 A message would be relayed this week that anyone over 50 who has 

not been vaccinated and wishes to take up the offer can contact their 
own GP practice. 

 
 There were four key messages to update: 
 

▪ Thank you, and well done for the uptake across the first 6 
cohorts 

▪ Residents need to have both doses, one dose would not provide 
effective coverage 

▪ Cohorts 6-9 have been invited to attend PCN sites, or contact 
their practices to update their contact details and book an 
appointment directly 

▪ The vaccine is safe and effective, national and international 
evidence shows this is very effective and would promote the 
road to recovery. 

 
 The Chair reiterated the need to get a 2nd vaccination and thanked the 

Sunderland residents for taking up the offer of the vaccine. 
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 Over 50s should have been contacted for their first dose but if not 
they could contact their own GP practice as appointments were 
available. 

 
 Thanks were given for the continued efforts of all involved especially 

Dr Khalil's leadership on the vaccination programme on behalf of the 
Governing Body and it was good to see PCNs continue to vaccinate 
the city's population. 

 
 It was noted that Healthwatch were undertaking a short survey from 

members of the public when receiving their vaccination. 
 
 The presentation was RECEIVED. 
 
2021/27 Phase Three Assurance and Recovery Report 

 The purpose of the report was to provide high level assurance on 
delivery of the national requirements for the phase three response to 
the coronavirus pandemic. 

 An update around the 8 changes to the blue, red, amber, green 
(BRAG) ratings was highlighted noting all the changes were positive 
from  amber to green or green to blue – blue meaning that it was 
business as usual and complete. 

 In regard to the shared care record was believed that Sunderland 
were the  1st area in the North East to have Acute Trust, Primary Care 
Trusts and the Local Authority all drawing from and contributing to the 
Great North Care Record. This was due to significant system 
collaboration and working across the city. 

   

In regard to the out of hours programme 4 amber rating, a question 
was raised as to what was expected from this. In response it was 
noted that this model had been a success in Sunderland, further detail 
would be shared outside the meeting. It was noted that discharge to 
assess had national funding made available for the first and second 6 
months of the year. 

 The Governing Body NOTED the assurance provided by the report 
and NOTED the full review of the national requirements included in 
the report. 

 

2021/28 Involvement Strategy 

 The purpose of the report was to provide an updated Involvement 
Strategy to enable the CCG to meeting their legal duties to involve 
patients and the public. 
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 The strategy looked at best practice to ensure all the requirements 
were met including the 5 involvement principles. The strategy had 
been considered and approved by the Patient and Public Involvement 
Committee (PPI) for submission to the Governing Body. 

 The Chair of the PPI committee noted she was pleased to see the 
approach to listening to stakeholders, asking different questions of the 
public and took on board. For assurance the concluded principles 
accord well with national principles. 

There was a link in the document that linked to the detailed reports 
that sat behind all of the work that had been carried out. 

 It was noted that in supporting capacity to the voluntary sector in 
terms of  sustainability to continue going forward and developing 
strategies assurance was requested  that this is always in the 
forefront going forward. 

 In response it was explained that work was ongoing with the Local 
Authority to develop a voluntary sector alliance, this  was important in 
regard to the Covid impact on this sector and their ability to fundraise.  

 The Governing Body AGREED the Involvement Strategy and its 
associated strategic actions for implementation. 

 Mrs Taylor left the meeting at this point 14.27pm. 

2021/29 Minutes of the Quality and Safety Committee meeting held on 8 
December 2020 

 
 Attention was drawn to the effective scrutiny and challenge of the data 

received at this committee. Thanks was given to the team for all of the 
preparation that went into the preparation of the reports to the 
committee. 

. 
 A briefing had been given to the committee at its December meeting 

on the Learning and Disability (LD) Mortality Review LeDer 
programme. The report relayed the learning from deaths of LD 
patients from Covid 19, this had stemmed from 12 November 2020 
University national report into the 206 deaths that had occurred. The 
report highlighted some good practice and learning that needed to be 
taken on board. The briefing provided assurance on what was 
happening locally. 

 
 In regard to the care home quality report, the focus had been on 

infection, prevention and control (IPC) and the associated risks. 
 Key themes identified adherence to social distancing, PPE and 

cleaning procedures. There had been significant demands on the IPC 
resources, improvements had been identified within the report. 

  
 The minutes of the Quality and Safety Committee were RECEIVED. 
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2021/30 Joint Quality and Safety terms of reference 
 
 The report provided the terms of reference for the proposed joint 

Quality and Safety Committee with South Tyneside CCG. 
 
 Sunderland and South Tyneside CCG Quality and Safety committee 's 

had recommend that a joint committee would be beneficial. The 
Terms of Reference had been drafted and approved by both Q&S 
committees. The Governing Body is  asked to formally approve the 
establishment of the joint committee from 1 April 2021. 

 
 Mrs Harle gave her thanks to Ms Cornell for all her excellent work in 

supporting and preparing the terms of reference. 
 
 The Governing Body APPROVED the terms of reference; 

APPROVED the establishment of the joint committee with effect from 
1 April 2021; NOTED that the terms of reference would be considered 
for approval by the Governing Body of South Tyneside CCG on 26 
March 2021. Subject to the above approval the first meeting would 
take place on 13 April 2021. 

  
2021/31 Performance Report 
  
 The report provided an exception report in relation to the current 

position for the CCG against the NHS Single Oversight Framework 
requirements. 

 
 Key points from the report were brought to the Governing Body's 

attention, these included the following: 
 

• An A&E performance upturn of 93.4%  against the 94% 
standard. Nationally  new standards were being looked at via 
the Emergency Care Network. This may be the  last year of 
reporting in its current form. 

• Cancer had been the  focus in the past few months, there had 
been an upturn in last month's performance due to increased 
capacity in the NHS and the  independent sector. Additional 
funding from the Cancer Alliance predominately focussed on 
endoscopy and urology capacity. 

• In terms of Mental Health services waiting times for both adults 
and children continued to show a sustained improvement. A 
number of service issues had been identified via an 
engagement report, these would be picked up with the 
providers 

• Diagnostics continued as an area of concern, the local provider 
had identified additional CT capacity via a mobile unit. 
Regionally work would be delivered in regard to the community 
diagnostic hubs. 

• Referral to treatment times (RTT) stands at 84% against the 
92% national standard. Sunderland CCG had the highest 
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performance position in the ICS region. Areas of concern in 
regard to long waiters and in particular over 52 week waiters, 
significant waits in orthopaedics and dermatology 

• Work was continuing with the independent sector, this would 
give access to significant additional capacity. 

  
 It was explained that the Foundation Trust was working on the reform 

of emergency care, these  improvements may help facilitate the 
delivery of the new standards. 

 
 In reference to the cancer waits and workforce pressures this was a  

national and regional issue. An update on ICS solutions for these 
pressures was requested. In response it was noted that there were no 
definite timelines as yet and the ICS Workforce Board had just been 
set up with a stakeholder event being planned shortly. Radiology was 
high on the agenda, it was hoped that numbers could be reduced via 
a provider collaborative. 

 
 A question was raised as to when the impact of the additional 

resource and capacity identified would be seen in the statistics. In 
response it was expected to see this quite soon although this would 
be incrementally. 

  
 In regard to the cancer and in particular the breast services the 

trajectory was improving but still may not reach the standard.  
  
 A question was raised in regard to the learning and improvement from 

the RTT, was this because of reduction in referrals, utilisation of 
advice and guidance etc. In response it was explained that the waiting 
list was going down, outpatient appointments were via non face to 
face means, the Chief Operating Officers were looking at elective 
recovery. Advice and guidance was counted as separate on how RTT 
worked but was recognised. 

 
 In regard to the planning guidance, this would be approved by the 

NHS board, there was a lot of discussion around health and wellbeing 
of staff, recovery from Covid, mental health services, expanding 
primary care and re-design of community urgent care pathways. 

  
 The Governing Body NOTED the position and progress against each 

indicator and the risks to performance as a result of increased Covid 
19 activity and surge. 

 
2021/32 Financial Report 
 
 The report provided an update on the implications of the financial 

regime, a summary of the financial position and year-end forecast as 
at month 11 and an update on the delivery of the CCGs productivity 
plan for 2020/21. 
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 Month 1-6 forecast a breakeven position 
 Months 7-12 guidance from NHSE had suspended the normal 

financial arrangements to not approve new revenue business 
investments unless they were Covid 19 related or related to a 
previous plan.  

   
 In relation to months 1-7 in the original plan a £2m deficit had been 

reported, this had since been updated to a breakeven position due to 
an additional allocation from NHSE to correct some flaws in the CCGs 
allocation. 

 
 At month 11 a forecast variance was reported of £4.8m, this was due 

to an underspend on system Covid funding across the ICP with £3.2m 
due to uncommitted transformation  funding. 

 
 In terms of key variances there was an underspend of £2.7m which 

was due to allocations and an underspend on AQP contracts which 
were COVID related. 

 
  
 Continuing Health care were reporting an underspend related to 

hospital discharge pathways. Mental Health was seeing a positive 
underspend of £700k for Section 117 forecasts although the CCG 
were still spending around £300k more than last year. Prescribing 
spends were difficult to predict with no traditional trend analysis 
available to utilise.  

 
 In regard to the Mental Health Investment Standard external audit had 

reviewed the 2019/20 information The outcome of this would be 
published once agreed by NHS England. 

 
 Financial planning guidance for 2021/22 had not yet been published, 

further information was expected later in the week with information on 
what allocation would be going to the ICP/ICP/CCGs. This would then 
assist in developing a budget for the Governing Body, mechanisms 
were in place to manage this.  A draft plan was expected in late April 
with a final plan in May, this would be presented to the Governing 
Body once completed and approved by NHSE.  

 
 Resources were expected to assist with the continuation of the 

hospital discharge programme. 
 
 In regard to concerns around prescribing, were the CCG out with in 

regards to others in terms of the variances, in regard to the pandemic 
had an industry been created around repeat dispensing – is this 
potentially a causal factor? 

 In response it was noted that the CCG were a growing outlier of late 
compared to the region. There had been an increased in spend to all 
CCGs re the high cost of drugs, there was a need to understand the 
cause of this. All Together Better (ATB) along with partners looked at 
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a  whole system approach with a series of workshops planned to look 
at these issues. Repeat dispensing had worked well to reduce the 
workloads but this had led to some duplication in prescriptions. A task 
and finish group had been set up to  look at this issue. 

 
 It was noted that it was hard to understand how drug prices fluctuate 

as much and it was expected that the NHS would have better 
negotiation capacity in this regard. The variation in costs makes it 
difficult in regard to value for money. 

 
 It was clarified that in principle patients could only go repeat 

medication once they had been on the medication for 6 months and 
were expected to continue for at least a further 6 month period. 

 
 The Governing Body NOTED the financial update. 
   
2021/33 Minutes of the Executive Committee in Common meeting held on 

1 December 2020 
 
 The minutes of the Executive Committee were RECEIVED.  
 
2021/34 Minutes of the Executive Committee meeting held on 19 January 

2021 
 
 The minutes of the Executive Committee were RECEIVED. 
 
2021/35 Minutes of the Executive Committee meeting held on 2 February 

2021 
 
 The minutes of the Executive Committee were RECEIVED. 
 
2021/36 Minutes of the Patient and Public Involvement Committee 

meeting held on 17 December 2020. 
 
 The minutes of the Patient and Public Involvement Committee were 

RECEIVED. 
 
2021/37 Minutes of the Health and Wellbeing Board meeting held on 11 

December 2020. 
 
 The minutes of the Health and Wellbeing Board were RECEIVED. 
 
2021/38 Accountable Officer’s Report 
 
                     The report gave an update from the Accountable Officer on key issues 

  that affected Sunderland. 
 

 The Governing Body RECEIVED the report. 
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2021/39       Minutes of the Northern CCG Joint Committee meeting held on  
                       14 January 2021  
 
 The minutes of the Northern CCG Joint Committee meeting were 

RECEIVED.    
 
2021/40 Any other business 
 
 There being no other business the meeting closed at 15.17pm. 
 
2021/41 Date of next meeting 
 
                      Tuesday 25 May 2021, 1.45pm – 4.00pm 
                      Via MS Teams. 
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1 2021/22 Priorities and Operational Planning Guidance can be found here  

CATEGORY OF PAPER  

Proposes specific action  

Provides assurance  ✓ 

For information only  

 

Governing Body 
 

25 May 2021 

Report Title: 
 

Phase Three Recovery Assurance Report 
 

Purpose of report 

 
The purpose of this report is to provide high level assurance to the Governing Body on delivery of 
the national  requirements, set for the NHS by NHS England/Improvement (NHSE/I), for the phase 
three response to the coronavirus pandemic that was to cover the period July 2020 to March 2021. 
 

Key points 

Introduction 
 
The paper aims to provide an overview of the final status of the national priority actions described 
in the phase three planning letter received on 31 July 2020.  
 
National Planning Guidance 
 
The 2021/22 priorities and operational planning guidance1 was received on 25th March 2021 to 
cover the first six months of the year (April – September).  The main priorities identified within the 
guidance are: 
 

• Supporting the health and wellbeing of staff and taking action on recruitment and retention.  

• Delivering the NHS COVID vaccination programme and continuing to meet the needs of 
patients with COVID-19.  

• Building on what we have learned during the pandemic to transform the delivery of services, 
accelerate the restoration of elective and cancer care and manage the increasing demand 
on mental health services.  

• Expanding primary care capacity to improve access, local health outcomes and address 
health inequalities.  

• Transforming community and urgent and emergency care to prevent inappropriate 
attendance at emergency departments (ED) improve timely admission to hospital for ED 
patients and reduce length of stay.  

• Working collaboratively across systems to deliver on these priorities. 
 
To facilitate compliance with the priorities identified the Government has agreed an overall financial 
settlement for the NHS for the first half of the year which provides an additional £6.6bn + £1.5bn for 

COVID-19 costs above the original mandate.  

https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2021/03/B0468-nhs-operational-planning-and-contracting-guidance.pdf


2 

 

 
2 The2021/22 priorities and operational planning guidance: Implementation guidance can be found here 

 

 
The planning guidance requires that narrative plans are triangulated across activity, workforce and 
money at ICS level whilst priorities are being set for the remainder of the year.  The CCG has 
submitted the required information in line with the guidance as stated in the table below.   
 

Key tasks Date 

Publication.  
• 2021/22 priorities and operational planning guidance  
• Guidance on finance and contracting arrangements for H1 
2021/22  
• Implementation guidance  
• Technical definitions 

Thursday 25 March 
2021 

Templates issued.  
• Non-functional activity, workforce  
• Narrative 

Friday 26 March 2021 

System financial planning template and SDF schedules issued Monday 29 March 
2021 

Organisation (provider) capital and cash plan submission Monday 12 April 2021 

• System finance plan submission.  
• Mental Health finance submission 
Draft plan submission deadline.  
• Draft activity, workforce (primary and secondary care) and MH 
workforce numerical submission  
• Draft narrative plan submission 

Thursday 6 May 2021 

Non-mandated provider organisation finance plan submission w/c 24 May 2021 

Final plan submission deadline.  
• Final activity, workforce and MH workforce numerical submission  
• Final narrative plan submission 

Thursday 3 June 2021 

 
Integrated Care Systems (ICS) 

 
The 2021/22 priorities and operational planning guidance: Implementation guidance2 detailed the 
four core purposes of the ICS:  

• Improving outcomes in population health and healthcare. 

• Tackling inequalities in outcomes, experience and access. 

• Enhancing productivity and value for money: and 

• Helping the NHS to support broader social and economic development. 
 
Key expectations in the guidance, subject to the relevant legislation, are: 

• There to be one statutory ICS NHS body and one statutory ICS health and care partnership 
per ICS from April 2022. 

• CCG functions will be subsumed into the ICS NHS body as well as some NHS England and 
Improvement direct commissioning functions will be transferred or delegated to ICSs. 

• Staff below board level that are directly affected will have an employment commitment and 
local NHS running costs will not be cut as a result of organisational changes. 

• Through place-based partnerships, NHS organisations will continue to work with local 
government to join up health and social care and tackle the wider determinants of health.  
To enable this ICS boundaries will align with upper tier local authority boundaries by April 

https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2021/03/B0468-implementation-guidance-21-22-priorities-and-operational-planning-guidance.pdf
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2022.  Joint working with local government will be further supported by the health care 
partnership at ICS level. 

• The development of primary and community services and implementation of population 
health management will be led at place level, with Primary Care Networks.  

• Every acute (non-specialist) and mental health NHS trust and FT will be part of at least one 
provider collaborative, allowing them to integrate services appropriately with local partners 
at place  

• Clinical and professional leadership will be enhanced, connecting the primary care voice 
that has been a strong feature of PCNs and CCGs, to clinical and professional leadership 
from community, acute and mental health providers, public health and social care teams.  

 
System Development Plans (SDPs) should be agreed between system partners and with NHSEI 
regional teams by the end of Quarter One, to demonstrate how the ICS will develop the leadership, 
capabilities and governance required to take on their anticipated statutory duties from April 2022. 
 
Status update – Month 12 

 
South Tyneside and Sunderland NHS FT (STSFT) informed that electives, outpatients and day 
cases are being impacted by the numbers of theatre staff requiring to self-isolate and take leave.  
This is expected to improve from April 2021. 
 
There has been five change in the BRAG ratings, from the report presented in March 2021: 
 

• Ref A2.13 regarding patient initiated follow-up that has been rolled out over a number of 
specialties and will continue to be rolled out as part of the response to the 2021/22 planning 
guidance.  The BRAG has moved from ‘amber’ to ‘green’. (In Hospital) 

• Ref A3.11 relating to the discharge to assess model that is in place with a standard 
operating model and funding agreed.   The BRAG has moved from ‘amber’ to ‘green’. (Out 
of Hospital) 

• Ref A4.11 relating to the completion of Learning Disability health checks where Sunderland 
practices have exceeded their national target. The BRAG has moved from ‘green’ to blue. 
(Out of Hospital) 

• Ref A4.12 relating to flu vaccinations to persons with a Learning Disability.  The BRAG has 
moved from ‘green’ to blue. (Out of Hospital) 

• Ref C2.1 relating to the protection of the most vulnerable from COVID-19.  The BRAG has 
moved from ‘green’ to blue. (Out of Hospital) 

 
Where BRAG ratings have not changed there may be some change to the commentary (appendix 
1). 
 
An overview of progress against delivery of the requirements identified within the phase three 
guidance is detailed below.   

May-21 Red Amber Green Blue

In Hospital 0 9 15 2

Out of Hospital 0 2 18 14

Joint commissioning 0 2 1 0

Sunderland CCG (Organisational) 0 0 9 2

System (Organisational) 1 1 5 1  
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*Number in brackets refers to the number of requirements in that particular section. 

 
BRAG rating key:  Blue = complete, Red = not started, Amber = some concern, risks to delivery, 
Green = ongoing  
 
The involvement of STSFT, ATB and CCG colleagues in responding to this third wave of the 
pandemic and in supporting the delivery of the vaccination programme means that the updates 
provided may not be as comprehensive as previously provided.  It is also to be noted that updates 
are at a point in time (15 March 2021) and it is likely that what is reported in some areas may have 
changed because of the dynamic nature of the environment in which we are working.   
 
In addition to this report further information relating to the response to COVID-19 and maintaining 
essential services in a level 4 incident  will be provided within the Performance and Finance reports 
and the ATB assurance report as well as reports to other committees, for example Quality and 
Safety and Primary Care Commissioning Committees.  
 
Full details of responses to each of the key lines of enquiry to the phase three guidance can be 
found in Appendix1. 

 

Risks and issues 

 
Infection Prevention Control (IPC) and Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) are areas of risk to 
recovery.  
 
Asymptomatic testing of all patient-facing staff could result in an increase of staff requiring to self-
isolate, resulting in staffing issues. 
 
The emergence of a new COVID-19 variant has increased the number of cases and subsequently 
increased risks on the optimal management of both COVID and non-COVID patients. 
 
Deferred Continuing Healthcare Assessments are behind trajectory as a result of system and 
workforce pressures.  An external agency has been engaged to address the backlog. 
 
This report highlights areas of risk emerging in delivery of the recovery work. 

 

Assurances  

 
System wide recovery principles have been agreed for in and out of hospital and across the Central 
Integrated Care Partnership. 
 
South Tyneside and Sunderland NHS FT have established an Operational Recovery Group which 
meets weekly to co-ordinate operational and clinical recovery. 

 
All Together Better has developed and implemented a revised business model, approved by the 
CCG Governing Body in November 2020 to enable the ATB to be better equipped to improve 
health outcomes and reduce health inequalities through operational delivery and transformation of 
services. 

 

Recommendation/Action Required 
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The Governing Body is asked to note the assurance provided by the report regarding recovery and 
delivery of the phase three national requirements. 
 
The Governing Body is asked to note that a full review of the national requirements can be found in 
appendix 1. 
 

Sponsor/approving directors   
Scott Watson, Director of Contracting, Planning & 
Informatics, CIO & SIRO 

Reviewer Matt Thubron, Head of Contracting and Performance 

Report author 
Shelagh Cockburn, Commissioning Manager – 
Planning and Assurance 

Governance and Assurance 

Link to CCG corporate objectives  (please tick all that apply) 

CO1:  Develop and support system transformation and  ensure a well-led organisation ✓ 

CO2:  Maintain financial control and performance ✓ 

CO3:  Maintain and improve the quality and safety of CCG commissioned services ✓ 

CO4:  Identify and deliver the CCG’s strategic priorities  

CO5:  Covid-19 Response and Recovery ✓ 

Relevant legal/statutory issues 

No 

Any potential/actual conflicts 
of interest associated with the 
paper? (please tick) 

Yes  No  N/A ✓ 

If yes, please specify  

Equality analysis completed 
(please tick)  

Yes  No  N/A ✓ 

Quality impact assessment 
undertaken  
(please tick) 

Yes  No  N/A ✓ 

 If no, please specify  yes, please specify  

Key implications 

Are additional resources 
required?   

 
Areas where additional financial resource or capacity is 
required are highlighted within the report. 
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Has there been appropriate 
clinical engagement?  

 
Via STSFT’s clinical and operational staff, the ATB programme 
Boards 
 

Has there been/or does there 
need to be any patient and 
public involvement? 

Patient insight work has started. Patient involvement will be led 
by providers as well as the CCG where appropriate through the 
recovery planning processes. 
 

Is there an expected impact on 
patient outcomes/experience?  
If yes, has a quality impact 
assessment been undertaken? 

Assessments would be undertaken within planning processes 
for identified areas of transformation. 
 

Has there been member 
practice and/or other 
stakeholder engagement if 
needed?   

 
Updates to Sunderland Health and Wellbeing Board on 25 
June 2020 and 18 September 2020 and updates to the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee in June 2020, September 
2020 and January 2021. 
 

Version Date Comments  

1.0 Draft  SC First draft 

2.0 Draft   

3.0 Draft   

4.0 Draft   



Better health for Sunderland

Phase Three Recovery Assurance Report

Governing Body 

May 2021



In Hospital (i)

Requirement BRAG Response

A1.2

Ensuring that sufficient diagnostic capacity is in place in Covid19-

secure environments, including through the use of independent 

sector facilities, and the development of Community Diagnostic 

Hubs and Rapid Diagnostic Centres


Diagnostics services have continued for urgent and cancer patients 

throughout the pandemic. Cancer patients are continuing to be 

clinically prioritised to minimise delays. Compliance against the 

national operating standards remain strong and favourable when 

compared to the national or regional performance

A1.3

Increasing endoscopy capacity to normal levels, including through 

the release of endoscopy staff from other duties, separating upper 

and lower GI (non-aerosol-generating) investigations, and using CT 

colonography to substitute where appropriate for colonoscopy.


Endoscopy capacity continues to be prioritised for Cancer patients.  

A1.4

Expanding the capacity of surgical hubs to meet demand and 

ensuring other treatment modalities are also delivered in Covid19-

secure environments.


Surgery capacity continues to be prioritised for Cancer patients. The 

Trust is jointly leading work, across the ICS, at how capacity can be 

used effectively. 

A1.5

Putting in place specific actions to support any groups of patients 

who might have unequal access to diagnostics and/or treatment.



Working with CCGs at place based and ICP level on Health 

Inequalities, further action is required at system level. Internally 

improvements have been made and the inclusion of  deprivation 

indices in patient datasets is scheduled for completion by the end of 

April 2021.

A1.6

Fully restarting all cancer screening programmes. Alliances 

delivering lung health checks should restart them. 
Recovery of the Bowel Cancer Screening is being led by the Hub 

(GHFT) together with PHE.  Uptake  continues to be reduced.

A1.7

Reduce the number of patients waiting for diagnostics and/or 

treatment longer than 62 days on an urgent pathway, to pre-

pandemic levels


Trust 62 day patients volumes are within pre-Covid range, although 

not all tumour groups are back to pre-Covid levels of demand.

A1.8

Reducing the number of patients waiting for diagnostics and/or 

treatment over 31 days on a treatment pathway, to pre-pandemic 

levels, 


Performance against this requirement remains very good with 

virtually all patients achieving the 31 day standard

A1.9

Reducing the number of patients waiting for diagnostics and/or 

treatment with an immediate plan for managing those waiting 

longer than 104 days.


The current number of 104 day waiters is below pre-COVID levels. 

All patients waiting longer than 104 days subject to clinical  harm 

review and RCA.

Lead: South Tyneside and Sunderland NHS Foundation Trust



In Hospital (ii)

Requirement BRAG Response

A2.1

In September at least 80% of their last year’s activity for 
overnight electives a rising to 90% in October (while aiming 

for 70% in August) 
March will show an improvement against this ask. However the impact of 

medical suspensions and other leave for theatre staff is impacting on theatre 

capacity. This position should show some improvement from April onwards 

given the change in the shielding guidance.  

A2.2

In September at least 80% of their last year’s activity for 
outpatient/daycase procedures, rising to 90% in October 

(while aiming for 70% in August) 
March will show an improvement against this ask.  The impact of medical 

suspensions and other leave for theatre staff is impacting on outpatient 

/daycase capacity. This position should show some improvement from April 

onwards given the change in the shielding guidance.  

A2.3

Return to at least 90% of their last year’s levels of MRI/CT 
with an ambition to reach 100% by October.



Current performance is above plan but not the 100% required. Extra capacity 

is in place by offering evening and weekend appointments . Extension of the 

additional mobile CT scanner capacity  has been confirmed.  The trust is not 

receiving mutual aid but is providing radiology support for Breast Services for 

CDDFT and GHFT.

A2.4

Return to at least 90% of their last year’s levels of 
endoscopy procedures with an ambition to reach 100% by 

October. 
The 100%  target has not been met although clinically prioritised patients 

remain to be seen within the required timeframes.  Target failure will persist  

due to reduced levels of flex sigmoidoscopy with the national move from 

Bowel Scoping programme. This activity will  be with the 19/20 baseline.

A2.5

100% of their last year’s activity for first outpatient 
attendances (face to face or virtually) from September 

through the balance of the year (and aiming for 90% in 

August).


Internal monitoring shows that this target wasn't achieved in February.  The 

large number of covid patients, in February, in critical care  and supporting 

the escalated ICU areas on both main sites has impacted on the first 

outpatient programme.

A2.6

100% of their last year’s activity for outpatient follow-ups 

(face to face or virtually) from September through the 

balance of the year (and aiming for 90% in August). 
Plans in place to increase activity levels via both face to face and virtual 

appointments. However the large number of covid patients in critical care  

and supporting the escalated ICU areas on both main sites has impacted on 

the outpatient follow-up programme

A2.7

Every patient whose planned care has been disrupted by 

Covid receives clear communication about how they will be 

looked after, and who to contact in the event that their 

clinical circumstances change


Clinically prioritised patients are being scheduled for care and contacted to 

confirm the date of surgery. For those patients where treatment is a lower 

priority using the Royal College definition, are contacted to see if they still 

want to receive their treatment and also given advice about how to manage 

their condition. 

Lead: South Tyneside and Sunderland NHS Foundation Trust



In Hospital (iii)

Requirement BRAG Response

A2.8

Clinically urgent patients should continue to be treated first, with 

next priority given to the longest waiting patients, specifically 

those breaching or at risk of breaching 52 weeks by the end of 

March 2021


Clinical prioritisation in line with Royal College guidance continues on 

an ongoing basis for elective patients, followed by long waiters for 

elective patients as set out in the Phase 3 guidance.

A2.9

Systems must produce week-by-week independent sector usage 

plans from August and will then be held directly to account for 

delivering against them.



Weekly plans have been agreed between the Independent Sector 

Providers (ISPs), NHS Trusts and Commissioners with NHS England for 

Q4. Indicative activity has been allocated to ISPs and NHS Trusts but 

the focus continues to be around clinical prioritisation to ensure the 

right patients are transferred to and treated by the IS.  The Inter

Provider Transfer (IPT) of patients to Spire for elected T&O cases is 

ongoing and will continue via the new IS arrangements within the ICP.  

Spire are also providing additional CT and MRI capacity.

A2.10

Providers should follow the new streamlined patient self isolation 

and testing requirements set out in the guideline published by 

NICE


A2.11
Trusts should ensure their e-Referral Service is fully open to 

referrals from primary care 

A2.12

Clinicians should consider avoiding asking patients to attend 

physical outpatient appointments where a clinically-appropriate 

and accessible alternative exists; collaboration between primary 

and secondary care to use advice and guidance where possible 

and treat patients without an onward referral



The Trust continues to offer telephone / virtual appointments to 

patients and also provides Advice and Guidance to primary care as an 

alternative to face to face appointments. Levels of both are 

considerable high than pre-COVID levels.

A2.13

Adopt a patient-initiated follow-up approach across major 

outpatient specialties


This has been rolled out to a number of specialities and further work 

continues to expend this offer across a greater number of specialities 

and will be carried forward as part of the response to the planning 

guidance for 2021/22.

Lead: South Tyneside and Sunderland NHS Foundation Trust



In Hospital (iv)

Requirement BRAG Response

B1.3

All NHS employers should prepare for the likelihood that if 

background infection risk increases in the Autumn, and DHSC 

Test and Trace secures 500,000+ tests per day, the Chief 

Medical Officer and DHSC may decide in September or October 

to implement a policy of regular routine Covid testing of all 

asymptomatic staff across the NHS.



The Trust is has rolled out lateral flow tests to a number of groups of 

staff as per national guidance.

B2.1

Sustaining current NHS staffing, beds and capacity, while taking 

advantage of the additional £3 billion NHS revenue funding for 

ongoing independent sector capacity, Nightingale hospitals, and 

support to quickly and safely discharge patients from NHS 

hospitals through to March 2021.



Reduced length of stay has been sustained throughout the COVID 

period and beyond into recovery. However flow through the hospital 

remains under pressure.  This has been raised  through usual 

command and control routes across the system.

C2.2

Restore NHS services inclusively, so that they are used by those 

in greatest need


Improvements in the  Trust regarding completion of ethnicity data 

have been made and inclusion of indices of deprivation in patient data 

sets is scheduled to be complete by the end of April 2021

C2.8

Accelerate preventative programmes which proactively engage 

those at greatest risk of poor health outcomes. This should 

include  increasing the continuity of maternity carers including 

for BAME women and those in high risk groups.



STSFT – the focus is on multi-morbidity management and a baseline 

review of what services are already being delivered for vulnerable 

groups.  Continuity of carer teams are particularly focused on those 

who are deemed to be in high risk or vulnerable groups. There is also 

a specific team to support teenage pregnancies. Community midwives 

are being trained to deliver flu vaccinations to address the high risks 

groups who may otherwise not attend an appointment for a flu 

vaccination.  Ethnicity and demographic information has been collated 

for several years. The Trust has launched a Health and Wellbeing 

Strategy that includes its role in the wider system.

C2.10

All NHS organisations should proactively review and ensure the 

completeness of patient ethnicity data by no later 31 December, 

with general practice prioritising those groups at significant risk 

of Covid19 from 1 September.


STSFT review of patient ethnicity data  has shown improvements in 

completeness. 

Lead: South Tyneside and Sunderland NHS Foundation Trust



Out of Hospital (i) (Programme 1)

Requirement BRAG Response

A1.1

To reduce unmet need and tackle health inequalities, work with GPs 

and the public locally to restore the number of people coming 

forward and appropriately being referred with suspected cancer to at 

least pre-pandemic levels.



A3.1

General practice should restore activity to usual levels where 

clinically appropriate, and reach out proactively to clinically 

vulnerable patients and those whose care may have been delayed


A3.4

GP practices need to make rapid progress in addressing the backlog 

of childhood immunisations through specific catch-up initiatives and 

additional capacity and deliver through their Primary Care Network 

(PCN)



A3.5

GP practices need to make rapid progress in addressing the backlog 

of cervical screening through specific catch-up initiatives and 

additional capacity and deliver through their Primary Care Network 

(PCN)



A3.6

GPs, primary care networks and community health services should 

build on the enhanced support they are providing to care homes, and 

begin a programme of structured medication reviews.


A3.7
GP practices to expand the range of services to which patients can 

self-refer 

A4.10
GP practices should ensure that everybody with a Learning Disability 

is identified on their register 

A4.11

GP practices should ensure that everybody with a Learning Disability 

has their annual health checks completed



This is not only part of QP this year but also a key focus of the 

Investment and Impact Fund for PCNs. The CCG has  been 

awarded exemplar status for the work undertaken within this 

area.  Sunderland practices have exceeded the target set 

nationally for LD AHSCs for this year

A4.12

GP practices should ensure that everybody with a Learning Disability 

has access to screening and flu vaccinations is proactively arranged 
A specific plan regarding flu vaccination delivery  has been 

developed this year in Sunderland.  Support has been enlisted 

from CNTW, Health Protection Team to deliver the vaccine  to 

patients with a Learning Disability.

Lead: All Together Better



Out of Hospital (ii) (Programme 1)

Requirement BRAG Response

B2.2

Deliver a very significantly expanded seasonal flu vaccination programme for 

DHSC-determined priority groups, including providing easy access for all NHS 

staff promoting universal uptake. 
A Sunderland Flu Board has been set up to oversee delivery of the 

flu plan with representation from  across the system. The flu plan 

has been delivered, uptake has significantly exceeded that achieved 

in previous years.

B2.6

Continue to make full use of the NHS Volunteer Responders scheme in 

conjunction with the Royal Voluntary Society and the partnership with British 

Red Cross, Age UK and St. Johns Ambulance which is set to be renewed.


C2.1

Protect the most vulnerable from Covid, with enhanced analysis and 

community engagement, to mitigate the risks associated with relevant 

protected characteristics and social and economic conditions; and better 

engage those communities who need most support.


Shielded patient list has been reviewed.  Information sent to 

practices to support those on list. Health Inequalities data 

dashboard in development. Data also being developed at PCN  level.

C2.3

Develop digitally enabled care pathways in ways which increase inclusion, 

including reviewing who is using new primary, outpatient and mental health 

digitally enabled care pathways by 31 March. 

An ICP Clinical Pathway Review group has been established.  An ATB 

Digital Working Group is under development.  Business analysts 

have worked with programmes to develop baseline requirement 

document that has been presented to the ATB Executive Group –
feedback is awaited to develop next steps.

C2.4

Accelerate preventative programmes which proactively engage those at 

greatest risk of poor health outcomes. This should include more accessible flu 

vaccinations


Population Health Management dashboard in development. 

Working with practices to understand risk stratification processes 

that are in place.  

C2.5

Accelerate preventative programmes which proactively engage those at 

greatest risk of poor health outcomes. This should include the better targeting 

of long-term condition prevention and management programmes.


Population Health Management dashboard in development. 

Working with practices to understand risk stratification processes 

that are in place. 

C2.6

Accelerate preventative programmes which proactively engage those at 

greatest risk of poor health outcomes. This should include obesity reduction 

programmes including self-referral to  NHS Diabetes Prevention Programme.


Self-referral to Diabetes Prevention Programme already possible as 

well as NHS schemes to support patients to attend weight 

management classes. 

C2.7

Accelerate preventative programmes which proactively engage those at 

greatest risk of poor health outcomes. This should include health checks for 

people with learning disabilities.


C2.10

All NHS organisations should proactively review and ensure the completeness 

of patient ethnicity data by no later 31 December, with general practice 

prioritising those groups at significant risk of Covid19 from 1 September.


Work underway in practices to ensure ethnicity is recorded; as part 

of new patient check.

Lead: All Together Better



Out of Hospital (iii) (Programme 2)

Requirement BRAG Response

A4.2

IAPT services should fully resume


Sunderland IAPT services have resumed.  Work is ongoing to address 

concerns  around the development of the service to ensure 

compliance with national guidance.

A4.3

24/7 crisis helplines for all ages that were established locally 

during the pandemic should be retained, developing this into a 

national service continue the transition to digital working


All age crisis services are in place.

A4.5

Proactively review all patients on community mental health 

teams’ caseloads and increase therapeutic activity and 
supportive interventions to prevent relapse or escalation of 

mental health needs for people with SMI in the community


Against a 95% target of "Current Service Users, aged 18 or over, on 

CPA Reviewed in the Last 12 Months" reviews are currently running 

at 99.1%

A4.6
Ensure that local access to services is clearly advertised (Adults)



A4.7
Eliminate mental health dormitory wards 

A4.8

Continue to reduce the number of children, young people and 

adults within a specialist inpatient setting by providing better 

alternatives and by ensuring that Care (Education) and 

Treatment Reviews always take place both prior to and 

following inpatient admission.


Processes are in place for completion of Care (Education) and 

Treatment Reviews for adults.  The subsequent data is reported to 

NHSE/I and to the CCG’s Quality and Safety Committee.

Lead: All Together Better



Out of Hospital (iv) (Programme 3)

Requirement BRAG Response

A3.2

Community services should restore activity to usual levels 

where clinically appropriate, and reach out proactively to 

clinically vulnerable patients and those whose care may have 

been delayed 

Community health teams continued to visit throughout the pandemic.

Care was delivered unless the patient has asked not to.  Individuals

were then risk assessed as a safe decision. In these situations regular 

telephone contact was established with a visit at the first 

opportunity.

A3.9

Support patients who have recovered from the acute phase of 

Covid but need ongoing rehabilitation and other community 

health service



A system wide South Tyneside & Sunderland Covid Recovery Group 

has met fortnightly  with representatives from across the system. The 

group has focussed on communications to all patients who were 

admitted to STSFT with COVID.  A long COVID ICP group  has been 

established focussing on the implementation of Long COVID clinics . 

Clinics are not yet established. A ‘Post COVID-19 pathway’ is  available 
on GP Team Net . 

A3.10

Community health teams should fully resume appropriate and 

safe home visiting care for all those vulnerable/shielding 

patients who need them. 
Community health teams continued to visit throughout the pandemic.

Care was delivered unless the patient had asked it to stop, which was 

risk assessed as a safe decision. In these situations regular telephone 

contact was established with a visit at the first opportunity.

Lead: All Together Better



Out of Hospital (v) (Programme 4)

Requirement BRAG Response

A3.8

Community health services crisis responsiveness should be 

enhanced in line with the goals set out in the Long Term Plan 

(crisis within 2 hours of referral and re-ablement within two 

days)


Crisis response teams in Sunderland are in place and working to NICE 

guidelines  set out in the NHS Long Term Plan.

A3.11

From 1 September 2020, hospitals and community health and 

social care partners should fully embed the discharge to assess 

processes.


Sunderland ‘s new discharge to assess model is  in place with a standard 
operating model  agreed and being implemented.  Monitoring of 

pathways  is taking place via SURGE dashboards with daily reviews.  

A3.12

CCGs must resume NHS Continuing Healthcare assessments 

from 1 September 2020 and work with local authorities using 

the trusted assessor model


Continuing Healthcare assessments commenced  11 October working  

with the LA using the trusted assessor  model . More than 80% BAU 

assessments are completed within  the 28 day timeframe.   However 

deferred assessments are behind trajectory as a result of system and 

workforce pressures and redeployment. An external  agency has been 

engaged to address the backlog from the 1 February 2021.

B2.3
Expanding the 111 First offer to provide low complexity urgent 

care without the need for an A&E attendance 

The TalkBeforeYouWalk communications have been sent out regionally 

under the banner of #Doyourbit.  Emergency Department Digital 

Interface (EDDI), which is an “arrival slot” system informing ED of the 
patients being advised to attend by 111, will not be rolled out by the 

Trust.  The Trust will roll out  a more advanced version that integrates 

with current clinical systems. This system (WASP) was fully operational 

from 5 January 2021 in the Trust.

B2.4

Increase the range of dispositions from 111 to local services, 

such as direct referrals to Same Day Emergency Care and 

specialty ‘hot’ clinics, as well as ensuring all Type 3 services are 
designated as Urgent Treatment Centres (UTCs).


A SDEC workshop has taken place and a clinical model identified.  The 

Business  Model is in development for sign-off by the CCG and ATB 

Executive .  Funding has been ring fenced to support SDEC. The business 

case is scheduled for sign-off in July 2021.

B2.5

Maximise the use of ‘Hear and Treat’ and ‘See and Treat’ 
pathways for 999 demand, to support a sustained reduction in 

the number of patients conveyed to Type 1 or 2 emergency 

departments


Regionally ‘Hear and Treat’ and See and Treat’ are part of a continuous 

improvement exercise  being undertaken by the NEAS call handler 

pathways.  Systems to monitor improvement require development

B2.7

Continuing to work with local authorities, given the critical 

dependency of our patients – particularly over winter - on 

resilient social care services 
Sunderland CCG is working closely with the Local Authority and all 

partners to ensure resilience through winter.  In and Out of Hospital 

Surge processes are in place.

Lead: All Together Better



Local Authority – joint commissioning 

Requirement BRAG Response

A4.4

Maintain the growth in the number of children and young 

people accessing care.



As schools opened, referrals into services increased significantly after 

the decrease experienced during the first lockdown. Waiting times 

remain extremely positive despite the increase. Indicative 

information for CAMHS suggests a further decrease in referrals as a 

result of the recent school closures.

A4.6

Ensure that local access to services is clearly advertised 

(Children’s Mental Health).



Reported difficulties in navigating access to care for  children’s mental 
health services in Sunderland .  The website that provides access 

continues to be improved with work being included through the 

children and young people’s service design work. With the updating of 
mental health information being part of current work to replace the 

existing ‘local offer’ webpages. 

A4.8

Continue to reduce the number of children, young people 

within a specialist inpatient setting by providing better 

alternatives and by ensuring that Care (Education) and 

Treatment Reviews always take place both prior to and 

following inpatient admission.



Processes are in place with compliance data reported to NHSE/I and 

the CCG’s Quality and Safety Committee.

Lead: Joint Commissioning, Kimm Lawson, Linda Reiling



CCG organisational requirements 

Requirement BRAG Response

A4.1
Every CCG must continue to increase investment in mental 

health services in line with the MHIS 
The CCG is forecasting compliance with the MHIS.

A4.9

Complete all outstanding Learning Disability Mortality 

Reviews (LeDeR) by December 2020.



The CCG achieved 100% compliance with the 31st December target.

Cumbria and North East achieved 100% compliance and 98% compliance 

as a region. The LeDeR process is currently under review by NHSE in 

response to changes in the architecture of the NHS.  The review is  part 

of the NHSE transformation process.

B1.1

Continuing to follow PHE’s guidance on defining and 
managing communicable disease outbreaks 

CCG commissioned services adhere to PHE guidance on the management 

of outbreaks.  The CCG is a member of the Local Health protection Board 

where outbreaks are discussed. The IPC team attend care homes where 

an outbreak has taken place to offer advice and support.

B1.2

Continue to follow PHE/DHSC-determined policies on which 

patients, staff and members of the public should be tested

and at what frequency, including the further PHE-endorsed 

actions set out on testing on 24 June



The CCG adheres to the PHE/DSC policies with oversight provided by 

Local Authority Public Health Teams. Sunderland Local Authority is 

actively engaged in the provision of mobile testing sites as required.

B1.4

Ongoing application of PHE’s infection prevention and 
control guidance and the actions set out in the letter from 9 

June on minimising nosocomial infections across all NHS 

settings, including appropriate Covid-19 free areas and 

strict application of hand hygiene, appropriate physical 

distancing, and use of masks/face coverings



The CCG continues to apply PHE’s  infection prevention and control 
guidance  form the letter from 9 June and the letter of 9 October from 

Margaret Kitching, Chief Regional Nurse  and Dr  David Black, Acting 

Regional Medical Director on lessons learned from nosocomial infections.  

Updated IPC guidance was issued on the 21st January and has been 

disseminated to all settings. 

B1.5

Ensuring NHS staff and patients have access to and use PPE 

in line with PHE’s recommended policies, drawing on 
DHSC’s sourcing and its winter/EU transition PPE and 
medicines stockpiling


GPs, Pharmacists and Dentists have access to Personal Protective 

Equipment (PPE) through the portal as do Care Homes. Both Health and 

Social Care have mutual aid supplies in readiness for winter pressures. 

Use of the PPE portal has been extended nationally to June 2021. 

C1.1

Actions all NHS employers should take to keep staff safe, 

healthy and well – both physically and psychologically



CCG staff primarily work from home, all staff have completed an agile risk 

assessment and individual risk assessment and actions taken to mitigate 

any risks identified.  Monthly health and wellbeing bulletins are shared 

with staff to keep them both physically and mentally healthy. Staff are 

requested to revisit risk assessments at regular intervals or if  

circumstances change.

Lead: David Chandler, Ann Fox, Clare Nesbitt



CCG organisational requirements 

Requirement BRAG Response

C1.2
Offer staff flexible working



C1.3

Urgent action to address systemic inequality that is 

experienced by some of our staff, including BAME staff.



The CCG Governing Body formally signed up to ‘Our Collective 
Promise’, making a commitment to the Black Asian Minority Ethnic 
(BAME) community.  The Equality Diversity and Inclusion Strategy has 

been revised and extended to include STCCG to enable activities to be 

joined across the two areas. An action plan has been drafted to enable

implementation of the strategy. This will be monitored by the 

Executive Committee.

C1.6

Set out new initiatives for development and upskilling of staff



Evidenced through Platinum Investors in People (IIP) Award (IIP) and 

the Organisational Development Plan. All staff have regular 1-1s and 

take part in the appraisal process, six monthly, where objectives and 

training needs are identified.

C2.9

Strengthen leadership and accountability, with a named 

executive Board member responsible for tackling inequalities 

in place in September in every NHS organisation 

Named Executive Board Member for tackling inequalities is  Gerry 

Taylor, Executive Director of Public Health and Integrated 

Commissioning for Sunderland.

Leads: Clare Nesbitt, Deb Cornell, Neil O’Brien 



System organisational requirements 

Requirement BRAG Response

C1.4

Workforce planning and transformation that needs to be 

undertaken by systems to enable people to be recruited and 

deployed across organisations, sectors and geographies locally. 
An ICP workforce group has been established.  The Sunderland 

Director of People and Primary Care represents Sunderland  CCG 

on the group.  The groups remit includes the review of multiple 

work streams across all stakeholders.

C1.5

All systems should develop a local People Plan in response to 

these actions, covering expansion of staff numbers, mental and 

physical support for staff, improving retention and flexible 

working opportunities.


The NENC have submitted a response to the national NHS People 

Plan. The response identifies the actions taken within the ICS to 

embed the NHS People’s plan throughout the NENC ICS through 
the four ICP’s and locally at CCG.

C1.7

Work with local authorities and local partners in developing plans 

for recruitment that contribute to the regeneration of 

communities, especially in light of the economic impact of Covid.


CCG is part of the Healthy Economy Working group that is a sub-

group of the Sunderland Health and Wellbeing Board

D1.1

Collaborative leadership arrangements, agreed by all partners, 

that support joint working and quick, effective decision-making. 

This should include a single STP/ICS leader and a non-executive 

chair


The North East and North Cumbria ICS is well established.  The 

lead is Alan Foster MBE. Professor Sir Liam Donaldson has been 

appointed ICS Chair for the NENC ICS.  Recruitment for a Chief 

Executive is underway.

D1.2

Collaborative leadership arrangements, agreed by all partners, 

that support joint working and quick, effective decision-making. 

This should include clearly defined arrangements for provider 

collaboration, place leadership and integrated care partnerships 

Planning guidance issued in March sets out the timeframe and 

milestones for the implementation of new ICS system 

arrangements. Working continues at place to determine and agree 

placed based arrangements relating to commissioning and 

development of provider collaboratives.

D1.3

Organisations within the system coming together to serve 

communities through a Partnership Board, underpinned by 

agreed governance and decision-making arrangements including 

high standards of transparency 

A report providing a recommended approach to both partnership 

commissioning and place based partnership arrangements is 

scheduled to go to the Governing Body in Q1 2021/22. The wider 

system arrangements (ICS) are being clarified via the legislation 

proposals set  out in the White Paper  published 11 Feb 2021.  

Further guidance is anticipated in April 2021. 

Lead: Neil O’Brien



System organisational requirements 

Requirement BRAG Response

D1.4

Plans to streamline commissioning through a single ICS/STP 

approach. This will typically lead to a single CCG across the 

system.  Formal written applications to be submitted by 30 Sept.



Planning guidance requires ICSs to set out how they will develop 

the leadership, capabilities and governance required to take on 

anticipated statutory responsibilities from April 2022. Each system 

is to have an implementation plan in preparation for managing 

their organisational and people transition into the future 

arrangements taking account of the process and timetable for ICS 

establishment set out in the guidance.

D1.5

A plan for developing and implementing a full shared care record, 

allowing the safe flow of patient data between care settings, and 

the aggregation of data for population health



The plan for the development and implementation of a full shared 

care record across the North East is well underway.  All health 

organisations are connected across Sunderland  with the Acute 

Trust, Primary Care and the Local Authority (LA) able to view and 

contribute data.

Lead: Neil O’Brien
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CATEGORY OF PAPER  

Proposes specific action  

Provides assurance   

For information only  

 
GOVERNING BODY 

 
25 May 2021 

Report Title: 

 
Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Strategy  

2021-2024 
 

Purpose of report 

To provide the Governing Body with the CCG's updated Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Strategy. 

Key points 

The attached strategy has been developed jointly with NHS South Tyneside CCG and outlines the 

CCGs' strategic direction to ensure compliance with the Public Sector Equality Duty and the 

Equality Act 2010, by having due regard to the need to: 

• Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other conduct 

prohibited by the 2010 Act; 

• Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected characteristic and 

those who do not 

• Foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and those who 

do not. 

 

The strategy highlights the national and local drivers that will shape and influence the CCGs' 

approach and describes a clear picture of the significant targets the CCG has set in relation to 

Equality and Human Rights.  Updates to the strategy include:  

• Updated local heath profiles  

• Revised Comms and engagement section 

• Workforce Disability Equality Standard,  

• Sexual Orientation Monitoring Standard and 

• 2020 NHS People plan which has a strong Equality, Diversity and Inclusion focus. 

 

The strategy has been considered by the Executive Committee on 6 April who approved it for 

submission to the Governing Body for formal ratification.   Please note the strategy has also been 

approved by NHS South Tyneside CCG's Executive Committee who also approved it for 

submission to its Governing Body on 27 May for formal ratification.   

Risks and issues 

None identified  

Assurances  

The strategy has been reviewed by the EDI expert in NECS and complies with all current legislation 
and best practice.  

Recommendation/Action Required 
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The Executive Committee is asked to approve the updated strategy.  
 

Sponsor/approving directors   
D Cornell, Head of Corporate Affairs STCCG and 
SCCG  

Report author 
H Brooks, Senior Governance Officer – Equality, 
Diversity and Inclusion, NECS 

Governance and Assurance 

Link to CCG corporate objectives  (please tick all that apply) 

CO1:Develop and support system transformation and  ensure a well-led organisation  

CO2:  Maintain financial control and performance   

CO3: Maintain and improve quality of CCG commissioned services  

CO4:Identify and deliver the CCG’s strategic priorities  

CO5: Covid-19 Response and Recovery  

Relevant legal/statutory issues 

Equality Act 2010, Human Rights Act 1998, Public Sector Equality Duty, Workforce Race Equality Standard, 
Workforce Disability Equality Standard, Accessible Information Standard, Sexual Orientation Monitoring 
Information Standard 

Any potential/actual conflicts 
of interest associated with the 
paper? (please tick) 

Yes  No  N/A  

If yes, please specify  

Equality analysis completed 
(please tick)  

Yes  No  N/A  

Quality impact assessment 
undertaken  
(please tick) 

Yes  No  N/A  

 If no, please specify  yes, please specify  

Key implications 

Are additional resources 
required?   

None identified 

Has there been appropriate 
clinical engagement?  

Yes as part of the original strategy development  

Has there been/or does there 
need to be any patient and 
public involvement? 

Yes as part of the original strategy development 

Is there an expected impact on 
patient outcomes/experience?  
If yes, has a quality impact 
assessment been undertaken? 

Yes – updated strategy to ensure equality for all. 

Has there been member 
practice and/or other 
stakeholder engagement if 
needed?   

Yes as part of the original strategy development 
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Foreword 

NHS South Tyneside and Sunderland CCGs are committed to ensuring that the 

Equality, Diversity and Inclusion (EDI) agenda and human rights are taken into 

account in everything we do, whether that is commissioning services, employing 

people, developing policies, communicating, consulting or involving people in our 

work.  

 

This strategy reflects the Equality Act 2010 which provides a legislative framework to:  

 

• Protect the rights of individuals and advance equality of opportunity for all  

• Update, simplify and strengthen the previous legislation; and  

• Deliver a simple, modern and accessible framework of discrimination law 

which protects individuals from unfair treatment and promotes a fair and 

more equal society.  

 

Our strategy describes a clear picture of the significant targets we have set in relation 

to EDI and human rights.  

 

It is a long-term commitment driven by both equalities legislation and by the needs 

and wishes of our local people and staff.  

 

We look forward to the work ahead, facing the challenges, and meeting the targets 

we have set ourselves. 

 

 

 

            
     

 

 

Dr Neil O’Brien      Dr Matthew Walmsley  Dr Ian Pattison 

Accountable Officer     Chair    Chair  

NHS County Durham,     NHS South Tyneside CCG NHS Sunderland CCG 

South Tyneside and  

Sunderland CCGs 
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 Introduction 

 

NHS South Tyneside and Sunderland CCGs are committed to ensuring that equality, 

diversity, inclusion and human rights are integral to everything we do, whether that is 

commissioning services, employing people, developing policies, communicating, 

consulting or involving people in our work.  

  

This strategy is founded on a long-term commitment to equality, diversity and 

inclusion, which is driven by the equalities’ legislation and the needs of our local 

people and staff.  

 

The strategy covers equality, diversity and inclusion (EDI) and these are defined as: 

 

• Equality - removing barriers and making sure people from all sections of the 

community have fair and equal opportunities to access services 

 

• Diversity - respecting and valuing people’s differences and treating them in 
an appropriate way 

 

• Inclusion - making sure that people feel comfortable to be themselves and 

feel that they belong. 

 

 Human Rights Act 1998  

 

As well as the above, the strategy takes account of the requirements contained within 

the Human Rights Act.  

 

Human rights are defined as: 

 

'Rights inherent to all human beings, whatever our nationality, place of residence, 

sex, national or ethnic origin, colour, religion, language, or any other status. We 

are all equally entitled to our human rights without discrimination. These rights are all 

interrelated, interdependent and indivisible.' 

 

 Equality Act 2010 

 

As a public sector organisation, NHS South Tyneside and Sunderland CCGs are 

required to publish its equality information to demonstrate compliance with the 

general equality duty as specified in the Equality Act 2010.  In summary this states : 

 

‘Those (organisations) subject to the general equality duty must, in the exercise of 

their functions, have due regard to the need to: 

• Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and 

other conduct prohibited by the Act. 

• Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a 

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2010/15/contents
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protected characteristic and those who do not. 

• Foster good relations between people who share a protected 

characteristic and those who do not.’ 
 

The Act covers the following protected characteristics: 

 

 
 

 

 

Further information on the protected characteristics can be found here 

 

 

 Meeting our Equality Duties 

 

This strategy is the first step in outlining our strategic direction to ensure compliance 

with the Public Sector Equality Duty and, highlights the national and local drivers that 

will shape and influence our approach. 

 

Additionally we must: 

• Prepare and publish one or more objectives to achieve any of the things 

mentioned in the aims of the general equality duty, and at least every four 

years thereafter. 

• Ensure that those objectives are specific and measurable. 

• Publish those objectives in such a manner that they are accessible to the 

public. 

 

For further information on the General and Specific Public Sector Equality Duties 

(PSED) please refer to appendix 1. 

 

https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/equality-act/protected-characteristics
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2.1 Our vision  

 

NHS Sunderland Clinical Commissioning Group’s vision is to achieve ‘Better Health 
for Sunderland by: 

• Transforming out of hospital care through joined up working across health and 

social care 

• Transforming in-hospital care, specifically urgent and emergency care 

• Enabling self-care and sustainability to ensure the NHS can survive now and in 

the future 

 

NHS South Tyneside CCG's visions is to work collaboratively across South Tyneside 

to improve health and commission excellent healthcare so that: 

• People are able to take greater responsibility for their own health 

• People are able to stay well in their own homes and communities 

• People receive timely and appropriate complex care 

 

South Tyneside and Sunderland CCGs are made up of local health professionals, 

using their clinical expertise and understanding of the local population to plan and 

fund (commission) healthcare services. 

 

As well as working together as commissioners, system-wide working creates 

opportunities to join up our involvement with partners and develop a different 

relationship with local people and communities. 

 

 

2.2 Leadership and governance 

 

The CCGs have governance and assurance systems and processes in place to 

ensure that all members of the organisation are aware of the actions required to 

support the equality, diversity and inclusion (EDI) agenda.  The governance 

processes also provide assurance that those organisations whose services are 

commissioned are also compliant with EDI legislation and standards.  

 

Equality, diversity and inclusion is governed and reports into the Executive 

Committees of each CCG which have delegated authority from each of the CCG 

Governing Bodies to manage EDI on their behalf. 

 

The Executive Committees ensure the CCGs are compliant with legislative, 

mandatory and regulatory requirements regarding EDI by: 

• Developing and delivering national and regional diversity related initiatives 

within the CCGs 

• Providing a forum for sharing issues and opportunities and monitors the 

achievement of key EDI objectives. 
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2.3 Our staff 

 

We actively work to remove any discriminatory practices in our work, eliminate all 

forms of harassment and promote equality of opportunity in our recruitment, training, 

performance management and development practices. We have policies and 

processes in place to support this and we monitor our staff data in relation to the 

Workforce Race Equality Standard (WRES) as set by NHS England. 

 

Each CCG routinely provides EDI and human rights training which is mandatory for 

all our staff and CCG Governing Body members. Enhanced training is also available 

as appropriate to individual roles. 

 

 

2.4 Our population and their health needs 

 

A clear understanding of the people we commission services for is key to meeting 

their needs and making best use of CCG resources. Understanding our population 

therefore remains a key priority in the EDI agenda. 

 

The combined population of South Tyneside and Sunderland is approximately 430,000 

people. 

 

The health of people in South Tyneside and Sunderland is generally worse than the 

England average. Sunderland is one of the 20% most deprived district authorities in 

England and over 23% of children live in low income families. Life expectancy for both 

men and women is lower than the England average. 

 

In South Tyneside and Sunderland over 24%  of children are classified as obese and the 

rate for alcohol-specific hospital admissions among those under 18 is worse than the 

average for England. Levels of teenage pregnancy, GCSE attainment, breastfeeding and 

smoking in pregnancy are also worse than the England average. 

 

The rate for alcohol-related harm hospital admissions, estimated levels of excess weight 

in adults, smoking prevalence in adults  and physically active adults  are worse than the 

England average. The rates of new sexually transmitted infections, killed and seriously 

injured on roads and new cases of tuberculosis and statutory homelessness  are better 

than the England average. 

 

The rates of violent crime under 75 mortality rate from cardiovascular diseases, under 75 

mortality rate from cancer and employment (aged 16-64) are worse than the England 

average. 
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Further information can be found at: 

• Public Health England:  Local Health 

• South Tyneside JSNA 

• Sunderland JSNA: JSNA 

 

The Public Health England local health summaries and RightCare Health inequalities 

Data Packs for South Tyneside and Sunderland CCGs can be found at appendix 2a 

and 2b respectively. 

 

 

 Communications and engagement 

 

How we talk to people, how we listen to what they have to say and we involve them in 

what we do is central to achieving our strategic objectives. We aim to have a real 

understanding of what matters to local people and communities, and to involve them 

plans and priorities in an honest, open, inclusive, accessible and transparent way. 

 

By involvement activity we mean: 

 

• Activity that aims to understand the views and experiences of people in South 

Tyneside and Sunderland - including patients, carers, members of the public, 

community and voluntary sector organisations and stakeholders 

• Using a range of appropriate and flexible involvement methods based upon best 

practice - including events, surveys, structured interviews, focus groups, 

discussions, or working with patient groups - depending on what is needed 

• Relationships with stakeholders, including voluntary and community sector 

(VCSO) organisations, patient/public representative groups and community 

influencers – locally, regionally and nationally 

• Reporting back on engagement activities and letting people know how their 

views and experiences have been taken into account, and what difference they 

have made.  

 

The terms involvement, engagement and participation are often used interchangeably 

and have similar meanings. For South Tyneside and Sunderland CCGs, we have 

chosen to use the term Involvement. 

 

The CCGs have agreed five involvement principles which they will apply when involving 

people:   

1. We will reach out to people to involve them in the right way to increase 

participation  

2. We will promote equality and diversity and encourage and respect different 

beliefs and opinions 

3. We will take the time to plan for involvement, including how we can work with 

partners, and feeding back 

http://www.localhealth.org.uk/
https://www.southtyneside.gov.uk/article/49425?utm_source=friendly_URL&utm_medium=all_marketing_materials&utm_campaign=jsna
https://www.sunderland.gov.uk/article/15183/Joint-Strategic-Needs-Assessment-JSNA-
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4. We will continue to build on our partnership relationships, in particular to 

ensure knowledge and capability is shared for the future. 

5. We will use a range of best practice involvement methods including both on-

line and off-line methods 

 

 

 What we need to do 

 

4.1 Equality Impact Assessments 

 

As public sector organisations, the CCGs have a statutory duty to promote equality 

and set out how we plan to meet the ‘general’ and ‘specific’ duties specified in the 
Public Sector Equality Duty.  Public sector equality duties give public bodies legal 

responsibilities to demonstrate that they are taking action to promote equality in 

relation to policy making, the delivery of services and employment.  

  

The CCGs have a duty to show that we have given ‘due regard’ to all protected 
groups. In order to demonstrate compliance with this duty, we need to undertake 

equality impact assessment (EIA) screening and full assessments where required.  

 

We understand the benefits of EIAs are to:  

• Promote all aspects of equality.  

• Identify whether certain groups are excluded from any of our services.  

• Identify any direct or indirect discrimination.   

• Assess if there is any negative impact on particular groups.  

• Promote good relations between people of different equality groups.  

• Act as a method to improve services.   

  

We know that by carrying out an EIA it increases patient and staff trust, enhances 

value for money, provides equal access to services and better customer experience, 

promotes social inclusion and aims to reduce health inequalities.  

 

We have updated and implemented the CCGs' EIA tools and guidance for use by 

staff to help identify likely equality implications of any of our policies, projects or 

functions. 

 

We will publish all EIAs, either as part of a policy document or separately, on our 

public websites. 

 

 

4.2 Equality Delivery System 

  

The Equality Delivery System (EDS) is a tool that has been designed by the NHS to 

enable organisations to analyse equality performance with the assistance of local 

stakeholders, prepare equality objectives and embed equality into mainstream 
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commissioning activities. 

 

The CCGs have adopted the EDS and we will continue to use this framework as an 

opportunity to raise equality in service commissioning and performance for the 

community, patients, carers and staff. 

 

We have developed our equality objectives to review and improve our performance 

and outcomes for people with characteristics protected by the Equality Act 2010. Our 

objectives and action plans have been developed in partnership with local 

stakeholders using the EDS process and are listed below: 

 

Objective 1 – Provide 

evidence that commissioned 

services are meeting the 

needs of patients and 

providing positive outcomes. 

Aim - We will involve, engage and listen to 

people from communities to inform the work 

of the CCG to improve health outcomes and 

reduce health inequalities for the CCG’s local 
population.   

Objective 2 – Monitor and 

review staff satisfaction to 

ensure they are engaged, 

supported and feel valued in 

their workplace. 

Aim - To maintain and retain a well-

supported, diverse, empowered, motivated 

and engaged workforce. Ensure staff are free 

from bullying and other harm; staff believe 

they have equal opportunities for career 

development; staff would recommend their 

organisation as a place or work or treatment 

Objective 3 – Ensure that the 

CCG Governing Body and 

Executive Committee actively 

leads and promotes Equality 

and Diversity throughout the 

organisation. 

Aim - Ensure the CCG Governing Body and 

Executive Committee actively leads on 

Equality and Diversity throughout the 

organisation and demonstrates that 

leadership is inclusive at all levels. 

 

 

4.3  Workforce Race Equality Standard  

 

The Workforce Race Equality Standard (WRES) is a mandatory part of the NHS 

standard contract and requires the CCGs to have due regard to the WRES in 

helping to improve workplace experiences and representation at all levels for our  

own BAME staff. 

 

The WRES has nine metrics, four specifically focusing on workforce data, four from 

the NHS staff survey and one requiring organisations to ensure that their Govenring 

Bodies or Boards are broadly representative of the communities they serve. 

 

The CCGs will ensure that WRES data is compiled and reported in line with NHS 

England and Improvement requirements.  
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4.4  Workforce Disability Equality Standard 

 

As commissioners of services, we understand we have a responsibility to ensure 

that the trusts we support have published their Workforce Disability Equality 

Standard metrics data and action plans.  

 

 

 4.5  Accessible Information Standard 

 

The Accessible Information Standard (AIS) asks organisations to make sure that 

patients with a disability, impairment or sensory loss receive information in formats 

that they can understand and receive appropriate support to help them to 

communicate. 

 

Commissioners of NHS and publicly-funded adult social care must have regard to the 

AIS, in so much as they must ensure that they enable and support compliance 

through their relationships with provider bodies. 

 

We will ensure we will comply with the standard by taking the following actions: 

 

• Ensuring that commissioning and procurement processes, including contracts, 

tariffs, frameworks and performance-management arrangements (including 

incentivisation and penalisation), with providers of health and / or adult social 

care reflect, enable and support implementation and compliance with the AIS  

 

• Seeking assurance from provider organisations of their compliance with the AIS 

including evidence of identifying, recording, flagging, sharing and meeting of 

needs. 

 

4.6 Sexual Orientation Monitoring (SOM) Information Standard 

 

NHS Digital, the Lesbian Gay Bisexual and Trans (LGBT) Foundation has led the 

work to develop a Sexual Orientation Monitoring Information Standard on behalf of 

NHS England and Improvement.  

 

As commissioners we will utilise this standard which provides a consistent 

mechanism for recording the sexual orientation of all patients/service users aged 16 

years across all health services in England.   

 

 

4.7  The People Plan and The People Promise 

NHS England and Improvement published We are the NHS: People Plan 2020/21 – 

action for us all, alongside the ‘Our People Promise', which set out what NHS people 

https://www.england.nhs.uk/publication/sexual-orientation-monitoring-full-specification/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/our-nhs-people-promise
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can expect from their leaders and from each other.  It focuses on how we must all 

continue to look after each other and foster a culture of inclusion and belonging, as 

well as take action to grow our workforce, train our people, and work together 

differently to deliver patient care. 

The EDI agenda features heavily in the plan and as commissioners we will ensure 

that our actions and objectives are underpinned by the following themes set out in the 

plan: 

• Looking after our people – with quality health and wellbeing support for 

everyone 

• Belonging in the NHS – with a particular focus on tackling the discrimination 

that some staff face 

• New ways of working and delivering care – making effective use of the full 

range of our people’s skills and experience 

• Growing for the future – how we recruit and keep our people, and welcome 

back colleagues who want to return 

 

Further information on the NHS People Plan 2020/21 can be found via the following 

link:     https://www.england.nhs.uk/ournhspeople/ 

 

 

 Conclusion 

 

NHS South Tyneside and Sunderland CCGs have developed detailed constitutional 

and governance arrangements to ensure the structures are in place to develop and 

maintain the organisation’s capacity to deliver on all statutory duties and 

responsibilities. 

 

Through this strategy, the CCGs will endeavour to work with and gain the support of, 

people with the right skills, competencies and capacity to ensure it can carry out all 

corporate and commissioning responsibilities, including the delivery of statutory functions 

including equality, diversity and inclusion as well as protecting people’s human rights.  
 

The CCGs will incorporate equality, diversity, inclusion into all aspects of its 

business plans, commissioning and organisational development plans to ensure a  

culture which is diverse, inclusive and upholds equality of opportunity and fairness 

for all. 

 

  

https://www.england.nhs.uk/ournhspeople/
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Appendix 1 - Equality Act 2010 Section 149 General / Specific Duties 

 

Equality Act 2010 Section 149 General / Specific Duties 

(1-3) 
General Duties Due Regard 

1 Eliminate discrimination, 

harassment, victimisation and any 

other conduct that is prohibited by 

or under the Equality Act 2010 

Remove or minimise disadvantages connected 

with a relevant protected characteristic (e.g. 

address the problems that women have in 

accessing senior positions in the workplace) 

Take steps to meet the different needs of persons 

who share a relevant protected characteristic (e.g. 

ensure the particular needs of BME women 

fleeing domestic violence are met) 

Encourage persons who share a relevant 

protected characteristic to participate in public life 

or any other activity in which they are under- 

represented (e.g. take steps to encourage more 

disabled people to apply for senior posts). 

2 Advance equality of opportunity 

between persons who share a 

relevant protected characteristic 

and persons who do not share it 

Tackle prejudice (e.g. tackle hate crime for people 

with protected characteristics) 

3 Foster good relations between 

persons who share a relevant 

protected characteristic and 

persons who do not share it. 

Promote understanding (e.g. promote an 

understanding of different faiths). 

NB Organisations that are not public authorities are also required to have due regard to the 

needs listed above whenever they carry out public functions. This could include, for 

example, a private company with a contract to provide certain public services. 

Specific Duties 

4 Publication of information 

Each public authority must publish information to show that it is complying with the 

s.149 duty by 31st January 2012 and at least on an annual basis after that. Authorities 

must include information about persons who share a protected characteristic who are its 

employees (if it has 150 or more employees) and its service users. 
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5 Equality objectives 

Each public authority must prepare and publish one or more objectives it thinks it should 

achieve to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination and harassment, to 

advance equality of opportunity or to foster good relations. Any objective must be 

specific and measurable. Authorities must publish their first objectives no later than 6 

April 2012 and at least every four years after that. 

6 Health Inequalities - The NHS Constitution states that the NHS has a duty to “…pay 
particular attention to groups or sections of society where improvements in health and life 

expectancy are not keeping pace with the rest of the population”.  
 

The Health and Social Care Act 2012 introduced the first legal duties on health 

inequalities, with specific duties on NHS England and CCGs. 

 

CCGs have duties to:  

 

Have regard to the need to reduce inequalities between patients in access to health 

services and the outcomes achieved;  

 

Exercise their functions with a view to securing that health services are provided in an 

integrated way, and are integrated with health-related and social care services, where 

they consider that this would improve quality, reduce inequalities in access to those 

services or reduce inequalities in the outcomes achieved ;  

 

Include in an annual commissioning plan an explanation of how they propose to 

discharge their duty to have regard to the need to reduce inequalities ;  
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Appendix 2a - Public Health England Local Health statistics  

 

• Sunderland CCG - https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/static-reports/health-

profiles/2019/E08000024.html?area-name=Sunderland 

 

• South Tyneside CCG - https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/static-reports/health-

profiles/2019/E08000023.html?area-name=South Tyneside 

 

• Public Health England - Local Authority Health Profile 2019 

 

 

 

 

Appendix 2b – RightCare Health Inequalities Data Packs 

 

• NHS Sunderland CCG RightCare Health Inequalities Data Pack:  

https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2018/12/ehircp-ney-sunderland-ccg-dec-

18.pdf 

 

• NHS South Tyneside CCG RightCare Health Inequalities Data Pack: 

https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2018/12/ehircp-ney-south_tyneside-ccg-

dec-18.pdf 

 

 

 

  

https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/static-reports/health-profiles/2019/E08000024.html?area-name=Sunderland
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/static-reports/health-profiles/2019/E08000024.html?area-name=Sunderland
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/health-profiles/data#page/13/gid/1938132696/pat/6/par/E12000001/ati/202/are/E08000022/cid/4
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2018/12/ehircp-ney-sunderland-ccg-dec-18.pdf
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2018/12/ehircp-ney-sunderland-ccg-dec-18.pdf
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2018/12/ehircp-ney-south_tyneside-ccg-dec-18.pdf
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2018/12/ehircp-ney-south_tyneside-ccg-dec-18.pdf
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Appendix 1 

 
    Equality Impact Assessment 

Initial Screening Assessment (STEP 1) 
 

As a public body organisation we need to ensure that all our current and proposed 
strategies, policies, services and functions, have given proper consideration to equality, 
diversity and inclusion, do not aid barriers to access or generate discrimination against 
any protected groups under the Equality Act 2010 (Age, Disability, Gender Reassignment, 
Pregnancy and Maternity, Race, Religion/Belief, Sex, Sexual Orientation, Marriage and 
Civil Partnership). 
 
This screening determines relevance for all new and revised strategies, policies, projects, 
service reviews and functions.  
 
Completed at the earliest opportunity it will help to determine: 

• The relevance of proposals and decisions to equality, diversity, cohesion and 
integration.   

• Whether or not equality and diversity is being/has already been considered for due 
regard to the Equality Act 2010 and the Public Sector Equality Duty (PSED). 

• Whether or not it is necessary to carry out a full Equality Impact Assessment. 
 

 

Name(s) and role(s) of person completing this assessment:  
 
Name: Hannah Brooks 
Job Title: Senior Governance Officer - EDI 
Organisation: NECS 
 
Title of the service/project or policy: EDS01 - Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Strategy 
 
Is this a;  

Strategy / Policy ☒Service Review ☐  Project ☐ 

Other Click here to enter text. 

 
 
What are the aim(s) and objectives of the service, project or policy:   
The Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Strategy outlines the CCGs' strategic direction to 

ensure compliance with the Public Sector Equality Duty and the Equality Act 2010, by 

having due regard to the need to: 

 
• Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other 

conduct prohibited by the 2010 Act; 
• Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected 

characteristic and those wo do not 
• Foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and 

those who do not. 
 

The strategy also highlights the national and local initiatives that will shape and influence 
the CCG’s approach and describes a clear picture of the significant targets the CCGs have 
set in relation to Equality, Diversity and Inclusion. 
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Who will the project/service /policy / decision impact? 
(Consider the actual and potential impact) 

• Staff ☒  

• Service User / Patients ☒      

• Other Public Sector Organisations☐ 

• Voluntary / Community groups / Trade Unions ☐ 

• Others, please specify Click here to enter text. 

 
  

Questions Yes No 

Could there be an existing or potential negative impact on any of the 
protected characteristic groups?  

☐ ☒ 

Has there been or likely to be any staff/patient/public concerns? ☐ ☒ 

Could this piece of work affect how our services, commissioning or 
procurement activities are organised, provided, located and by whom? 

☐ ☒ 

Could this piece of work affect the workforce or employment practices? ☐ ☒ 

Does the piece of work involve or have a negative impact on:  

• Eliminating unlawful discrimination, victimisation and harassment 

• Advancing quality of opportunity 

• Fostering good relations between protected and non-protected 
groups in either the workforce or community 

☐ ☒ 

 
If you have answered no to the above and conclude that there will not be a 
detrimental impact on any equality group caused by the proposed 
policy/project/service change, please state how you have reached that conclusion 
below:  
  

This Equality, Diversity and Inclusion strategy provides the strategic direction for 
compliance with the Equality Act 2010 and the Public Sector Equality Duty. The aims of the 
strategy itself is to promote a culture of belonging and foster inclusion. 
 

 

If you have answered yes to any of the above, please now complete the 
‘STEP 2 Equality Impact Assessment’ document 
 

Accessible Information Standard Yes No 

Please acknowledge you have considered the requirements of the 
Accessible Information Standard when communicating with staff and 
patients. 
 
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2017/10/accessible-
info-standard-overview-2017-18.pdf 
 

☒ ☐ 

Please provide the following caveat at the start of any written documentation: 

“If you require this document in an alternative format such as easy read, large 
text, braille or an alternative language please contact  (Jenna Easton, STCCG 

and SCCG EDI lead jenna.easton@nhs.net " 

https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2017/10/accessible-info-standard-overview-2017-18.pdf
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2017/10/accessible-info-standard-overview-2017-18.pdf
mailto:jenna.easton@nhs.net
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If any of the above have not been implemented, please state the reason: 

n/a 

 
 
Governance, ownership and approval 
 

 

Publishing 
 
This screening document will act as evidence that due regard to the Equality Act 2010 and 
the Public Sector Equality Duty (PSED) has been given.  
 
If you are not completing ‘STEP 2 - Equality Impact Assessment’ this screening document 
will need to be approved and published alongside your documentation. 
 
Please send a copy of this screening documentation to: NECSU.Equality@nhs.net 

for audit purposes. 
 
 
 

Please state here who has approved the actions and outcomes of the screening 

Name Job title Date 

D Cornell 
 

Head of Corporate Affairs 27 March 2021 

Presented to (Appropriate Committee) Publication Date 

STCCG Executive Committee – 29 April 2021 
 
SCCG Executive Committee – 6 April 2021 
 

1 May 2021 

mailto:NECSU.Equality@nhs.net
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Quality and Safety Committee 
9 February 2021, 2pm – 4pm 

Via Microsoft Teams  
 

Present:  
  Mrs Pat Harle, Lay Member (Chair) 

Mrs Debbie Burnicle, Lay Member for PPI 
Dr Claire Bradford, Medical Director  
Mr Derek Cruickshank, Secondary Care Clinician 
Dr Karthik Gellia, Executive GP  
Mrs Kirstie Hesketh, Head of Quality and Safety 
Ms Helen Osborn, Senior Clinical Quality Officer, NECS 
Mrs Wendy Proctor, Designated Nurse Safeguarding Adults 
Dr Ian Pattison, SCCG Chair 
Ms Gerry Taylor, Executive Director of Public Health and Integrated 

 Commissioning 
Mr Matthew Thubron, Head of Contracting, Performance and Business 

 Intelligence 
 
 
In Attendance: 
  Mrs Vicky McGurk, Head of CHC and Complex Cases (for item 2021/14 only)  
  Mrs Linda Reiling, Senior Commissioning Manager (Mental Health, Learning 
  Disabilities & Autism) Transforming Care Lead (Children & Adults) (for item 
  2021/15 only)  
  Jane Leighton, Governance Manager, South Tyneside and Sunderland CCGs 
  (observing) 

Ms Eleanor Hardy, PA (minutes) 
 
 
2021/01  Welcome and Introductions 
 

The Chair welcomed everyone present to the meeting and reminded members 
of the purpose of the committee.   

 
 
2021/02  Apologies for Absence 
  

Ms Deborah Cornell, Head of Corporate Affairs  
Mrs Ann Fox, Executive Director of Nursing Quality and Safety 

  Dr Neil O’Brien, Accountable Officer  
  Mrs Deanna Lagun, Deputy Director of Nursing Quality and Safety  
  Dr Saira Malik, Executive GP 
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2021/03   Declarations of Interest 

 
The Chair reminded all present that if any declarations became apparent 
during the meeting these should be declared at the time of the relevant 
agenda item.  
 
The Chair declared an interest in that she was also the lay member for quality 
and patient safety with South Tyneside CCG (STCCG) and the chair of 
STCCG Quality and Patient Safety Committee. This would be a standard 
declaration of interest item going forward.  
 
Ms Osborn declared an interest as she is also NECS Clinical Quality support 
to South Tyneside CCG; Mrs Hesketh declared an interest as she is also the 
Head of Quality for South Tyneside CCG. The Chair advised there were no 
material issues.  

 
The Chair declared the meeting as quorate. 

 
 
2021/04  Minutes of the meeting held on 8 December 2020   
 
  Following the wording in one sentence being amended, the minutes of the 

 meetings held on 8 December 2020 were AGREED as a true and accurate 
 record of the meeting. 

 
 
2021/05  Matters Arising  
 

  The Chair referred to page 3 of the minutes “It was agreed for Mrs Lagun to 
consider inclusion of the risks related to vaccine delivery and EU Exit to the 
Quality & Safety Risk Register” and queried for assurance whether this had 
been looked at.  It was agreed this would be taken offline and Mrs Hesketh 
would check this for assurance.  

  
 Action: Mrs Hesketh   

 
 
2021/06  Action Log  
 

All actions were discussed and updated on the action log. Action 11 was 
closed and would be removed from the action log.  
 
 

  GOVERNANCE 
 

2021/07 Quality and Safety Risks 
 
  The report provided an overview of the quality and safety risks currently on 
  the risk register from the period 30 November 2020 to 26 January 2021. 
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• Two new risks had been added, both assessed as Low: risk 2422 
(scored 9) relating to the deferred assessment trajectory and risk 2421 
(scored 4) relating to risks to the CHC recovery plan in not meeting the 
28-day assessment timeframe and/or going outside the 6-week 
treasury funding. 

• One risk (ref 2308) had been closed scored 9 – Low, relating to the 
pause of CHC assessments during COVID. 

 
  The Chair noted that a Lead needed to be identified for each action.  
 
  Action: Mrs Hesketh 
 
  The Quality and Safety Committee RECEIVED the report and NOTED the 

 actions being taken to address the risks.   
 
 
2021/08  Proposal for Joint Cycle of Business 
 
  It was noted a first draft was in place and a number of queries to be picked up.  

 The proposed Joint Cycle of Business would be taken to the first Joint Quality 
 and Safety Committee for approval and would evolve during these 
 exceptional times.  

 
The Quality and Safety Committee AGREED that the proposed Joint Cycle of 
Business would be taken to the first Joint Quality and Safety Committee for 
approval 
 
 
 

2021/09  Refreshed Shared Commitment to Quality - for review & comment 
 

 Comments on the draft consultation had already been sought from ICS quality 
group members and were due to be submitted by 1 February.  Mrs Hesketh 
advised, despite the timeframe of the Quality and Safety Committee meeting 
being on 9 February, the Executive Director of Nursing, Quality and Safety felt 
it pertinent that this document be shared with the committee to allow 
opportunity for comment.  Any comments would still be shared with the 
National Quality Board despite the timing, and would also be greatly received 
to support shaping the content of a revised CCG quality strategy.    

 
 The two questions which committee menbers were asked to comment on 

were: 
1. Does it meet the objectives above and the needs of systems and 

associated partnerships?   
2. Is there anything that could be improved in the document?   

 
 Following discussions, the Committee members noted: 

• Agreed with key principles of collaboration and the recognition of the 
importance of patient experience being sought and used and a focus 
on addressing inequalities. 
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• However the second question asked was about how, who, where, 
when; ensure we had placed based leaders and clinical 
input/leadership (which CCG Chairs had noted).  

• Members felt that more clarity was required regading structures below 
ICS level. 

• Our ICS was the largest in England and this was not described in the 
document; need to be pushing for more information at Place level 

• Does not feel bottom up at all 

• Potential for gaps opening and level of detail a great concern 

• Role of Commissioner clearly identified but where responsibility for this 
would be in the future ICS arrangements was currently unclear. 

  
 The Committee members were asked to send all comments to Mrs Hesketh by 

the end of this week.  The Chair requested that when all comments had been 
received, Mrs Hesketh sent out the final version to the committee members. 

 
 The Quality and Safety Committee RECEIVED the report for information and 

comment and AGREED to send all comments to Mrs Hesketh by 12 February 
2021.          

 
    
  PATIENT SAFETY  
 
2021/10  Quality Action Plan  
 
  Mrs Hesketh highlighted key points within the report and action plan: 
 

• The Quality and Safety action plan was developed in conjunction with 
the 2018 - 21 Quality strategy to support implementation.   

• The report captured progress as of February 2021 compared to the last 
position received at the Quality and Safety Committee in February 
2020.  

• The action plan was inclusive of completed actions since the last 
update and showed progress against any outstanding. 

• A revised action plan would be developed to support implementation of 
a new  quality strategy for 2021. 
 

  A proposal for a quality and safety framework had been shared with ATB 
 colleagues in autumn 2020 however the ATB had requested a pause while 
 they awaited their new Director of Nursing (DoN) taking up in post. It was felt 
 that the DoN needed to be given the opportunity to support development and 
 influence any proposal.  This post had now been recruited to, Elaine Coghill 
 from STSFT, Elaine would be meeting with the CCG Director of Nursing 
 Quality and Safety and Mrs Hesketh on 17 February.  Mrs Hesketh advised 
 that the foundations for a quality and safety framework were there and just 
 needed to be implemented.  

 
  A query was raised with regard to whether a reduction was being seen with 

 pressure ulcer numbers. Mrs Hesketh advised that this was on the Care 
Home Groups Action Log and a reduction was being seen from a Trust 
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perspective.  However it was important not to lose the momentum.  The Chair 
requested that information about the number of pressure ulcers was included 
in the next Care Home Report.  

 
 Action: Mrs Hesketh 
 
 It was noted that pressure ulcers were used as a proxy measure for quality 

and safety and having sight of this data would provide assurance that 
numbers were going in the right direction.  

 
 The Chair referred to the quality and safety framework for ATB and noted it 

would be good for the Quality and Safety Committee to see this at the next 
meeting in April.  

 
 Action: Mrs Hesketh 
 
 The Quality and safety Committee RECEIVED the report for information. 

 
 
2021/11  Safeguarding Report 
 
  The report advised the Committee of key safeguarding activity and levels of 

 assurance regarding statutory compliance within the CCG and across the 
 health economy.  Mrs Proctor highlighted key points; 

• There was currently a gap with the Named GP for Safeguarding 
Children being on long term absence.  However the Named GP for 
Safeguarding Adults had stepped in and was doing a half day each 
week in this role up to the end of February. 

• Level three online safeguarding training had been delivered to primary 
care services with positive feedback and an online training programme 
for 2021 was in place. 

• Re-establishing the TiTo (Time in Time Out) in a remote format in 
March. 

• OFSTED had confirmed that they would not be undertaking a 4th 
monitoring visit to Sunderland’s Together for Children (TfC) as 
anticipated in quarter 3. A new date was expected soon.  

 
   Ms Taylor referred to the Child Death Overview Panel (CDOP) and queried 

 whether any issues would be provided in the Safeguarding Report and Mrs 
 Proctor confirmed this was correct.  A query was raised as to would learning 
 points for general practice also be included in the Safeguarding Report.  Mrs 
Proctor confirmed that significant learning from cases was shared with Primary 
Care.  The Chair requested that this was also included in the next 
Safeguarding Report.  

 
  Action: Mrs Proctor 
 
  The Chair noted it was good to see that the Designated Nurse for Looked 

After Children, Jo Morgan, was in post from 4 January. 
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  The Chair referred to Safeguarding Adult referrals and reported domestic 
abuse incidents falling in quarter 3 and asked whether the work to understand 
specific learning around this had commenced. Mrs Proctor confirmed this was 
underway and being reviewed.  

 
  The Chair referred to the Named GP for Safeguarding Children being on long 

term absence and queried whether this had an impact on staff with regard to 
sustainability.  Mrs Proctor advised there was a robust Safeguarding Team in 
place and a tasks and audit piece of work had been undertaken to identify 
cover arrangements which Primary Care had been aware of. With regards to 
longer term plans, Mrs Bradford advised that Mrs Lagun had given assurance 
that there was no adverse impact on delivery of the service at the moment and 
the CCG was working on a sustainable model for the future. 

 
  The Quality and Safety Committee RECEIVED the report and NOTED the 

assurance provided.  
 
 
2021/12  Okendon Report 
 
  The report provided the Committee with a summary of the emerging findings 

 and recommendations from the recently published Independent Review of 
 Maternity services at Shrewsbury and Telford Hospital NHS Trust, otherwise 
 known as the Ockenden report. The report also included a number of actions 
 for all maternity services across England to ensure safe effective service 
 delivery.  STSFT had completed these actions to timescale.  There were also 
 regular updates on Okendon to the Directors of Nursing coming from 
 Margaret Kitching, the Regional Chief Nurse and Regional Chief Midwife as 
 well as LMS representaion in the form of Annie Topping and Chris Piercy from  
 an Executive Nurse perspective.  

 
  It was noted it was reassuring STSFT had met all of the actions in timescale. 

 A question was raised about about the identity of the STSFT Trust Non 
Executive nominated as per the national requirement.  Mrs Hesketh agreed to 
clarify and circulate the answer. 

 
  The Chair noted on the report coversheet it stated CCGs needed to ensure 

 they had representation at LMS meetings and at place where as in the actual 
 report it stated the LMS Chair must hold CCG Board level membership.  Mrs 
 Hesketh confirmed the two CCG Executive Nurses attended the meeting but 
 the Chair of the North LMS Committee was the Medical Director of Gateshead 
 Foundation Trust.  This needed to be explored with the LMS as the whole 
 report  aspect was written before the new architecture was known.  The Chair 
 requested some clarity going forward. 

 
  Action: Mrs Hesketh 
 

It was noted that the review into the Trust concerned highlighted that the 
culture in that unit was completely embedded and questioned why it had 
never come to the fore. This was a salutary lesson in making sure quality and 
patient safety was at the right level and of sufficient robustness as well.   
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  The Quality and Safety Committee would receive a summary report when the 

 second report was released, and updates would be included in the Quality 
 Assurance Report going forward. 

 
  Action: Mrs Hesketh 
 
  The Quality and Safety Committee RECEIVED the report for information. 
   

 
QUALITY IN COMMISSIONED SERVICES  

 
2021/13 Quality Assurance Exception Report  
 

The report outlined any key risks to quality for the CCG’s main commissioned 
providers, as well as actions and related assurances, whilst outlining any 
contractual changes included in the providers’ standard contracts. In addition 
to this the report detailed information regarding primary care reporting to the 
Safeguard Incident & Risk Management System (SIRMS) and infection 
prevention and control.  Ms Osborn highlighted key points: 
 
 STSFT reported a Never Event in December; this was the 3rd to be reported in 
2020/21 and the 4th in the last 12 month.  The Health Care Safety investigation 
Branch Report into their analysis of Never Events was included in the final 
slide of the report for information.  A recommendation had been made to NHS 
England/Improvement to revise the list of Never Events as so many of them 
were occurring around certain criteria.  It was hoped a response would be 
received soon.  
 
There were a number of slides relating to Covid/Mortality and Infection 
Prevention Control which included the findings from the NHSE supportive visit 
in December. Feedback from this visit had been very positive.  
 
 Mrs Burnicle referred to the document embedded in slide 13 that referred to 
Primary Care.  The document noted it requested approval for changes to the 
Primary Care dashboard from the Quality and Safety Committee. The Chair 
advised it had been requested that the Committee were aware of the content 
and any changes to the dashboard.  Ms Osborn confirmed although some 
data would not be shown on the dashboard that went to the Local Quality 
Group; all of the data would still be reviewed by the sub-group so that 
intelligence would not be lost.  The requested change had been to make the 
dashboard more meaningful and easier to read. The other key change was to 
change the frequency of the Local Quality Group from 6 weekly to quarterly 
which would fit better with the availability of data. Mrs Burnicle noted it had 
been proposed that Clinical Breaches and NHSE/I complaints should be 
removed from the dashboard and queried why.  Ms Osborn advised for clinical 
breaches, the group was aware of these anyway and complaints data was 
only the complaints that would go to NHSE/I and did not include complaints 
that were raised directly to practices, the latter were by far a much greater 
number. Dr Bradford advised if practices had been subjected to breaches, 
they would have been subjected to investigation and by virtue of this would 
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make the practice flag red.  This was not ignoring information just capturing it 
in a different way.  
 
Mr Cruickshank noted the report was very comprehensive and acknowledged 
the effort that had gone into it was reassuring. With regard to the mortality 
rates at STSFT and the issue around nosocomial infection, the report had 
provided assurance that nothing untoward had happened and Mr Cruickshank 
was grateful for the visit to STSFT by the NHSE/I IPC Lead and this had also 
been assuring. Mr Cruikshank was however disappointed that nosocomial 
infection had not been mentioned at all in the NEQOS slide.  
 
Dr Bradford noted the report in the summer reflected the journey all had been 
on which had moved on a lot more in terms of the information we have on 
what happened to patients and staff in the hospital environment with regard to 
staff to staff, patient to patient etc. transmission.  There had not been a 
screening system and ongoing testing in the hospital environment until 
relatively recently and this was something we would continue to have more 
information on in real time.  Of concern was the changes in the nature of 
mutations of the virus and the fatigue that patients, relatives and staff have in 
relation to maintaining really effective infection prevention control and this was 
something that needed to be focused on by everyone. 
 
 At this point in the meeting Mrs Burnicle took over as Chair 
 
With regards to infection prevention control, it was noted that in GP surgeries 
everything was wiped down after each patient, but it had been suggested this 
was not happening in hospitals where when asked about this it had been said 
everything was wiped down at the end of each day.  It was questioned 
whether this was something that should be looked into.  Mrs Hesketh advised 
that the national guidance clarified that everything should be wiped down 
periodically rather than after every movement as this in itself may cause 
issues, but she would ask the question and feedback to the Committee.  
It was noted that one of the many returns that the hospital had to give to NHS 
England was to provide assurance that toilets were cleaned at least 7 times 
each day.  
 
Action: Mrs Hesketh 
   
The Chair returned to the meeting at this point. 
 
The Chair asked for assurance that feedback from care homes in terms of 
level of support/needs was being captured.  Mrs Hesketh confirmed that it was 
and would be incorporated into the next report.  
 
It was noted that the data in the Cancer Audit document embedded on the last 
slide of the report was from 2016-2018 and the 2 Trusts had now merged. It 
was advised that this document had just been released in January and the 
next version would be for the combined Trust.  
 
 The Chair noted it would be interesting to receive feedback from the “Talk 
before you Walk” (TBYW) initiative.  Mrs Hesketh advised that an overview of 
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the TBYW evaluation would be presented at the February Quality Review 
Group and could then be shared with this Committee.  
 
 Action: Mrs Hesketh 

 
  The Quality and Safety Committee RECEIVED the report for assurance.  
 
 
2021/14 NHS Continuing Healthcare (CHC) and Packages of Care 

 
The report provided the Committee with an update on the future quality and 
safety for Care Packages across Sunderland and the associated quality 
assurance of services commissioned. Mrs McGurk provided an update to the 
Committee: 
 
The CHC Team was doing well with business-as-usual assessments and 
maintaining KPIs.  Regarding deferred assessments, these were 150 behind 
trajectory but because of the planned managed service Mrs McGurk was 
marginally confident that these would be concluded by the end of March which 
was the given timeframe.   
 
From a quality point of view, there was internal quality assurance and also 
external quality assurance that would be implied by the managed service to 
ensure the quality was not impacted.  
 
There were workforce pressures due to retirement, absence and staff being 
redeployed into Infection Prevention Control.  However, there were 
experienced agency staff that were supporting the team so was being 
managed.  
 
The team was expecting an influx of appeals when funding changes for 
people.  
 
The post of Clinical Quality Lead had been recruited to and would be in post 
on 22 March 2021. 
 
There had been no significant quality issues in Sunderland however there had 
been an issue with Barchester Care Homes, not specifically in Sunderland but 
had been highlighted in Gateshead and South Tyneside.  The issue was that 
they were not allowing professional colleagues and district nurses into the 
care home without having a Covid test.  This had now been resolved but Mrs 
McGurk wanted the Committee to be aware of this. Mrs Hesketh noted that no 
safeguarding referrals had been made regarding staff not being able to enter 
the care homes in Sunderland. This issue had been escalated to the national 
team and the Trust had produced a letter to reinforce the message that its 
staff were able to be tested twice each week.  
 
Mrs McGurk advised that some clients had personal health budgets paid 
through the council.  The CHC Team had worked along with the council to 
ensure that those that employed their own PA teams were also on the list for 
vaccinations.  
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It was queried whether there was any further update with regard to Section 
4.1.1 of the report “There remains no dedicated resource for appeals” and 
whether the CHC team had any connection with Health Watch knowing that 
people were going to be appealing.  Mrs McGurk advised the team had 
previously worked with Health Watch and were keen to do so again.  A 
business case was underway to look at what could be done about lack of 
resources as it was a resource that was always under pressure.  Some 
progress had been made with some local resolution, but this was not as rapid 
as would like to be seen.  It was noted that Health Watch could help to get the 
message out to people.  Mrs McGurk advised that the team was informing 
people who were having a MDT through the CHC process that the managed 
service was an extension of the CHC Team and if they had any queries about 
this to ask the team.    

 
 The Quality and Safety Committee RECEIVED the report NOTED the update 

and RECEIVED assurance that progress was being made, the identified risks 
and issues were being managed and quality assurance mechanisms of 
commissioned services were developing further in line with recovery 

 
 
2021/15 Learning Disabilities/Transforming Care Report 
 
  The report provided an update and assurances around the CCGs position with 

regards to delivery of work aligned to delivering the transforming care agenda 
work programme. 

 
 Mrs Reiling advised the Committee the main area of concern was the risk of 

delivering annual health checks and this had been added to the Corporate 
Risk Register. Assurance was given that Primary Care had worked incredibly 
hard during the pandemic and had continued to deliver health checks to 
individuals with a learning disability. The CCG had put in additional capacity to 
support practices so if on track for the trajectory to deliver health checks in 
Primary Care by the end of March, there should be a shortfall of 84 health 
checks per week to reach the 67% target by the end of the financial year.  Mrs 
Reiling reiterated without the quality of health checks it would be tokenistic 
and she wanted to ensure the Committee that Sunderland had a quality 
framework in place and that was why Sunderland had an exemplar site status 
and all annual health checks were being delivered to that standard.  

 
 In terms of percentages Mrs Reiling noted that some areas looked like they 

were doing better than Sunderland but it was important to look at the data and 
the size of the registers as Sunderland had a much bigger area than some 
other areas.  

 
 A “Find the missing patient” exercise had been issued in December and the 

CCG was confident it was doing everything possible to meet the 67% target.  
However, this had been noted as a risk, but any short fall would be very small. 
Year on year the CCG was increasing its target and making significant 
improvement in terms of quality and helped to proactively manage and 
maintain the mental health and wellbeing of individuals in the community.  
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 The CCG had completed 3 rounds of its 8 weekly commissioner oversight 

visits for individuals in specialist inpatient facilities who had a learning 
disability and/or autism. These visits focussed on the patient and their 
experience providing an opportunity for them to build relationships with their 
local commissioner. It was hoped that these would be an addition to the 
quality and safety monitoring oversight that takes place for individuals in 
hospital. The next visits would be taking place face to face rather than 
remotely.  

 
 With regard to the LeDeR programme and the actions from the learning report 

of mortality reviews for individuals with a learning disability, Mrs Reiling 
advised the Committee the main areas were around respiratory conditions 
which Sunderland was already addressing, and its flu protocol helped with this 
especially at this time of year.  Sunderland’s successful application for 
exemplar site was in recognition of how its flu immunisations were delivered; 
data showed this was projected to be 75% which was a significant increase 
from previous years which had been between 50-52%.  The CCG was also 
pushing forward with Covid vaccinations too.  

 
 In recent years the CCG had rolled out identification tools for sepsis to health 

and social care homes across the city and it had been evidenced that these 
tools had supported the health and wellbeing of individuals in their homes to 
identify any such risks.   

 
 With regard to preventing people going into hospital unnecessarily, 

Sunderland had an established record of proactive support for this with the 
Community Enhanced Model of Care, MDT meetings and treatment reviews at 
the earliest opportunity to ensure support capacity was available to maintain 
that safe place in the community and avoid hospital admissions.   

 
 There was a section in the learning report around constipation and Mrs Reiling 

advised this linked in with the work with the community treatment teams and 
care teams around care and support plans in place ensuring that when 
individuals were at risk of constipation, this was included in their annual health 
check along with medication reviews. 

 
 The fifth area of the learning report outlined Cancer.  The CCG had worked 

collaboratively around cancer and screening with local Trusts and had an 
“action for health” website which had a range of easy reading information for 
people with cancer. There was also a health promotion team that supported 
those on an end-of-life plan or may have increased risk to attend screening 
appointments.  

 
 There was an area within the learning report around Epilepsy and DNA 

records and the CCG had plans in place that were already addressing these 
and Mrs Reiling gave assurance to the Committee that these were being 
proactively managed and would be included in the next Learning 
Disabilities/Transforming Care Report. 
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 The Committee thanked Mrs Reiling and her team and acknowledged the 
enormous effort taken to get this work turned around and for Sunderland to 
have obtained exemplar status.  

 
 With regard to patients with learning disabilities in Sunderland, it was noted 

that the Covid death statistics looked quite stark and was quite a marked 
outlie.  Mrs Reiling advised she had asked colleagues in hospitals to pull 
together the data set for deaths in Sunderland patients with learning 
disabilities and this would be included in the next Learning 
Disabilities/Transforming Care Report presented to the Committee in April.  

 
 It was noted that deaths in patients with learning disabilities in relation to 

Covid was a national issue.  With regard to flu immunisations in Sunderland 
the numbers were good as was the quality arrangements for health checks.  It 
was queried if Sunderland achieved the 67% target for health checks in 
2020/2021 would the remaining 33% be priority for 2021/22 to be done as 
quickly as possible particularly in the light of Covid.  Mrs Reiling advised the 
annual health checks ran from 1 April to the end of March therefore by the 1 
April the next years delivery of health checks would be started therefore there 
was no catch up. Everyone had their health check the same time each year 
and what the CCG was aiming for was to increase numbers on a month-by-
month basis; the CCG was working with practices around those patients that 
had declined health checks to increase the level of engagement and to 
understand why they were declining. For next year Mrs Reiling advised the 
push would be for 75% delivery of health checks.  

 
 It was noted it would be helpful to know the proportion of learning disability 

patients that never had an annual health check. Mrs Reiling would include this 
in the next Learning Disabilities/Transforming Care Report. 

 
 Action: Mrs Reiling 
 
 Mrs Hesketh advised there was a National piece of work being undertaken 

with regard to LeDeR to look at the whole LeDeR programme to have a 
greater focus on learning and to look at potential changes to LeDeR reviews 
and minimalise variation. Once this work had been completed Mrs Hesketh 
would present a paper to the Committee around the outcome.  

 
 Action: Mrs Hesketh 
 
 With regard to face-to-face commissioner visits in the hospital setting, it was 

queried whether visitors would wear appropriate PPE and it was confirmed 
that they would and would adhere to social distancing principles. 

   
 The Quality and Safety Committee RECEIVED the report NOTED the content 

and ACKNOWLEDGED the risk and the actions in place to mitigate that risk. 
 
 

ITEMS FOR INFORMATION  
 
2021/16  Cycle of Business  
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  The Chair asked if Committee members were assured we were covering the 

 necessary items and all confirmed that they were. 
 
  The Quality and Safety Committee RECEIVED the cycle of business for 

 information.  
 
 
2021/17  Cumbria and North East Quality Surveillance Group Update, 7 January 

 2021 
 
  Unfortunately, Mrs Lagun was not able to join the meeting today therefore the 

 Chair requested that Mrs Hesketh pulled together relevant bullet points from 
 the meeting on 7 January and circulate to the Committee and highlight any 
 items for escalation. 

 
  Action: Mrs Hesketh 

 
  The Committee RECEIVED the update for information. 

 
 

2021/18 North East Ambulance Service Foundation Trust QRG minutes, 9 
October 2020 

 
 The Chair noted the discussion on the winter planning, key issues facing 

organisations in relation to Covid in particular patients in ambulances, the 
verbal quality impact of talk before you walk discussions and the IPC 
discussion regarding staff weariness and the impact from that regarding 
compliance had been interesting to read.  It was good to see the learning from 
the first wave and that NEAS had taken on the learning from other 
organisations as well.  

 
 Mrs Hesketh advised the detail with regard to staff weariness and the impact 

of this would be included in the next Quality Assurance Report in April.  
 
 Action: Mrs Hesketh 
 
 
2021/19 Cumbria, Northumberland Tyne and Wear Foundation Trust Quality 

Review Group minutes, 13 August 2020   
 
 The Quality and Safety Committee RECEIVED the minutes for information. 
 
 
  ANY OTHER BUSINESS 
 
2021/20  Any issues for escalation  
 
  The Chair would escalate this Committees assurance on mortality at 

 STSFT to the Governing Body.  It was noted the thoroughness of assurance 
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 and hard work and effort of STSFT to provide the information the Quality and 
 Safety Committee needed was very reassuring.  

 
 

  To be confirmed - Via Microsoft Teams 
  

  Signed:    
 
   
 
 
  Date: 13 April 2021 
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Proposes specific action  
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GOVERNING BODY 

 
25 MAY 2021 

Report Title: 
 

Quality and Safeguarding Update  
 

Purpose of report 

The following update provides the Governing Body with a succinct single page document 
highlighting quality and safeguarding activity across Sunderland Clinical Commissioning Group and 
its commissioned services.   

Key points 

• The update includes a brief overview of information reported at the Quality Safety 
Committee, the details of any key quality assurance exceptions, patient safety updates and 
also provides the members with a brief update on infection control.    

• Any key changes in legislation are reflected and a brief synopsis of safeguarding activity is 
presented.  

 

Risks and issues 

• Changes to the Learning from Deaths Review Programme (LEDER), renamed 'The 
Learning from lives and deaths - People with a learning disability and autistic people' 
programme may require funding contributions from all CCGs to support a robust Integrated 
Care System (ICS) approach. The funding may be required to support the LEDER 
workforce and governance processes required to deliver the ambitions of the new national 
policy.      

• There is a significant focus on maternity services with the publication of the Ockenden 
report and effective delivery of the associative immediate and essential actions. The 
Ockenden review requires local maternity systems (LMS) to take greater responsibility  
and accountability for the safety and quality of maternity services. The 2021/22 priorities 
and operation planning guidance also mandates some changes to LMS governance and as 
a result the 3 LMSs in the region will be merging later this year.   
        

Assurances  

• Any quality or safeguarding concerns are discussed at the CCG Quality and Safety 
Committee and respective Quality Review groups with providers. 

• Key quality risks that may have an impact on the wider health care system are shared with 
the Cumbria and North East Quality Surveillance Group.   

        

Recommendation/Action Required 

The Governing Body is asked to note the content of the update and offer suggestions for 
improvement.    
 



 

 

 

Sponsor/approving directors   
Ann Fox, Executive Director of Nursing, Quality and 
Safety   

Report author Kirstie Hesketh, Head of Quality and Patient Safety   

Governance and Assurance 

Link to CCG corporate objectives  (please tick all that apply) 

CO1:Develop and support system transformation and  ensure a well-led organisation  

CO2:  Maintain financial control and performance   

CO3: Maintain and improve quality of CCG commissioned services ✓ 

CO4:Identify and deliver the CCG’s strategic priorities  

CO5: Covid-19 Response and Recovery  

Relevant legal/statutory issues 

 

Any potential/actual conflicts 
of interest associated with the 
paper? (please tick) 

Yes  No ✓ N/A  

If yes, please specify  

Equality analysis completed 
(please tick)  

Yes  No  N/A ✓ 

Quality impact assessment 
undertaken  
(please tick) 

Yes  No  N/A ✓ 

 If no, please specify  yes, please specify  

Key implications 

Are additional resources 
required?   

 
No 

Has there been appropriate 
clinical engagement?  

Not applicable 

Has there been/or does there 
need to be any patient and 
public involvement? 

Not applicable 

Is there an expected impact on 
patient outcomes/experience?  
If yes, has a quality impact 
assessment been undertaken? 

Not applicable   

Has there been member 
practice and/or other 
stakeholder engagement if 
needed?   

Not applicable  
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Quality Assurance/ Exceptions  

• Mortality: The most up to date Summary Hospital-level Mortality Indicator (SHMI) data for period October 2019 to September  
  2020 shows that South Tyneside and Sunderland NHS Foundation Trust (STSFT) mortality rate has increased from 108 to 109.7.  
  However, this is still within expected limits. CCG representatives attend the Trust mortality committee.   

• Care Quality Commission (CQC): CQC have announced that inspections into GP services rated “requires improvement” and  
 “inadequate” will resume in April 2021, focusing on safety, effectiveness and leadership.  

• Risk assessments: Collaborative work is underway between Cumbria, Northumberland, Tyne and Wear NHS Foundation Trust 
  (CNTWFT) and Tees, Esk and Wear Valleys NHS Trust (TEWVFT) to develop a patient narrative risk assessment tool for use by all 
  mental health services within the Integrated care system (ICS); primary care networks and local authorities will also be invited to  
  contribute towards this work.     
 

•

•

Highlights  

• Duty of Candour:  the CQC 
have updated their guidance 
for providers on Regulation 
20 - duty of candour to help 
make it clear what providers 
must do to meet the 
requirements of the 
regulation and the 
circumstances in which it 
must be applied. 

• Ockenden: Publication of 
the 2nd report is awaited. 
STSFT have met the 
deadline for their assurance 
submission and will soon 
upload evidence to the 
NHSE portal. The CCG 
were assured at the April 
Quality Review Group of the 
actions they are taking to 
address the learning from 
Ockenden. The new 
planning guidance highlights 
the significant focus that is 
being place on maternity to 
support improvements and 
to facilitate the delivery of 
the 'saving babies' lives' 
bundles and the maternity 
transformation measures 
outlined in the NHS Long 
Term Plan. The 3 local 
maternity systems will 
merge later this year to 
support better oversight and 
governance across the ICS.   
 

LeDeR  
• The Learning from Deaths Review Programme (LeDeR) has 

been renamed 'The Learning from lives and deaths - People with 
a learning disability and autistic people' programme. This 
followed the publication of a new LeDeR policy on the 23rd March 
2021, which now includes people with autism and is focused at 
driving improvements in care.  

• The responsibility for ensuring the delivery of LeDeR reviews 
currently lies with CCGs but responsibility for LeDeR and 
ensuring reviews are completed for our local areas will transfer to 
the ICS. 

• The LeDeR Programme was initially led by the University of 
Bristol which included overall responsibility for the direction of 
any reviews, operation of the web platform and analysis of 
LeDeR data; this contract ends in May 2021.   

• In response to the limitations of the existing web platform NHSE 
are hoping that the development of a new web-based platform 
will help streamline reviews. Consistent themes over the years 
has been delays in accessing records, resulting inevitably in 
delays in reviews being completed to timescale. NHSE is 
therefore recommending all reviewers are provided with smart 
card access to clinical records to speed up access to the right 
notes at the right time, and reduce unnecessary burden on 
clinical teams, especially primary care.  

• ICSs are required to have a clear plan in place by 30 September 
2021 for the new quality assurance structures and processes 
which will be implemented for LeDeR and are to be operational 
by 1 April 2022.  

• Dialogue is underway regionally to discuss a framework to 
support implementation of the new policy.      

  Patient Safety 

• NHSE have completed a review into the removal of the 
'wrong tooth' category from the never events (NE) list for 
wrong site surgery. Experts deemed that barriers to 
prevent the removal of wrong teeth are not strong 
enough to prevent this type of incident from occurring in 
all cases. Any wrong tooth removal occurring after 1 
April 2021 will not need to be reported as a NE. All other 
reporting requirements remain in place, including local 
incident reporting processes and onward upload to the 
National Reporting and Learning System (NRLS). 

• A new patient safety syllabus is being developed to 
support a systems approach to safety. When launched 
the syllabus will build a critical mass of new thinking 
about patient safety, such that future generations of staff 
will be skilled in proactive approaches to safety, know 
how to identify hazard and risk and understand and 
apply relevant aspects of human factors. The CCGs 
Patient Safety specialist has agreed to help support the 
review of level 1 of the Patient Safety Syllabus modules 
by seeking comments from a wide range of NHS staff to 
ensure this content is fit for purpose.   
  

•
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With contributions from the CCG 
safeguarding team    

 Infection, Prevention and Control (IPC) 

• The permanent Band and 7 and Band 6 IPC Nurses are now in post and are currently developing systems to support robust 
delivery of IPC processes across primary medical services and the care home sector.    

• Across South Tyneside and Sunderland the service has carried out face to face training to more than 900 Care home staff. Themes 
remain around inappropriate use of personal protective equipment (PPE), cleaning of high touch points and complex patients.   

• During the month of April the IPC team have responded to 1 Covid outbreak in Sunderland. This was in a Learning Disability unit 
and further training and advice has been given regarding personal protective equipment.    

• The Care Quality Commission (CQC) carried out a focused inspection of Infection Prevention and Control (IPC) at South Tyneside 
and Sunderland NHS Foundation Trust (STSFT) on 2 and 3 March 2021. The findings were positive, staff felt supported, and 
valued and Leaders operated effective IPC governance processes and there was an evidence of a commitment to continual 
learning and improving services. However the trust received 4 should do recommendations, these were to consider developing a 
longer-term IPC strategy, provide more equitable support to community locations, screen staff and visitors on arrival at community 
Locations and to provide further guidance for staff providing rehabilitation care. The recommendations are being addressed.   

• strategy.    

 Safeguarding  

• OFSTED completed a focused visit to Together for Children on 24th March 2021 and the report is awaited.  

• Child Death Overview Panels (CDOP) have effectively transitioned from South of Tyne arrangements to North & South of Tyne to 

support reviews of a larger number of deaths annually. The South of Tyne Child Death Review Co-ordinator post (hosted within 

SCCG) has been agreed and funded for a further 12 months. 

• The ICON programme (Infant crying is normal, Comforting methods can help, it’s Okay to walk away, Never, ever shake a baby) 

was launched on 12th April 2021 across the CCG. Training for this programme has been delivered to STSFT, 0-19 service, Family 

Nurse Partnership and all 5 PCN's. Resources have been delivered and the 5 touchpoints are now being implemented into 

practice by Midwives, Health Visitors and GP's. The Pre-Birth Team, Early Help Team and Perinatal Mental Health have also 

received training and resources and they have also been shared with local charities.  

• Complex Adult Risk Management (CARM) Framework developed by CCG in conjunction with SSAB agreed by the Partnership 
group in March 2021 for implementation in April 2021 across all agencies. Local strategic group across all Sunderland agencies 
has been arranged from April 2021 to support the implementation and planning of Liberty Protection Safeguards. 

• The Wear Women In Need (WINN) project funding has been agreed for 2021- 2022 to support routine enquiry for domestic abuse  
 

•

'Shared commitment to 
delivering quality' 
publication  
The National Quality Board 
has refreshed their strategy 
to support delivery of a 
common definition and 
vision of quality for those 
working in health and care 
systems. The new version 
uses the existing Darzi-
based definition of high-
quality care as being safe, 
effective and providing a 
positive experience, but 
now with a greater 
emphasis on population 
health and health 
inequalities. In the interim 
as the ICS architecture 
develops, system partners 
will all be accountable for 
quality. The future intent is 
that Quality oversight and 
improvement will largely be 
delivered locally through 
place-based partnerships. 
However ICSs will have an 
important role to play in 
ensuring that inequalities 
and variation in the quality 
of care and outcomes are 
addressed and that serious 
quality concerns are 

managed. The Shared 

Commitment publication 
sets out key principles for 
systems to adopt in 
delivering quality.  

Quality and Safety Committee (QSC) 
The inaugural joint QSC committee held with South Tyneside CCG was held on the 13th April. Aside from information already 
cited in this update other areas of discussion to note are as follows:     

• Mental Wellbeing in Care Home Study: the research findings from a study undertaken by the University of Sunderland, which 
aimed to ascertain the mental health and wellbeing status of staff working in care homes and care settings across Sunderland and 
South Tyneside during Covid 19 was received.  The report made a recommendation that the ATB Care Home Group consider the 
report, share their views and agree next steps. This process is being completed through a short task group.   

• Continuing Healthcare (CHC): The system has experienced pressures with completion of deferred assessments which resulted 
in the 31st March deadline not being met. The External support provider encountered some performance issues and in response 
the CCG released additional internal resource to support outstanding assessments. This work has been largely completed with 
only professional dispute assessments remaining.  It is anticipated that the last remaining cases will be resolved before the end of 
the NHSE deferred assessment reporting period.    

Regulation 28: Following the death of a young child at 
Sunderland Royal in 2018 the Coroner issued a Regulation 28 
in March 2021 direct to the Secretary of State for Health and 
Social Care. This was to highlight the importance nationally of 
mandating sepsis training and ensuring delivery by doctors  
with relevant experience. There was also a focus on sepsis 
guidance and the timing and prompt prescribing of antibiotics.    
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CATEGORY OF PAPER  

Proposes specific action  
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GOVERNING BODY 
 

25 May 2021 

Report Title: 
 

SCCG Performance Report May'21 

Purpose of report 

To provide the Governing Body with an exception report in relation to the current position 
for the CCG against the NHS Single Oversight Framework requirements. 

Key points 

• A new NHS Single Oversight Framework (SOF) for 2021/22 is out for consultation.  
The proposed SOF reinforces system-led delivery of integrated care and makes 
changes to the special measures regime, whilst also providing greater emphasis on 
system performance and quality of care outcomes.  For further information, the 
consultation can be found here. 

• Referral to Treatment (RTT) performance remains in a positive position with 
Sunderland CCG (SCCG) the highest in the ICS.  Performance improved slightly in 
March'21 to 83%.  The total number of patients on an incomplete pathway (waiting 
list) continues to increase marginally and remains lower than last year.  Orthopaedics 
and plastic surgery remain the main pressures whilst most areas continue to show 
improvements.    

• The number of over 52-week waiters is now 665 for March'21, a reduction of 18 on 
the previous month and is much lower than the CCGs recovery trajectory of 1,156 for 
the same period.  Orthopaedics remains the largest proportion of the waiters (56% - 
375) with general surgery (53), plastic surgery (71) and dermatology (62) the 
specialties with the most waiters.  The CCG continue to work with STSFT and the I.S. 
to maximise the elective capacity available with STSFT transferring a number of 
patients to the I.S. to support elective recovery.  Orthopaedics over 52-week waiters 
reduced by 41 this month, the first monthly reduction since the pandemic started. 

• Diagnostic waiting times performance March'21 remains at 37% of patients waiting in 
excess of six weeks for a diagnostic procedure.  Echocardiography remains the main 
area of pressure with a higher number of long waiters with radiology areas also 
showing higher waiting times.  Despite additional workforce in echocardiography, 
waiting times continue to be high and STSFT has one of the highest waiting lists 
nationally.  Additional locums have been secured as has additional equipment, but 
this is not enough and ATB have established a working group to look at provision 
across Sunderland and the cardiology diagnostic pathways.   

• Cancer performance improved in a number of areas in March'21 but it remains 
volatile, particularly in two week wait pathways (2WW).  The 2WW overall standard 
was close to achieving target in March'21 but breast symptoms remains a significant 
challenge where referrals continue to be lower than those in 2019/20.  Treatments 
continue to be higher than 2019/20 in most areas. 

https://www.engage.england.nhs.uk/consultation/system-oversight-framework-2021-22/consult_view/
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• A&E four hour wait performance for South Tyneside and Sunderland NHS Foundation 
Trust (STSFT) for 2020/21 was 92.7% for all types, a significant improvement on 
2019/20 which was 83.7%.  Activity levels were lower than 2019/20 but are now 
increasing back to pre-pandemic levels.  Activity in April'21 and May'21 in some areas 
are now back to "normal" levels, particularly in the UTC and paediatrics, the latter 
increasing significantly over this time period.         

• Children’s mental health waiting times remain in a positive position with waiting times 
being maintained at a low level.  Due to the increased demand being experienced in 
children's mental health services, waiting times are beginning to show increases, 
particularly in CAMHS where over 18-week waiters are increasing month on month.  
Work around the new model for children's mental health continues and discussions 
continue with providers around the impact of increased demand, particularly as 
schools reopened after the latest national lockdown.  Waiting times in CYPS remains 
very low. 

• A full position against the IAF and other local indicators can be found on TeamNet 
for SCCG.   

Risks and issues 

• Risk of delivery of NHS Constitutional and national expectations as a result of the 
C19 pandemic. 

• A&E four-hour standard which is subject to national scrutiny and below the locally 
submitted trajectory. 

• Cancer waiting times; particularly 62-day performance at STSFT for lung and 
urological pathways.  Breast also remains a concern both locally and nationally. 

• RTT performance as a result of the restricted capacity and a risk that referrals 
increase back to levels pre-C19. 

• Six-week diagnostics as a result of C19 

• Mental health waiting times for adults and children and the risk of a surge in demand 
in the coming months as a result of C19 

• Ambulance response times in categories two, three and four. 

• Risks of further 52-week breaches as a result of the C19 pandemic. 
 
Identified risks on the risk register Sunderland CCG: 

• 2123 – Impact of C19 on CCG performance 

• 2309 – Impact of C19 on the CCG’s quality assurance framework 

• 2311 – Impact of C19 on services and risk of patient harm 

• 2310 – Lack of accessible PPE compromising patient and staff safety 

• 2390 – Increased demand for mental health services as a result of C19 
• 2391 – Increased cancer waits as a result of C19 

Assurances  

• Via oversight from multi-agency programme/project groups with executive clinical 
and managerial leadership. 

• Via project plans including identification, management and monitoring of risks and 
issues through registers and issue logs. 

• Monthly contract review groups and performance groups with main acute providers. 

• Regular assurance discussions with NHS England and NHS Improvement 
• Regular planning discussions at ICP and ICS level 

Recommendation/Action Required 

The Governing Body is asked to: 
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• Note the position and progress against each indicator in the NHS Single Oversight 
Framework 

• Note the proposed changes to the NHS Single Oversight Framework currently out to 
national consultation. 

• Note the risks to performance as a result of COVID19 

Sponsor/approving directors   

Scott Watson 
Director of Contracting, Planning and 
Informatics 

Report author 
Matt Thubron 
Head of Contracting and Performance  

Governance and Assurance 

Link to CCG corporate objectives  (please tick all that apply) 

CO1:Develop and support system transformation and  ensure a well-led organisation  

CO2:  Maintain financial control and performance   

CO3: Maintain and improve quality of CCG commissioned services  

CO4:Identify and deliver the CCG’s strategic priorities  

CO5: Covid-19 Response and Recovery  

Relevant legal/statutory issues 

NHS Single Oversight Framework, NHS Constitution 

Any potential/actual conflicts 
of interest associated with the 
paper? (please tick) 

Yes  No  N/A  

If yes, please specify  

Equality analysis completed 
(please tick)  

Yes  No  N/A  

Quality impact assessment 
undertaken  
(please tick) 

Yes  No  N/A  

,  

Key implications 

Are additional resources 
required?   

 
No 

Has there been appropriate 
clinical engagement?  

Yes via the clinical leads and Executive GP leads 

Has there been/or does there need 
to be any patient and public 
involvement? 

N/A 

Is there an expected impact on 
patient outcomes/experience?  If 
yes, has a quality impact 
assessment been undertaken? 

N/A 

Has there been member practice 
and/or other stakeholder 
engagement if needed?   

N/A 
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Governing Body 
NHS Sunderland CCG Performance Report 

May 2021 
 

1. Purpose 
 

The purpose of this report is to provide the Governing Body with an exception 
report in relation to the organisational position against the NHS Single Oversight 
Framework (SOF). 

 

2. Changes and areas of pressure since last month’s report 
 

• Proposed new SOF for 2021/22 out for consultation and will close 14th May 
2021. 
 

• The CCG referral to treatment (RTT) performance continues to be the 
highest in the ICS and has improved on the previous month.  Performance 
is now 83% against the 92% standard and the number of over 52-week 
waiters decreased for the first time this month and this remains significantly 
lower than the CCG's recovery trajectory. 

 

• Published A&E performance for South Tyneside and Sunderland NHS 
Foundation Trust (STSFT) for 2020/21 was 92.7% which is significantly 
better than that of 2019/20.  Activity levels are now at "normal" levels.   

 

• Cancer performance remains volatile with March'21 performance 
significantly improved in a number of areas but remain a pressure, 
particularly the breast symptomatic due to capacity and workforce pressures 
and lower referrals compared to previous years.   

 

• Six-week diagnostics performance continues to be a pressure and 
performance remains around the 37% mark compared to the 1% standard.  
Echocardiography is the main pressure due to increased waiting times and 
volumes but pressures also remain in radiology. 

 

• Waiting times in adult and children’s mental health services continue to be 
much improved. Referrals into CAMHS and CYPS increased again as 
schools re-opened in March'21, much the same as the Spetember'21 
increase.  The number of over 18-week waiters for assessment is increasing 
slightly each month but still significantly lower than the previous years. 

 

3. Exception Reporting 
 
3.1 Accident and Emergency  
 
Published information for the month of March'21 shows overall STSFT 
performance of 90% with type 1 performance 89.6%.  The full year 2020/21 
position was 92.7% which is significantly above 2019/20 performance of 83%.   
 



 NHS Official Item 9.1  

 

 

Page 5 of 16   

 

 

 

Charts 1 and 2 show the improvement in performance compared to other Trusts 
in the region with STSFT in the higher end of the pack compared to previous 
reports.   
 
Chart 1 – CNE type 1 A&E performance – Mar'21 YTD position 

 
 
Chart 2 – CNE all types A&E performance – Mar'21 YTD position 
 

 

 
The following table outlines performance by hospital and department type as at 11th May 
2021 with YTD performance 90.2% all types.  Performance for all types this time in 
2019/20 was 81% so this continues to be a marked improvement.   
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Table 2 – STSFT A&E performance by site and type – up to and including 11th May'21  

 
 

Previous reports have highlighted a reduction in urgent care activity in 
Sunderland because of the pandemic.   A number of areas have shown significant 
reductions, some of which around 50% of "normal" levels e.g., paediatrics.  Over 
the past couple of months, activity levels have shown month on month increases 
with activity levels in April'21 and May'21 now comparable to pre-pandemic 
levels.  Paediatrics is now around 10% lower compared to 50% lower in Q4.  So 
far in May'21 (only 10 days), type 3 activity is 10% higher than pre-pandemic 
levels and type 1 only 1% lower.        

   
 

3.2 Referral to Treatment (RTT) and waiting lists  
 
The latest published RTT performance for March'21 has shown an improved 
position against the 92% standard.  Performance is now, predominantly due to a 
significant improvement in dermatology which is due to the improvements within 
the secondary care service in reducing the backlog in Sunderland.   
 
Table 3 shows the March'21 published performance by specialty compared to the 
previous month as well as the total number of patients on an incomplete pathway 
(waiting list).  The overall waiting list increased in March'21 as did the number of 
over 18-week waiters.     

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Table 3 – SCCG RTT performance by specialty Mar'21 

Performance

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar YTD

Type 1 81.2% 79.7% - - - - - - - - - - 80.8%

Type 2 100.0% 100.0% - - - - - - - - - - 100.0%

Type 3 99.0% 99.5% - - - - - - - - - - 99.1%

ALL TYPES 88.6% 88.3% - - - - - - - - - - 88.5%

Type 1 93.5% 91.8% - - - - - - - - - - 93.1%

Type 2 - - - - - - - - - - - - -

Type 3 98.9% 99.4% - - - - - - - - - - 99.0%

ALL TYPES 94.9% 93.7% - - - - - - - - - - 94.5%

Type 1 85.2% 83.7% - - - - - - - - - - 84.8%

Type 2 100.0% 100.0% - - - - - - - - - - 100.0%

Type 3 99.0% 99.5% - - - - - - - - - - 99.1%

ALL TYPES 90.3% 89.7% - - - - - - - - - - 90.2%

Sunderland Royal Hospital

South Tyneside District 

Hospital

South Tyneside and 

Sunderland NHS 

Foundation Trust
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For the first time since the pandemic began, the number of over 52-week waiters 
decreased.  In March'21, there was 665 patients waiting more than 18 weeks 
compared to 683 in February'21.  This is also significantly below the CCG's 
recovery trajectory of 1,156 submitted as part of phase 3 recovery plans.  
Orthopaedics remains the highest proportion of over 52-week waiters with 375 
(56%). 
 
Plastic surgery remains a pressure and as part of plans to address the backlog, 
CDDFT are in the process of mobilising additional capacity including additional 
workforce.   
 
The Independent Sector (I.S.) continues to accept transfers from NHS Trusts as 
part of the CICP agreement and as part of national planning submissions, a piece 
of work has commenced via the 'Provider Collaborative' in the North East and 
North Cumbria to move to a shared Patient Tracking List (PTL – waiting list) for 
orthopaedics and ophthalmology.  Further detail is expected in the coming weeks, 
but this will see providers working to a maximum 40 week wait ambition at sub-
specialism areas for areas such as orthopaedics.  This will see providers offering 
support to each other to treat patients more quickly.  The focus on clinical 
prioritisation and long waiters continues to be a priority locally and across the ICS 
as well as an ambition for a zero priority 2 (cancer) wait. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

18ww RTT Incomplete

Specialty  < 18 Weeks 
 >= 18 

Weeks 
  Total <18wks   < 18 Weeks 

 >= 18 

Weeks 
  Total <18wks  

Cardiology 516 82 598 86.3% 481 76 557 86.4%

Cardiothoracic Surgery 0 1 1 0.0% 11 1 12 91.7%

Dermatology 793 191 984 80.6% 684 306 990 69.1%

ENT 1,464 112 1,576 92.9% 1,317 74 1,391 94.7%

Gastroenterology 726 114 840 86.4% 689 64 753 91.5%

General Medicine 24 3 27 88.9% 14 5 19 73.7%

General Surgery 1,930 472 2,402 80.3% 1,668 471 2,139 78.0%

Geriatric Medicine 238 24 262 90.8% 227 19 246 92.3%

Gynaecology 1,182 143 1,325 89.2% 1,132 105 1,237 91.5%

Neurology 315 33 348 90.5% 306 35 341 89.7%

Neurosurgery 38 15 53 71.7% 43 14 57 75.4%

Ophthalmology 1,933 199 2,132 90.7% 1,825 190 2,015 90.6%

Other 4,234 368 4,602 92.0% 3,558 361 3,919 90.8%

Plastic Surgery 173 170 343 50.4% 172 144 316 54.4%

Rheumatology 252 9 261 96.6% 200 9 209 95.7%

Thoracic Medicine 484 169 653 74.1% 515 141 656 78.5%

Trauma & Orthopaedics 1,795 1,198 2,993 60.0% 1,812 1,124 2,936 61.7%

Urology 975 206 1,181 82.6% 943 189 1,132 83.3%

CCG Overall Summary 17,072 3,509 20,581 83.0% 15,597 3,328 18,925 82.4%

MARCH FEBRUARY

Current Month Previous Month
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Table 4 – SCCG over 52-week waiters for Mar'21 by provider and specialty. 
 

 
 
When benchmarking performance across the ICS, that of SCCG is encouraging.  
The latest data shows that Sunderland continues to have the strongest 
performance within the north east. C19 activity within secondary care continues 
to decrease and routine elective surgery continues to be "stood up". 
 

 
Table 5 – RTT performance at ICS level by CCG showing change on previous month and ICS rank Feb’21 

 

 
3.3   Cancer waiting and treatment times 
 
Cancer performance for March'21 is shown in table 6 with 2WW and 2WW breast 
symptoms failing to achieve.  Both however have shown an improvement on the 
previous two months.  Cancer performance remains volatile in most areas due to 
the impact of the pandemic on capacity to treat and the volume of referrals into 
cancer services. 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Specialty   Total  >= 18 Weeks   18-26wks     26-36wks    36-46wks      46-52wks    52wks +   

Cardiology 598 82 46 17 9 1 9

Cardiothoracic Surgery 1 1 0 0 0 0 1

Dermatology 984 191 58 44 26 1 62

ENT 1,576 112 85 19 2 0 6

Gastroenterology 840 114 87 16 1 2 8

General Medicine 27 3 2 0 1 0 0

General Surgery 2,402 472 254 124 40 1 53

Geriatric Medicine 262 24 14 9 1 0 0

Gynaecology 1,325 143 92 28 7 1 15

Neurology 348 33 22 7 0 2 2

Neurosurgery 53 15 5 4 1 2 3

Ophthalmology 2,132 199 165 16 6 1 11

Other 4,602 368 212 86 34 3 33

Plastic Surgery 343 170 48 39 8 4 71

Rheumatology 261 9 3 4 0 0 2

Thoracic Medicine 653 169 104 50 8 1 6

Trauma & Orthopaedics 2,993 1,198 579 177 52 15 375

Urology 1,181 206 132 52 11 3 8

CCG Overall Summary 20,581 3,509 1,908 692 207 37 665

Current Month

MARCH
18ww RTT Incomplete

RTT % Performance

Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 Jan-21 Feb-21 Trend

Rank

 Feb-20

Rank 

Latest Month
Variance

NHS County Durham CCG 87.8% 84.7% 75.7% 63.2% 47.9% 45.4% 56.7% 67.2% 73.5% 75.1% 72.0% 70.5% 70.4% 6 6 -17.3%

NHS Newcastle Gateshead CCG 87.8% 83.7% 73.7% 63.3% 54.4% 50.9% 58.9% 68.0% 71.1% 71.5% 70.6% 70.4% 69.6% 5 7 -18.2%

NHS North Cumbria CCG 73.5% 71.0% 63.0% 56.0% 47.3% 44.4% 49.8% 56.1% 59.3% 61.8% 61.8% 58.9% 56.9% 8 8 -16.6%

NHS North Tyneside CCG 88.2% 86.5% 78.8% 69.7% 62.1% 58.3% 66.2% 73.9% 75.3% 76.3% 74.9% 74.0% 73.7% 4 3 -14.5%

NHS Northumberland CCG 88.7% 86.7% 79.3% 69.6% 60.9% 55.8% 64.5% 72.7% 74.3% 75.3% 74.5% 73.6% 72.7% 3 5 -15.9%

NHS South Tyneside CCG 90.7% 88.2% 79.4% 68.8% 60.0% 57.4% 66.9% 75.2% 80.4% 82.3% 82.0% 82.2% 81.1% 2 2 -9.5%

NHS Sunderland CCG 90.8% 87.8% 75.8% 64.6% 56.6% 57.8% 67.3% 75.3% 81.1% 84.0% 84.1% 83.9% 82.4% 1 1 -8.4%

NHS Tees Valley CCG 87.1% 84.2% 75.2% 62.8% 49.7% 45.8% 56.4% 67.4% 75.0% 77.5% 76.6% 74.3% 72.8% 7 4 -14.4%

Feb-20 vs Latest 

Month
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Table 6 – SCCG Mar’21 cancer performance by standard 

 
 

2WW referrals in March'21 were higher than the same period last year, after a 
continued period of being lower but 2WW breast referrals remain considerably 
lower than 2019/20 levels.  In March'21, total treatments on a 62-day pathway 
continue to be higher.   

 
Table 7 – Cancer 2WW performance at ICS level by CCG showing change on previous month 
and ICS rank Mar'21 

 
The focus of the national planning guidance is the full restoration of cancer 
services.  Across the ICS this is a significant challenge due to the shortfall in 
referrals during the pandemic period and impact of capacity in some areas.  The 
Northern Cancer Alliance is working with services across the ICS to put in place 
actions to help address the shortfall in referrals in key areas such as breast and 
supporting communities to help improve access to services.  For breast this 
includes plans to develop self-referral. 
 
The Primary Care Network (PCN) Directly Enhanced Service (DES) for 2021/22 
sets out requirements for PCNs to review referral practice for suspected cancers 
and improve local uptake of national screening programmes.  This will include 
working with system partners including the NCA, supporting the screening 
restoration programme and undertaking peer review learning events.  Locally in 
Sunderland, discussions are currently nearing completion of the GP Quality 
Premium (QP) which also will include local indicators for increased bowel 
screening and cancer care review. 
 

3.4   Six-week diagnostics 
 

Diagnostics performance continues to be a significant pressure in Sunderland 
with performance remaining static at 37% of diagnostics waiting more than six 
weeks.   
 
As you can see from chart 4, the main area of pressure continues to be 
echocardiography, but pressures remain in radiology areas with increasing 
pressure in DEXA.  Locally, not included in the national return, issues in X-ray 
provision are also causing significant concern. 

Indicator Target  Treated in Time  Total Treated  Breaches
 % Meeting 

Standard

2 Week Wait 93% 1184 1276 92 92.8%

2 Week Wait (Breast Symptoms) 93% 20 25 5 80.0%

31 Day First Treatment 96% 164 165 1 99.4%

31 Day Subsequent Treatment 98% 163 163 0 100%

31 Day Subsequent Treatment (Drugs) 98% 97 97 0 100%

31 Day Subsequent Treatment (Radiotherapy) 94% 49 49 0 100%

31 Day Subsequent Treatment (Surgery) 94% 16 16 0 100%

62 Day Treatment 85% 75 87 12 86.2%

62 Day Treatment (Screening) 90% 8 10 2 80.0%

62 Day Treatment (Consultant Upgrade) (blank) 17 20 3 85.0%

31 Day Subsequent Treatment (Other/Palliative/Declined/Unknown) (blank) 1 1 0 100%

Cancer 2 Week Wait % Performance

Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21 Trend

Rank

 Feb-20

Rank 

Latest Month
Variance

NHS County Durham CCG 91.6% 89.5% 83.5% 94.2% 87.3% 85.8% 75.7% 72.9% 78.9% 80.7% 85.0% 83.1% 87.6% 86.9% 7 5 -4.6%

NHS Newcastle Gateshead CCG 84.3% 85.9% 80.2% 81.5% 77.5% 74.9% 64.8% 63.6% 63.3% 58.0% 59.0% 62.2% 76.7% 75.6% 8 8 -8.7%

NHS North Cumbria CCG 94.8% 95.4% 94.3% 93.5% 93.6% 90.0% 76.6% 62.9% 82.0% 86.2% 80.6% 72.8% 95.0% 92.3% 2 3 -2.5%

NHS North Tyneside CCG 91.8% 89.4% 84.7% 92.6% 94.6% 88.1% 78.8% 78.7% 74.4% 69.7% 73.5% 78.6% 89.3% 83.6% 6 7 -8.2%

NHS Northumberland CCG 94.1% 94.3% 90.4% 96.6% 93.5% 86.9% 83.0% 83.8% 76.5% 74.8% 81.7% 84.2% 90.9% 87.8% 3 4 -6.4%

NHS South Tyneside CCG 95.0% 94.0% 89.8% 83.8% 78.1% 70.9% 65.2% 69.7% 74.0% 71.6% 71.3% 66.1% 81.5% 86.5% 1 6 -8.5%

NHS Sunderland CCG 93.1% 94.7% 89.4% 92.3% 91.9% 83.7% 79.9% 80.6% 87.3% 83.5% 81.4% 71.8% 88.4% 92.8% 4 2 -0.3%

NHS Tees Valley CCG 92.7% 91.6% 89.8% 94.1% 83.3% 77.5% 73.3% 76.8% 77.6% 85.1% 91.8% 89.0% 92.6% 94.4% 5 1 1.7%

Feb-20 vs Latest 

Month
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Chart 4 – Sunderland diagnostic test performance for Mar'21 

 
 
Sunderland remains the second lowest performers in the ICS, second only to 
North Cumbria with all CCGs showing improvements compared to Sunderland 
which is a significant concern. 
 

Table 8 – Diagnostics across the ICS pre and post C19 –Mar'21 

 
 

STSFT have recruited additional staff and equipment to deal with the 
echocardiography pressures and the backlog continues to reduce but pressures 
remain going forward.  ATB have agreed that cardiology pathways are a priority 
going forward and a working group has been re-established to look at pathways 
across Sunderland including the provision in the community.   
 
Pressures in MRI and CT are now being addressed through additional MRI 
capacity and an additional mobile CT scanner that STSFT have secured through 
the national contract.  
 
3.5   Children’s Mental Health Waiting Times 
 
Children’s mental health waiting times remain in a positive position, primarily as 
a direct result of reduced demand during the pandemic and the maintenance of 
“business as usual” capacity.  Referrals decreased as schools remained closed 
after the Christmas period and increased in March'21 as schools re-opened 
following the trend of the September'21 increase reported previously.  Despite 

Diag 6 Week % Performance

Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21 Trend

Rank

 Feb-20

Rank 

Latest Month
Variance

NHS County Durham CCG 1.3% 7.5% 50.8% 45.4% 32.3% 26.7% 20.5% 16.4% 12.7% 11.0% 11.4% 11.9% 10.6% 9.9% 3 4 8.6%

NHS Newcastle Gateshead CCG 2.8% 13.2% 65.4% 63.7% 50.4% 40.3% 36.5% 31.2% 28.3% 28.5% 26.9% 27.5% 23.5% 21.6% 5 5 18.8%

NHS North Cumbria CCG 8.0% 14.1% 63.3% 63.0% 55.6% 51.4% 54.2% 50.9% 49.4% 48.5% 52.3% 59.6% 53.0% 48.0% 8 8 40.0%

NHS North Tyneside CCG 1.4% 18.7% 71.4% 60.5% 34.3% 28.1% 23.4% 13.1% 10.4% 10.9% 8.4% 10.4% 7.4% 5.2% 4 1 3.8%

NHS Northumberland CCG 1.2% 16.3% 69.7% 59.1% 30.6% 19.4% 14.4% 10.4% 11.0% 10.0% 13.6% 12.5% 10.0% 7.3% 2 2 6.2%

NHS South Tyneside CCG 3.8% 17.5% 60.4% 57.1% 51.6% 44.9% 36.5% 34.0% 34.0% 32.8% 33.6% 37.2% 34.7% 34.1% 6 6 30.4%

NHS Sunderland CCG 0.9% 10.4% 53.6% 60.3% 50.0% 40.7% 34.4% 28.3% 23.9% 24.7% 30.3% 36.2% 36.6% 37.5% 1 7 36.6%

NHS Tees Valley CCG 4.8% 11.8% 58.7% 56.8% 39.7% 29.8% 25.6% 19.2% 16.4% 12.0% 12.6% 16.1% 11.0% 8.9% 7 3 4.1%

Feb-20 vs Latest 

Month
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this increase, waiting times remains positive but showing signs of increase in 
CAMHS. 
 
The chart below shows the demand into the CYPS and CAMHS service over time, 
with the aforementioned troughs and peaks noted in April'20, October'20 and then 
into March'21 

 
Chart 5 – Total number of new referrals – CYPS and CAMHS from April’19 

 

 
 
Work continues regarding the transformation of children’s mental health services in 
Sunderland, which we expect to have a positive effect in this regard.  As part of mental 
health planning (which is subject to its own full year planning process for 2021/22), 
discussions have almost concluded around the targeted funding for children's mental 
health services which includes supporting the transformation plan, support for reducing 
waiting times and crisis support. 
 
Chart 6 – Total number of children waiting for assessment – CYPS and CAMHS from April’19 
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Chart 7 – Total number of children waiting for treatment – CYPS and CAMHS from April’19 

 

 
 

In March'21, there was 1 patient waiting over 18 weeks for treatment in children’s mental 
health services and 23 waiting over 18 weeks for assessment.  Comparing this to 
March'20, there was 278 children waiting over 18 weeks for assessment and 320 waiting 
over 18 weeks for treatment.   
 
4. 2021/22 NHS Single Oversight Framework 
 
NHS E/I have prepared proposals for a new approach to NHS system oversight in 
2021/22.   The proposed approach aligns with the vision set out for ICS in Integrated 
Care and in the Government's White Paper, Integration and Innovation: working 
together to improve health and social care for all1.  
 
The consultant is now live and will close on 14th May 2021 and feedback from the 
proposals will be used to develop the new SOF for 2021/22 which is expected to be 
issued in the summer.   
 
The proposals reinforce system-led delivery of integrated care with the aim to: 
 

• Provide clarity to ICSs, providers and commissioners on how NHS E/I will 
monitor performance; set expectations on working together to improve quality 
of care; and describe how identified support needs to improve standards and 
outcomes will be co-ordinated and delivered 

• Be used by NHS E/I regional teams to guide oversight of ICSs at system, place-
based and organisation level as well as decisions about the level and nature 
of delivery support they may require 

• Describe how NHS E/I will work with the CQC and other partners at national, 
regional and local level to ensure activities are aligned 

 
There is a new support programme proposed which is set to replace the 'special 
measures' regime with greater emphasis on system performance and quality of care 

 
1 http://www.gov.uk/government/publications/working-together-to-improve-health-and-social-care-for-

all/integration-and-innovation-working-together-to-improve-health-and-social-care-for-all-html-version 
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outcomes.  ICS' will have greater autonomy as will organisations with evidence of 
collective working and a track record of delivery. 
 
The approach to oversight is built around: 
 

• Five national themes to reflect the NHS LTP and apply across commissioners, 
providers and ICSs 

o Quality of care, access and outcomes, preventing ill health and reducing 
inequalities: people; finance and use of resources; leadership and 
capability. 

• A single set of metrics across ICSs, trusts and CCGs aligned to the national 
five themes above. 

• A six theme, local strategic priorities, recognises: 
o That ICSs each face a unique set of circumstances and challenges in 

addressing priorities for the NHS in 21/22 
o The renewed ambition to support greater collaboration between 

partners in health and care systems. 

• A description of how ICSs will work alongside regional and national NHS E/I 
teams to provide effective, streamlined oversight for quality and performance 
across the NHS. 

• A three-step oversight cycle that frames how NHS E/I teams and ICSs will work 
together to identify and deploy the right delivery support and intervention to 
drive improvement and address the most complex and challenging problems. 

 

 
 
Monitoring will be a combination of in year monitoring, using monthly or quarterly 
collections, annual submissions such as surveys, annual plans and by exception 
where material events occur or concerns are triggered outside of their usual 
monitoring cycle.  There will be a phased implementation to segmentation of support 
needs in 2021/22 reflecting the approach set out in the national planning guidance 
and segmentation decisions will be determined by a combination of objective criteria 
and judgment.  For individual organisations, this will be taken having regard to the 
views of system leaders. 
 
A segmentation decision indicates the scale and general nature of the support needs, 
ranging from segment 1 – no specific support needs up to segment 4 – mandated 
intensive support.   
 
Appendix two outlines the proposed SOF segmentation for the ICS, CCG and Trusts 
including the scale of support needs included within each segment. 
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5. Recommendations 

 
The Governing Body is asked to: 

• Note the position and progress against each indicator in the NHS Single 
Oversight Framework. 

• Note the proposed changes to the NHS Single Oversight Framework 
currently out to national consultation. 

• Note the risks to performance because COVID19 
 
 
Report Author:   Matt Thubron 

Head of Contracting and Performance  
 
Sponsoring Director:  Scott Watson  

Director of Contracting and Informatics 
 
Date:     13th May 2021 
 
 
 
Notes to accompany the report: 
 
Due to the lack of baseline information for some of the indicators in the framework, a number of indicators have no performance 
rating.   
 
As some of these indicators rely on nationally published data which is not timely, the Business Intelligence team has wherever 
possible developed proxy measures.  Where data is available from local data sources, this is referenced in the report.  
 
A full assessment against each indicator can be found on TeamNet using the following link: 
https://teamnet.clarity.co.uk/SUNCCGBI  

 

https://teamnet.clarity.co.uk/Topics/ViewItem/d70ef7c7-8da7-4d5c-a6d4-aa5400b1f55e


  

Appendix one – Sunderland CCG risk assessment against the Improvement and Assessment Framework – 2020/21  
 

 
 

A full assessment against each indicator can be found on TeamNet using the following link 
https://teamnet.clarity.co.uk/SUNCCG 

 
 

Personalisation and Choice Urgent and emergency care

Health inequalities Provision of High Quality Care

Clinical priority: Diabetes NHS Continuing Healthcare

Child obesity Elective access

Smoking 7 day service

Falls End of Life Care

Anti-microbial resistence    Clinical priorities:  Maternity

Carers Dementia

Cancer

Learning disabilities

Mental health

Quality of Leadership

Workforce engagement

CCGs' local relationships

Probity and corporate governance Financial sustainability

Sustainability and transformation plan Paper-free at the point of care

https://teamnet.clarity.co.uk/SUNCCG
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Appendix two – 2021/22 Proposed NHS SOD Segmentation  
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Report Title: 
 

Finance Report Year ended 2020/21 
 

Purpose of report 

 
The purpose of this report is to present to the Governing Body a summary of the financial position 
of the CCG for the year ended 2020/21. 
 
In addition, the report incorporates assurance on the delivery of the CCGs productivity plans for 
2020/21. 
 

Key points 

 
The finance paper provides assurance to the Governing Body on the achievement of statutory 
financial duties in 2020/21. 

 

Risks and issues 

 
The key issues are to ensure: 
 

• the CCG meets all its financial duties for 2020/21; and 

• the Governing Body are up to date with recent NHSE/I financial management regime changes 
which impact CCG finances  

 
Risks to delivery are documented within the report. 
 

Assurances  

 
The purpose of this report is to present to the Governing Body a summary of the financial position 
of the CCG for the year ended 2020/21. 
 
In addition, the report incorporates assurance on the delivery of the CCGs productivity plans for 
2020/21. 
 

Recommendation/Action Required 

 
The Governing Body is asked to:  
 

• Note the financial position of the CCG for the year ended 2020/21  
 



2 

 

• Note the reported delivery of 2020/21 productivity plans  
 

Sponsor/approving director: 
David Chandler, Deputy Chief Officer and Chief 
Finance Officer 

Report author: Mark Speer, Senior Finance Manager 

Reviewed by: Tarryn Lake, Associate Director of Finance 

Governance and Assurance 

Link to Sunderland CCG corporate objectives (please tick all that apply) 

CO1: Develop and support system transformation and ensure a well-led organisation 
 

CO2:  Maintain financial control and performance   

CO3:  Maintain and improve the quality and safety of CCG commissioned services  

CO4: Identify and deliver the CCG’s strategic priorities  

CO5: Covid-19 Response and Recovery  

Relevant legal/statutory issues  

N/A 

Any potential/actual conflicts 
of interest associated with the 
paper? (please tick) 

Yes  No  N/A  

N/A 

Equality analysis completed 
(please tick)  

Yes  No  N/A  

Quality impact assessment 
undertaken  
(please tick) 

Yes  No  N/A  

N/A 

Key implications 

Are additional resources 
required?   

 
None 

Has there been appropriate 
clinical engagement?  

N/A 

Has there been/or does there 
need to be any patient and 
public involvement? 

 
N/A 

Is there an expected impact on 
patient outcomes/experience?  
If yes, has a quality impact 
assessment been undertaken? 

 
N/A 

 

Has there been member 
practice and/or other 

 
N/A 
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stakeholder engagement if 
needed?   

 

Version Date Comments  

ACV1.0 07/05/2021 MS Draft 

ACV2.0 10/05/2021 TL Review & Amends 

ACV3.0 10/05/2021 DC final 

ACV4.0 11/05/2021 FH QA Review 

ACV5.0   
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Governing Body 
Finance Report for the period to 31st March 2021 

(Month 12) 
 

1. Purpose of Report:  
 
The purpose of this report is to present to the Governing Body a summary of the 
financial position of the CCG for the year ended 2020/21. 
 
In addition, the report incorporates assurance on the delivery of the CCGs 
productivity plans for 2020/21. 
 

2. Overview of NHS England and Improvement Guidance on CCG Financial 
Management in 2020/21: 
 
1st April 2020 to 30th September 2020 (Months 1 to 6): 
 
As reported previously the month 1 to 6 reporting period operated under a 
financial regime of retrospective allocation top ups for pressures and COVID-19 
expenditure against a revised CCG allocations.  
 
1st October 2020 to 31st March 2021 (Months 7 to 12): 
 
As previously noted, NHSE/I implemented a revised financial regime for the 
second half of 2020/21.  This was based on the principles of system allocations, 
system performance and risk management, centrally set block contract values 
and prospective funding for expected COVID-19 costs.  Locally, this has meant 
that NHS funding has been allocated at a County Durham, South Tyneside and 
Sunderland Integrated Care Partnership (‘Central ICP’) level. 
 
A Memorandum of Understanding was agreed by Governing Bodies in Common 
on 29th September 2020 setting out financial management principles across the 
ICP and agreeing how system funding would be allocated.  As part of that, a joint 
planning group with representatives from all three CCGs, chaired by the CCG 
Accountable Officer determined utilisation of any remaining balance of COVID-19 
funding.   
 
Central ICP organisations have successfully managed financial risk in 2020/21 
and reported a surplus against the breakeven target.  Organisations are currently 
finalising their 2020/21 financial positions and further information will be provided 
in future reports to the executive.  
 



5 

 

The guidance released by NHSE/I in relation to the COVID-19 response outlined 
that as normal financial arrangements have been suspended, no new revenue 
business investments should be entered into unless related to COVID-19 or 
unless approved by NHSE/I as consistent with a previously agreed plan.  Further, 
NHSE/I have confirmed allocations for the first six months in 2021/22 will be 
based on the same financial regime, with the financial regime for the remaining 
six months of 2021/22 still to be determined.  
 
As the CCG currently faces uncertainty surrounding the availability of recurrent 
resources, the Governing Body has agreed that in order to adhere to guidance 
and to ensure good governance is in place, that no further recurrent investment 
decisions are made.  It has been agreed that this will be in place until certainty is 
provided on recurrent allocations with the exception of specific areas where 
recurrent allocation funding is provided by NHSE/I (e.g. the Mental Health 
Investment Standard).  It is recognised there may be a requirement to agree 
specific recurrent investment to support the COVID-19 response as an exception 
to this.  Such decisions have been approved within the scheme of delegation of 
the CCG and reported to the Executive Committee and Governing Body.  
 
The CCG was still required to deliver the Mental Health Investment Standard 
(MHIS) in 2020/21 which the CCG achieved. 
 
Impact of 2020/21 financial regime to previously announced allocations: 
 
The table below outlines the differences between the original announced 
recurrent allocations for 2020/21 and the revised allocations provided to the CCG 
by NHSE/I for the same period under the revised temporary financial 
arrangements.  The table demonstrates that the CCG received £15,140k more 
funding than originally expected for 2020/21.  
 
2020/21 Allocations 2020/21

M1 - M6

 

£000s

2020/21 

M7 - M12

 

£000s

2020/21 

Full Year 

Effect 

£000s

Recurrent Expected Allocations

Core Allocations 244,820          244,820          489,640           

Primary Care Commissioing Allocation 22,136            22,136            44,272             

Running Costs Allocations 2,606              2,606              5,211                

Total Recurrent Expected Allocations 269,562          269,562          539,123           

NHSE/I 2020/21 Revised Allocations

Programme Month 7 to 12 Envelope Allocation 242,566          238,897          481,463           

Primary Care Commissioning Month 7 to 12 Envelope Allocation 21,544            22,195            43,739             

Running Costs Month 7 to 12 Envelope Allocation 2,333              2,852              5,185                

Total NHSE/I Revised Allocations 266,443          263,944          530,387           

Total Variance to Expected Funding Pre-Additional Allocations 3,119-              5,618-              8,736-               

Additional Allocations

Top Up Funding for Financial Pressures 4,349 0 4,349

COVID-19 Funding (Includes HDP) 10,282 4,270 14,552

Central ICP COVID Funding 0 2,415 2,415

Primary Care COVID Expansion Fund Allocation 0 786 786

Non Recurent Mental Health and LD Allocations 0 403 403

Non Recurrent Primary Care Allocations (mainly digital) 0 900 900

Other Non Recurrent Allocations 0 471 471

Total Additional Allocations 14,631            9,245              23,876             

Total 2020/21 Allocations 281,074          273,189          554,263           

Total Increase In Funding 11,513            3,628              15,140              
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3. 2020/21 Income and Expenditure:  
 
As outlined above the 2020/21 financial year operated under two separate 
approaches.  For this reason, the financial summaries below have been split 
between April 2020 to September 2020 (months 1 to 6), and October 2020 to 
March 2021 (months 7 to 12). 
 

 April to September (Months 1 to 6): 
 
The CCG has reported a break-even performance to the end of 30th September 
2020 against in year expenditure allocations.   
 
COVID/ Non COVID Expenditure Non-ISFE - Main Category  (for COVID 19 

Model)

Month 1-6 

NHSE/I 

Expenditure Plan

(£000s)

Month 1-6 

Actual

(£000s)

Month 1-6 

Variance

(£000s)

Non COVID Expenditure Acute Services (ISFE) 132,134 132,134 0

Community Health Services (ISFE) 20,174 20,174 0

Continuing Care  Services (ISFE) 16,932 16,932 0

Mental Health Services (ISFE) 34,842 34,842 0

Prescribing 27,063 27,063 0

Primary Care Co-Commissioning (ISFE) 21,922 21,922 0

Primary Care Services (excl. Prescribing) 7,006 7,006 0

Other Programme Services  (ISFE) 8,517 8,517 0

Running Costs (ISFE) 2,200 2,200 0

Planned Deficit 0 0 0

Non COVID Expenditure Total 270,792 270,792 0

COVID Expenditure Acute Services (ISFE) 32 32 0

Community Health Services (ISFE) 27 27 0

Continuing Care  Services (ISFE) 2,312 2,312 0

Mental Health Services (ISFE) 104 104 0

Primary Care Co-Commissioning (ISFE) 561 561 0

Primary Care Services (excl. Prescribing) 1,254 1,254 0

Other Programme Services  (ISFE) 233 233 0

Running Costs (ISFE) 107 107 0

COVID Expenditure Total 4,631 4,631 0

Covid Hospital Discharge Expenditure Continuing Care  Services (ISFE) 5,651 5,651 0

Covid Hospital Discharge Expenditure Total 5,651 5,651 0

Total COVID and Non COVID Expenditure 281,074 281,074 0  
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



7 

 

 
October to November (Months 7 to 12): 

 
COVID/ Non COVID 

Expenditure

Non-ISFE - Main Category  (for COVID 19 

Model)

Month 7 to 12

NHSE/I 

Expenditure Plan

(£000s)

Month 7 to 12

Actual

(£000s)

Month 7 to 12

Variance

(£000s)

Non COVID Expenditure Acute Services (ISFE) 131,872 128,740 -3,132

Community Health Services (ISFE) 21,270 21,008 -262

Continuing Care  Services (ISFE) 16,920 16,963 43

Mental Health Services (ISFE) 36,010 35,419 -590

Prescribing 25,523 25,643 119

Primary Care Co-Commissioning (ISFE) 23,483 23,515 33

Primary Care Services (excl. Prescribing) 7,087 4,836 -2,251

Other Programme Services  (ISFE) 7,329 8,719 1,390

Running Costs (ISFE) 2,357 2,165 -192

Non COVID Expenditure Total 271,850 267,009 -4,841

COVID Expenditure Acute Services (ISFE) -26 -29 -3

Community Health Services (ISFE) -27 -27 0

Continuing Care  Services (ISFE) -567 -664 -97

Mental Health Services (ISFE) 0 0 0

Primary Care Co-Commissioning (ISFE) 0 5 5

Primary Care Services (excl. Prescribing) 150 53 -97

Other Programme Services  (ISFE) 1,222 1,287 65

Running Costs (ISFE) 0 0 0

COVID Expenditure Total 752 625 -127

Covid Hospital Discharge Expenditure 5,519 5,518 0

Covid Hospital Discharge Expenditure Total 5,519 5,518 0

Total COVID and Non COVID Expenditure 278,121 273,153 -4,968

Brought Forward Ring Fenced Surplus 20,209 0 -20,209

Total Cumulative Financial Position 298,330 273,153 -25,177  
 
As noted above the expectation has been that organisations will contain 
expenditure within the NHSE/I expenditure plan for the second half of the 
financial year. 
 
The month 7 to 12 NHSE/I expenditure plan was based on the revised guidance 
and allocation information received up to the time of writing.  The CCG has 
reported a £4,968k underspend (the revised control total was agreed as a 
£4,726k underspend).  The £242k variance relates to a number of minor areas of 
slippage between month 11 and month 12.   
 
In addition, NHSE/I have confirmed the £20,209k brought forward cumulative 
surplus for Sunderland CCG which is in line with our calculations.   
 
In relation to brought forward balances NHSE/I have released the following 
information to CCGs via the 2021/22 planning FAQs: ‘Cumulative historic under 
and overspends will continue to be reported at a CCG level; however, any future 
access to historic underspends will additionally take into consideration the net 
position of the system.  We do not expect to make any drawdown of historic 
underspends available during the H1 period.  This position will be reviewed for 
H2 2021/22 and will remain subject to affordability.’ 
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Overall, the reported position clearly demonstrates that the CCG has achieved its 
financial duties for 2020/21. 
 
It is worth noting that the reported NHSE/I plan figures used for in year financial 
reporting purposes within the CCGs management accounts do not align to the 
CCG’s Accounts Allocations Directions for 2020/21 issued by NHSE/I for specific 
allocation breakdowns.  For example, the running costs expenditure plan for the 
entirety of 2020/21 differs to the allocations reported into the CCGs accounts 
based on the published CCG Accounts Directions.  This difference is linked to the 
revised financial regime put in place by NHSE/I in 2020/21 whereby the 
reimbursement process has been aligned to actual expenditure incurred or 
planned for. 
 
Forecast Movement Explanations (Month 7 to 12):  
 
Non COVID-19 Expenditure: 
 
The acute reporting area has reported an underspend of £3,132k.  The most 
significant element of this position is due to £2,200k underspends on 
transformation funding, which had been agreed with the NHSE/I regional team.  
Also £369k of prior year impacts have been reversed into the financial position.  
In addition, there was £232k underspends within AQP (Any Qualified Provider)  
and other Independent Sector contracts (funded on an activity tariff basis).   
 
Community services reported a £262k underspend which is predominantly due to 
a £200k Community Equipment Services (CES) and Wheelchairs expenditure 
compared to the NHSE/I Expenditure planning expectations. 
 
Within Mental Health the non COVID-19 related position reported a £590k 
underspend of which £580k related to reduced Section 117 costs based on the 
most up to date information for this area.  Whilst this is good news, expenditure is 
£423k higher than last year leaving this to be an area of growing expenditure for 
the CCG.  As noted in previous reports this is a key area of focus for the ATB, 
with the intention that any financial savings in this area can be used to support 
other community mental health investments. 
 
As previously reported prescribing remains an area of high volatility.  As noted in 
previous reports the ATB is doing extensive work in this area to manage this 
budget as effectively as possible going forward.  It should be noted that the 
current position on prescribing will result in significant additional pressures 
against the recurrent budget when the CCG returns to normal financial 
arrangements.  The current spending against the regular recurrent prescribing 
budget is currently estimated to be between a £3m to £4m overspend prior to 
growth and inflation.  When growth and inflation is applied this range increases to 
a £4.5m to £6m recurrent pressure. 
 
Primary care services have reported a £2,251 underspend against the NHSE/I 
expenditure plan.  The most significant element of this position is due to £1,034k 
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reported underspends on transformation funding, which has been agreed with the 
NHSE/I regional team.  The balance of spend relates to a number of areas such 
as underspends against additional winter sessions of £118k, renegotiation of the 
Vocare out of hours service £61k, prior year underspends £183k, and previously 
forecast items included in month 7 to 12 forecast to NHSE/I not materialising 
£315k.  

 
The variance in Other Programme Services is mainly due to a corresponding 
movement non recurrent schemes which offsets the impact of the other 
movements to the forecast outturn. 
 

 Delegated General Practice Budgets: 
 
Delegated general practice budgets are reported within the overall position of the 
CCG in line with the nature of the expenditure being incurred.  In order to ensure 
clarity and transparency on the financial position of the ring-fenced delegated 
general practice budget the memorandum account has been provided below for 
information.       
 
COVID/ Non COVID 

Expenditure

Category Month 7 to 12

NHSE/I 

Expenditure Plan

(£000's)

Month 7 to 12

Actuals

(£000's)

Month 7 to 12

Variance

(£000's)

Non COVID Expenditure General Practice - GMS 11,569 11,569 -1

General Practice - PMS 1,625 1,627 3

Other List-Based Services (APMS incl.) 1,077 1,079 1

QOF 2,205 2,037 -168

Quality Premium 1,121 953 -168

Enhanced services 333 330 -3

Premises cost reimbursements 1,581 1,662 81

Dispensing/Prescribing Drs 112 72 -40

Other - GP Services (including Career Start) 2,234 2,695 461

PC Networks 1,477 1,492 15

Reserves 148 0 -148

Non COVID Expenditure Total 23,483 23,515 33

COVID Expenditure Other GP Services 0 5 5

COVID Expenditure Total 0 5 5

Total Month 7 to 12 Position 23,483 23,520 38  
 
Within Delegated Co-Commissioning the month 7 to 12 position was a £38k 
overspend. 
 

 Running Costs: 
 
 Within running costs, the month 7 to 12 position reported a £192k under-spend 
which in the main was linked to additional allocations from NHSE/I received in 
month 10 relating to the pensions increase which were already forecast in the 
CCGs month 7 to 12 position. 
 

4. Overview of Financial Risks within the System: 
 

The CCG has successfully managed and mitigated financial risks in 2020/21 
leading to achievement of its financial duties. 
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5. Productivity Plan Delivery: 
 
As part of the 2020/21 budget setting paper which was reported to Governing 
Body on the 24th March 2020 the CCG identified £4,936k of productivity 
requirements for 2020/21.  As a result of COVID-19 many of the original plans 
have been delayed or superseded by the new financial regime where savings 
were linked to NHS provider contracts.  The impact of which is included within 
forecasts for months 1-6.   
 

Productivity Plan 

Category 

2020/21 Agreed 

NHSE/I Month 7 to 

12 Plan

£000's

2020/21 

Forecast 

£000's

2020/21 

Variance to CCG 

Plan 

£000's

2020/21 Original 

CCG Plan

£000's

2020/21 

Forecast 

Expectations 

£000's

2020/21 

Variance to 

CCG Plan 

£000's

Acute / In Hospital 0 0 0 695 0 -695

Out of Hospital 1,000 1,000 0 2,545 2,095 -450

Prescribing 1,000 694 -306 1,000 694 -306

Other 825 1,131 306 696 2,147 1,451

Grand Total 2,825 2,825 0 4,936 4,936 0

2020/21 Plan (£)

 
 
As part of the month 7 to 12 financial plan, £2,825k of schemes have been 
included within the CCGs financial position.  As reported above the CCG has 
achieved its overall productivity requirements for 2020/21.  In addition, the table 
above shows current expectations against recurrent plans as the CCG prepares 
for the 2021/22 financial year. 
 
The Sustainability Delivery Group met on the 20th April 2021 to sign off the 
2020/21 achievement, and to review recurrent productivity schemes establishing 
mitigating actions to address any shortfalls where appropriate.  Please note that 
plans linked to implementation of biosimilars in the acute sector, and reductions 
in procedures of limited clinical value are currently being refreshed and will be 
included within future reports. 
 
The CCG is currently forecasting that the following schemes are expecting to 
under deliver against the recurrent plans going into the next financial year: 
 

• Acute - Ophthalmology Transformation (Avastin Implementation - £695k):  
There have been further delays in the delivery of expected savings against 
the plan to use Avastin instead of Lucentis and Eyelea.  The recurrent 
expectation is that these savings will still be released, however as this is not 
currently being implemented it is being shown as undelivered.  This scheme 
is regional and is being progressed at an ICS level  

 

• Out of Hospital - Community Acquired Brain Injury Service (£450k):  Plans 
against this scheme are currently under development.  A revised service 
specification, activity assumptions and revised costing have been agreed by 
commissioning colleagues from both Sunderland and Newcastle Gateshead 
CCGs.  Finance and Activity assumptions have been shared with CNTW and 
are currently being validated.  It remains the expectation that these savings 
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will be released on a recurrent basis, however progress has been hampered 
by the COVID-19 pandemic.  It is expected that a proportion of the savings 
on this scheme should be delivered through rebasing the contract between 
Sunderland CCG and Newcastle Gateshead CCG on the basis of historical 
activity.  The expectation is that any financial pressures which results from 
slippage would need to be addressed by the ATB  

 

• Prescribing - (£306k): Prescribing efficiencies are currently forecast to under 
deliver for the month 7 to 12 period.  It has been identified that a number of 
factors have impacted the delivery of prescribing efficiencies including 
changes in prescribing practices within general practice. Also as part of the 
CCGs wider response to the pandemic some capacity of the Medicines 
Optimisation Team has been redirected towards assisting with the pandemic.  
The growth in Sunderland prescribing expenditure is currently one of the 
highest in comparison to other CCGs in the North East and North Cumbria 
and, further work is under way to understand the reasons for this.  As noted 
earlier in the report the overall position against the recurrent prescribing 
budget is currently estimated to be between a £3m to £4m overspend.  The 
ATB and the MO team are leading on the development of a recurrent 
recovery plan in this area 

 
6. Statement of Financial Position: 
 

Summary Statement of Financial Position:  
 
A copy of the summary Statement of Financial Position (SoFP) as at 31st March 
2021 shows current assets of £2,887k and current liabilities of £40,365k.  Please 
note that the change in prepayments and accrued income relates in the majority 
to the catch up of the previously reported additional months NHS provider block 
payment.  Revised guidance advising CCGs that as providers have been funded 
via block arrangements in 2020/21 maternity pathway prepayments and partially 
completed spells accruals no longer apply. 
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Better Payment Practice Code (BPPC): 
 

BPPC is effectively the target to pay 95% of NHS and non NHS trade creditors 
within 30 calendar days of receipt of goods or valid invoice (whichever is later) 
unless other payment terms have been agreed. The target for the month of 
March was achieved.  The BPPC year to date performance is outlined below:  
 

 
 
Cash Management: 

 
The CCG is expected by NHS England to proactively manage the cash it draws 
down each month and the amount it actually spends.  The target is to have no 
more than 1.25% of the monthly drawdown of cash left in the main bank account 
each month.  This equates to circa £500k for the CCG.  This target was achieved 
in March 2021, with £231k left in the bank at the end of the month.  

 
Aged Debts:  
 
The CCG monitors aged debts on a monthly basis to ensure prompt recovery of 
all outstanding debts and avoidance of debt write offs.  The current target is to 
have no outstanding debts over 90 days old and above £50k in value.  This target 
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was achieved in March 2021 with no aged debts over 90 days old and above 
£50k in value outstanding. 

 
7. Update on the Mental Health Investment Standard (MHIS): 

 
2020/21 MHIS Performance: 
 
As reported in previous reports CCGs must ensure that their expenditure in 
mental health rises at a faster rate than their overall published programme 
funding.  
 

 
 
The above table shows the required levels of expenditure in 2020/21, with the 
reported outturn.  This demonstrates the achievement of the MHIS for 2020/21. 
 
Please note that the previously reported CNTW pressures which have been 
funded from the North ICP (CNTW are aligned to the North ICP) have been 
excluded to align the CCG with reporting in the rest of the region.  This is based 
on advice from NHSE/I and to ensure consistency with other CCGs in the North 
East and North Cumbria.  
 
The table shows that there has been significant growth within Mental Health 
prescribing against plan.  The main driver of this increase has been a large price 
increase on a specific drug Sertraline which represents a forecast £983k increase 
between financial years.  
 
The reduction within the mental health services category in the main relates to 
reductions in non recurrent expenditure between financial.   
 
2019/20 MHIS Verification Process:  
 
As previously reported Mazars have now completed the 2019/20 Mental Health 
Investment Standard audit.  This work has concluded that the CCG have met the 
MHIS requirements.   
 
In line with NHSE/I requirements both the CCG compliance statement and also 
the Mazars report have been published on the CCG website on the 15th April 
2021.  
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8. Recommendations: 
 
 The Governing Body is asked to:  
 

• Note the financial position of the CCG for the year ended 2020/21 

• Note the reported delivery of 2020/21 productivity plans 
 

  David Chandler 
  Chief Officer / Chief Finance Officer   
  Sunderland CCG 



NHS Official             Item: 9.3  

Page 1 of 16 

 

 
 
 
 

 

CATEGORY OF PAPER  

Proposes specific action  

Provides assurance   

For information only  

 
GOVERNING BODY MEETING  

 
25 March 2021 

Report Title: 
 

Financial Plan 2021/22 April to September (H1) 
 

Purpose of report 

 
The governing body in common meeting across the Central ICP on the 4th May 2021 approved the 
high level financial plan for submission to NHS England and Improvement (NHSE/I) for the period 
1st April 2021 to 30th September 2021 (H1).  The purpose of this paper is to gain approval for the 
detailed budgets underpinning this overall plan approved at the governing bodies in common and 
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Draft H1 Financial Plan 2021/22 
 
1. Purpose of report  

 
It is the delegated responsibility of the Chief Finance Officer (CFO) to produce 
and gain approval from the Governing Body of an annual financial budget / plan 
for the CCG. NHSE/I have continued to implement a revised financial regime into 
2021/22 and have released allocations for the first six months of the financial 
year (1st April 2021 to 30th September 2021).  As such the proposed detailed 
budget for approval in this paper covers the H1 period in 2021/22. 
 
Prior to the production of this paper, the CCG has already submitted a number of 
commentaries / statements to NHSE/I detailing how the CCG intends to achieve 
its statutory financial duties for H1 in 2021/22 as part of Central ICP planning 
processes.  This was a requirement of NHSE/I and forms part of a national and 
local monitoring process.  As this process was required to be completed as a 
system across the ICP the draft high level plan was submitted to a governing 
body in common meeting on the 4th May 2021 where it was approved for 
submission.  The detailed budget included in this paper for approval aligns to the 
overall budget which was approved at the governing body in common meeting.  
 
Please note NHSE/I have released full year budgets for mental health services in 
the scope of the mental health investment standard (MHIS) and as such the 
paper requests approval for the full year allocation of resources to meet the 
requirements of the MHIS.  
 
 

2. CCG revenue allocations – Background to H1 2021/22 budget  
 
Background and context 
 
The guidance on finance and contracting arrangements for H1 2021/22 (1st April 
2021 to 30th September 2021) was published on 25th March 2021.  The interim 
financial arrangements for H1 are based on the arrangements put in place for the 
final six months of 2020/21 (H2 2020/21).   
 
The key points included within the guidance from a financial point of view are: 
 

• The financial planning exercise applies to the 1st April 2021 to September 
2021 period (H1), with the exception of Mental Health which has received 
confirmation of full year allocations and systems are required to plan to 
deploy full year resources in this area.  



 

• The emphasis continues on system level planning with arrangements with a 
requirement to continue collaboration at an ICP level.   

  

• H1 arrangements include system funding envelopes which are made up of 
adjusted CCG allocations, growth funding, system top-up and COVID-19 
fixed allocation based on the H2 2020/21 period (1st October 2020 to 31st 
March 2021).  The application of COVID-19 and growth funding are being 
discussed with partners across the ICP to collectively agree priorities.  

 

• All systems will be expected to report a balanced financial position in H1 
2021/22. This applies at ICP and ICS level.   
 

• CCG block payment arrangements with NHS Foundation Trusts will remain in 
place for the H1 period, and signed contracts are not required for this period. 
The block contract values were uplifted by 0.5%, and local areas can 
collectively agree variations to the values.  

 

• Through H1 systems have access to the following additional funding:  
 

o An Elective Recovery Fund to incentivise systems to increase elective 
activity over the H1 period whereby additional funding will be allocated 
to ICS areas who over perform against the set baseline.  The exact 
details of how this will operate along with projections for the North East 
and North Cumbria ICS are currently being considered.  
 

o Additional CCG programme funding and service development funding 
(SDF) to enable delivery of Long Term Plan (LTP) priorities.  

 

• CCGs are advised to set aside a contingency of up to 0.5% of their allocation 
to support risks although it is allowable not to include this. 

 
 As in H2 2020/21, the majority of costs need to be managed within the confirmed 
system envelope, however certain services/costs will continue to be funded 
outside of system funding including specialised high cost drugs and devices and 
specific COVID-19 services e.g. testing/vaccination.  The Hospital Discharge 
Programme will continue to operate over H1, with new or additional care needs 
being funded on discharge from hospital for up to 6 weeks for Q1 and up to 4 
weeks for Q2.  Please note final guidance is still awaited with regards the 
Hospital Discharge Programme to confirm this arrangement and it has been 
announced that the ICS will receive a fixed financial envelope for the costs 
associated with the arrangement.  

 
 In addition, systems will receive further allocations of national Service 
Development Funding (SDF) including significant amounts for primary care, 
mental health, cancer and maternity.  There is also additional Spending Review 
funding, including the £500m previously announced for mental health and £1bn 
elective recovery funding (see further information in Appendix A).  



 
 
 
Sunderland CCG H1 envelope 
 
 The draft H1 Central ICP system envelope funding is £1,005.791m. The majority 
of the system envelope had been issued at an individual organisational level with 
the main areas of system funding which required agreement for allocation to 
individual organisations relating to COVID funding and ICP growth funding.   
 
The governing body in common meeting agreed the allocation of system 
resources included in the plan submission to NHSE/I.  The resulting Sunderland 
CCG financial envelope for H1 for which detailed budget approval is being 
requested is £280,389k as outlined in table one.  
 
Table 1 – Sunderland CCG 2020/21 H1 Allocation  

Allocation Area

Programme

£000's

Delegated 

Primary Care

£000's

Running Costs 

£000's

Total 

£000's

Allocation 'Pre Growth' 240,827          21,903            2,605              265,335          

Growth 2,119              1,482              3,602              

MHIS H1 Growth 976                  976                  

Central ICP COVID Funding 2,961              2,961              

Central ICP Growth Funding 1,701              1,701              

Mental Health Service Development Funding 1,200              1,200              

Cancer Alliance Servise Development Funding (Hosted for ICS) 4,546              4,546              

Misc Service Development Funding 68                    68                    

Total Allocation 254,399          23,385            2,605              280,389           
 
Please note the allocations outlined above do not include the cumulative historic 
surpluses of the CCG. The budget represents the resource available to the CCG 
within H1 2021/ 22 which the CCG will be monitored against. NHSE/I have 
released the following information to CCGs via the 2021/22 planning FAQs: 
‘Cumulative historic under and overspends will continue to be reported at a CCG 
level; however, any future access to historic underspends will additionally take 
into consideration the net position of the system.  We do not expect to make any 
drawdown of historic underspends available during the H1 period.  This position 
will be reviewed for H2 2021/22 and will remain subject to affordability.’ 
 
Please note the CCG Chief Finance Officer (CFO) has completed a review of the 
cumulative position across the ICS which shows that two CCGs within the ICS 
have significant deficits which more than offset surpluses in all the other CCGs 
leaving at the end of 20/21 the ICS in a cumulative deficit position.   
 
 

3. Detailed budget proposal H1 2021/22  
 

The following key assumptions have been applied in the production of the 
detailed budget proposal for H1 2021/22:  
 



• NHS provider block contract values are based on original H2 2020/21 
values (i.e. excluding non-recurring contract amendments processed 
during H2) with 0.5% inflation growth applied as per planning guidance.  
 

• Non NHS provider contract values have been rolled over with 0.2% 
inflation growth applied as per planning guidance.  
 

• Net 2% increase in prescribing costs assumed (5.5% growth uplift with 
3.5% efficiency) as per the CCGs Strategic Financial Plan with a 
contingency included to cover the financial pressure in prescribing costs 
which has occurred in 2021/22 above recurrently funded budget levels.  

 

• Expected fee increases and growth in individual packages of care has 
been assumed.  Note, no income or costs have been included in the draft 
budget in relation to the Hospital Discharge Programme.  The budget set 
should  cover the cost implications of the phasing out of the Hospital 
Discharge Programme and potential further growth in packages of care 
however this is difficult to accurately model at present.  

 

• Primary care delegated budgets include GP contract global sum uplifts, 
QOF changes and relevant PCN funding including planned utilization of 
the CCG allocation for the Additional Roles Reimbursement Scheme 
(ARRS).  

 

• BCF growth of 5.3% has been included in line with the planning guidance.  
 

• Confirmed Service Development Funding and Spending Review money 
included within the financial planning template has been protected and is 
planned to be spent in full.  Please note this includes mental health 
funding specifically for Sunderland residents as well as hosted Cancer 
Alliance funding.  

 

• The plan includes QIPP efficiencies of £1,264k for prescribing in line with 
current medicines optimisation efficiency plans.    

 

• A share of system COVID funding has been allocated to Sunderland CCG 
on a fair shares basis.  It has been assumed in the financial plan this will 
be fully utilised and the Accountable Officer is chairs an ICP CCG 
Planning Group considering the application of this resource.  

 

• A share of system growth funding has been allocated to Sunderland CCG 
on a fair shares basis.  This funding will be held to manage risk across the 
ICP with the first call on this resource being to cover non-NHS income 
pressures in South Tyneside and Sunderland NHS Foundation Trust given 
the funding shortfall for our ICP in this area should the FT be unable to 
manage this risk and break-even for H1.  

 



• The CCG will deliver a non-recurrent surplus in H1 of £570k as agreed by 
the Accountable Officer, following discussion at the Governing Body in 
Common, to support wider system pressures across the NENC ICS.  

 
Following the application of the above assumptions the detailed budget for 
2021/22 H1 has been prepared and is presented in table 2 below.   
 
Table 2 – Sunderland CCG Detailed H1 Budget Proposal  

Main Reporting Category Sub Reporting Category 

 Total 

£000's 

Acute Services Acute Services - Independent/Commercial Sector 3,185                   

Acute Services - NHS 126,371              

Acute Services - Other Net Expenditure 3,423                   

Acute Services - Other non-NHS 2,629                   

Community Health Services CH Contracts - NHS 15,335                 

CH Contracts - Other providers (non-nhs, incl. VS) 4,608                   

Continuing Care  Services Adult Joint Funded Continuing Healthcare 635                      

CHC Adult Fully Funded - Fast track 755                      

CHC Adult Fully Funded - Other 679                      

CHC Adult Fully Funded - Standard 9,846                   

Childrens Continuing Care 615                      

Continuing Care Assessment & Support 805                      

Funded Nursing Care 1,806                   

Mental Health Services MH - Other 553                      

MH contracts - Independent / Commercial Sector 844                      

MH contracts - NHS 27,784                 

MH contracts - Other providers (non-nhs, incl. VS) 7,819                   

Other Programme Services NHS Trusts and FTs 1,428                   

Other Programme Services 11,463                 

Prescribing Prescribing 27,227                 

Primary Care Co-Commissioning Primary Care Co-Commissioning 23,385                 

Primary Care Services (excl. Prescribing) Community Base Services 2,727                   

GP IT Costs 664                      

NHS Trusts and FTs 75                        

Out of Hours 579                      

PC - Other 1,760                   

£1.50 per head PCN Development Investment 213                      

Running Costs Running Costs (ISFE) 2,605                   

Grand Total 279,818              

Total Allocation 280,388              

Surplus Control Total 570-                       
 
A further detailed exercise has been completed for the delegated primary care 
budget required for H1 taking into account the contractual changes for practices 
and PCNs for this period as well as local commitments.  The resulting proposed 
budget for delegated primary care budgets is set out in table 3.   
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

 
 Table 3 – Delegated Primary Care Detailed H1 Budget Proposal  
 

 

Reporting Area

 Delegated 

Primary Care 

H1 Budget 

£000's 

General Practice - GMS 12,751            

General Practice - PMS 1,663              

General Practice - APMS 672                 

QOF 2,544              

Enhanced Services 349                 

Premises Cost Reimbursement 1,611              

Dispensing/Prescribing Drs 117                 

Other GP Services 1,919              

PCNs 1,643              

0.5% contingency 117                 

Total Draft Budget             23,385  
 

 Following detailed review of running cost budgets with directors and senior 
managers the running costs but budgets have been refreshed for 2021/22.  As a 
result, the detailed budget proposed for H1 is included in Appendix B for 
consideration and approval as part of this paper.   

  
 
4. 2021/22 Mental Health Investment Standard (MHIS) plan  

 
Background and context 
 
As outlined earlier, within the 2021/22 priorities and operational planning 
guidance it confirms that NHSE/I has provided funding for mental health for the 
full 2021/22 financial year and full year financial plans required submission to 
NHSE/I.  The key points included within the guidance are: 
 

• CCGs must continue to deliver the MHIS. 

• Local systems are expected to deliver the mental health ambitions outlined 
in the Long Term Plan and Mental Health Implementation Plan 2019/20–
2023/24. 

• Nationally as part of the government's spending review an additional 
£500m of funding has been made available in 2021/22 to address the 
impact of COVID-19, which for Sunderland CCG equates to £1,543k 
although some additional funding which will be released later in the year. 

 



Within the accompanying technical financial planning guidance the key points to 
draw out are:  
 

• Plans required submission by 6th May 2021 and required submission at an 
ICP/ICS level. 

• The Mental Health funding can be divided into three distinct elements: 
o MHIS (Mental Health Investment Standard) Growth Funding 
o Spending Review Money (aka £500m funding) to accelerate 

recovery of services from COVID-19 
o Specific Service Development Funding (SDF) 

• In 2021/22 the MHIS target growth figure for Sunderland CCG is 3.6% 
growth (in line with CCG allocation growth) which equates to £2,199k.  
This includes funding system pressures (i.e. MH prescribing and packages 
increases) and also the requirements of the NHS Mental Health 
Implementation Plan (2019/20 to 2023/24).  This is across both adults and 
children’s mental health services. 

• CCGs have been required to set aside a tariff adjustment reserve set at 
1.27% of the overall growth in mental health spend which equates to 
£837k of the available resource.  This is to cover agenda for change pay 
uplifts in 2021/22 which are yet to be determined. 

• Clarifications in the guidance which have been an issues in prior financial 
years:   

o PCN Mental Health practitioner roles: The technical guidance to the 
plan notes that the mental health provider share of costs for PCN 
Mental Health practitioner roles (jointly funded by PCNs) can be 
included within the MHIS plan. 

o Section 117 packages definition clarified to confirm that all Mental 
Health Act 1983 spend should be included (MH, LD and Dementia), 
which aligns to the CCGs current treatment on this expenditure.  

 
As part of the mental health planning process a number of groups were 
consulted.  This included ATB (primarily via Programme 2), Children’s Integrated 
Commissioning Group (CICG), CNTW, and senior leadership in the CCG.  This 
work included: 

• Prioritising areas of investment; 

• Agreeing local principles for the allocation of resources in the system; 

• Making a collective recommendation of the split of funding between adults 
and children’s services; 

• Recommending the draft plan for 2021/22. 
 

 The following local principles for the allocation of resources in the system has 
been agreed:   

• Maximise the investment to front line delivery of care (minimum of 90% of 
resources allocated to services).  

• Full transparency across commissioners and providers on expenditure to 
maximise the Sunderland £ and COVID-19 recovery.  



• ATB and CICG to monitor actual expenditure against investments with 
underspends coming back into the system for a decision on redeploying 
throughout the financial year.  

• Use streamlined business case process or business case waiver process 
to improve timelines for decision making.  

 
 
 
Summary of Mental Health Financial Plan 
 
Below is a summary of the Sunderland CCG planning submission.  This includes 
the starting point of the 2020/21 MHIS outturn (less non-recurrent items), with the 
different elements of funding split by adults and children’s services.   It should be 
noted that in 2021/22 elements two and three will not be reported against the 
CCGs MHIS achievement.   
 
Description Adults

£000s

Childrens

£000s

Total

£000s

2020/21 MHIS Outturn (less Non Recurrent Items) 54,401 6,132 60,533

2021/22 Growth Funding

Element 1: MHIS Growth Funding 2,185 528 2,713

Element 2: Spending Review Money 1,302 241 1,543

Element 3: Specific ICS/ ICP Funding 682 457 1,139

Total 2021/22 Growth 4,169 1,226 5,395

Forecast 2021/22 Outurn 58,571 7,358 65,928

Forecast 2021/22 Outurn - MHIS Only 56,586 6,660 63,246  
 
Within the table below it can be seen that the CCG is planning to achieve against 
the MHIS requirement in 2021/22 with a planned £38k over delivery against the 
target set. Initial indicative allocation of this resource has been undertaken at 
individual service level however, this will be subject to full business cases being 
completed and appropriate approvals being undertaken.  This planned indicative 
allocation of resources to individual service level as part of the MHIS 
achievement is included in Appendix C.   
 

£'000 61,009

% 3.60%

£'000 63,208

£'000 63,246

Y/N Y

£'000 382021/22 MHIS Planned Over/(Under) Achievement

MHIS Summary

2020/21 MHIS Outturn as at Month 12

2021/22 Growth in CCG allocations

2021/22 Minimum Mental Health spend to meet MHIS

2021/22 Planned MHIS spend

2021/22 MHIS achieved 

 
 
It is anticipated that CCGs will be monitored closely against mental health 
funding within 2021/22, however reporting requirements are yet to be published. 
 
Updates on mental health spending will continue to be included within Governing 
Body and Executive Committee finance reports. 



 
 

5. Financial risks associated with delivering the H1 2021/22 budget 
 
Whilst the funding levels for the NHS and the ICP for H1 has generally been well 
received by finance leaders as reasonable there are a number of potential 
financial risks which will need to be managed in H1 and into H2 in 2021/22.  The 
effective management of these and any other financial risks as they arise will be 
essential.   
 
Known risks that will require careful management in 2021/22 are as follows:  

 
i) Overspending budgets 

 
Whilst the CCG budget proposal is expected to deliver on its control total 
there remains a significant overspend in prescribing expenditure against 
recurrent allocations.  The MO team and ATB are working together to 
address this issue.  Alongside prescribing there also remains a risk of 
unexpected pressures in other areas of the CCGs budget such as CHC.  
There is less risk on NHS contracts due to block contracts being in place.   
 

ii) Under delivery of financial efficiencies  
 

Embedded within the H1 plan and incorporated into the draft budgets 
being proposed for approval is the need to drive out £1.3m from 
productivity or efficiency measures in prescribing expenditure.  Whilst a 
significant efficiency plans have been identified there is still a risk that not 
all of the plans will deliver.  
 
The Sustainability Delivery Group will gain assurance from the All 
Together Better (ATB) on the delivery of these efficiencies which will be 
reported to the Executive Committee and the Governing Body on a regular 
basis.  

 
iii) Impact of changes to Hospital Discharge Programme  

 
As a result of the longer term implications of the Hospital Discharge 
programme there is a risk that CHC and other packages of care costs 
could increase further than expected on a recurrent basis.  Further work is 
being undertaken to understand the potential financial implications of this 
in the ATB and there may be a need to deliver further transformational 
efficiencies in order to continue to support the hospital discharge pathway.    
 

iv) Further COVID pandemic waves 
 

There remains a risk of further COVID pandemic waves and resulting 
pressures in clinical services to respond.  The ICP has agreed to hold a 
proportion of the COVID system funding to support the system should this 
occur.  It is unclear whether NHSE/I will revise the H1 financial 



arrangements should the pandemic escalate at a national level however it 
should be noted that in 2020/21 the fixed financial envelopes for systems 
and organisations remained in place during the previous lockdown.  

 
 
 
 
v) Elective Recovery Fund  

 
Achievement of additional income from the ERF will be measured at ICS 
level and there is a risk that additional cost could be incurred in delivering 
increased activity but shortfalls elsewhere in the system would mean no or 
less additional funding was received.  Further work is being undertaken in 
the ICS to confirm the risk sharing arrangements should this occur.  
 

vi) STSFT non-NHS income shortfall  
 
South Tyneside and Sunderland NHS Foundation Trust (STSFT) received 
additional income of c£8.5m 2020/21 to offset shortfalls in recovering non 
nhs income however, only £1.4m of funding is being received for H1 
21/22.  As a system it has been agreed that growth funding will be held to 
cover off the risk associated with the non-NHS income shortfall.  This will 
be monitored in monthly ICP finance meetings and deployed as required.  
 

vii) 2021/22 H2 Financial Envelope Uncertainty 
 
There remains uncertainty surrounding the financial settlement for the 
NHS for the second six months of 2021/22.  The NHSE/I Chief Financial 
Officer has indicated there will likely be a need to accelerate efficiencies to 
recover to the planned financial trajectories prior to the pandemic level.  
Therefore there is a potential risk the CCG and wider system may face 
challenges in delivering a balanced budget for the full financial year once 
the H2 2021/22 envelope is announced.  In order to mitigate this pressure 
there will need to be work undertaken in H1 to identify further efficiencies 
to be delivered in H2 and a very prudent approach taken in relation to 
funding decisions.  

 
 

6. Recommendations  
 
The Governing Body is asked to:  

 

• Consider and approve the detailed budgets for H1 in 2021/22.  
 

• Consider and approve the mental health investment standard plan for 
2021/22. 

 
David Chandler 



Chief Officer and Chief Finance Officer  
25th March 2021 

 
 
 
 
 
Appendix A – Elective Recovery Fund 

 
 The government has provided £1bn of funding for elective recovery for 2021/22.  
This extended funding is available through the Elective Recovery Fund (ERF) to 
ensure that systems receive appropriate funding to deliver the highest possible 
levels of recovery funding.  The ERF will work as follows: 

 

• As was the case with the Elective Incentive Scheme (EIS) funding is allocated at 
system level not organisation level.  Systems will need to agree how to allocate 
additional funding.  For the North East and North Cumbria it has been confirmed 
that ERF performance will be measured at ICS level.   

• Unlike the EIS there are no penalties, however, if one organisation in the system 
does not achieve baseline activity then this will affect other organisations ability 
to recover full funding 

• Baseline against which thresholds will be set is 2019/20 activity levels and will be 
calculated using a £ value based on tariff prices.  Actual activity will be valued on 
the same basis at 2021/22 tariff prices to ensure full value is given to more 
complex activity. 

• Activity is an aggregate of inpatient and outpatient activity delivered by both NHS 
and IS providers and will include CCG and specialised activity 

• The scheme will operate on a month by month basis rather than a cumulative 
basis to provide continued incentive for systems.  

• Thresholds to achieve against the baseline are 70% April, 75% May, 80% June 
and 85% from July to September 

• Activity delivered between the threshold and 85% will attract 100% of tariff, 
activity above the 85% will attract 120% of tariff. 

• The scope of activity covered is elective activity (ordinary or day case), including 
cancer, outpatient procedures and outpatient attendances for all treatment 
function codes apart from maternity and diagnostic imaging. 

 
 To qualify for ERF systems are required to demonstrate their elective recovery 
plan supports the requirements set out in sections C1 and C2 of the planning 
guidance and the five objectives listed below with tangible deliverables and 
milestones where possible. 

 
 The 5 objectives to be addressed are: 
 

1. Addressing health inequalities 



2. Transforming outpatient services – avoiding outpatient attendances of low 
clinical value and where clinically necessary at least 25% should be 
delivered remotely 

3. System led recovery – setting out how management of Patient Tracking 
Lists (PTL) will be undertaken at system level and how NHS and IS 
capacity will be used to benefit the whole of the system 

4. Clinical validation, waiting list data quality and reducing long waits 
5. People recovery – monitor and safeguard staff health and well being 

 
 
Appendix B – Running Costs H1 Draft Budget  

 
NHS Sunderland CCG

Running Costs Budget Setting 2021/22

Division Budgeted 

WTE 

2021/22

Draft Budget 

Total

(pre ATB 

realignment)

£

2021/22 

ATB 

Function 

Realignment

£

2021/22  

Draft Proposed 

Running Costs 

Budget 

£

2021/22 Draft 

H1 

Running Costs 

Budget 

£

Staff Budgets

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT 1.13 26,194 0 26,194 13,097

CEO/ BOARD OFFICE 8.05 1,148,317 14,809 1,133,508 566,754

CLINICAL SUPPORT 5.63 339,995 194,401 145,594 72,797

PRIMARY CARE SUPPORT 2.00 84,970 84,970 0 0 Neighbourhood practice managers and practice nurses 

aligned to ATB

COMMISSIONING 2.30 83,470 36,894 46,576 23,288

CONTRACT MANAGEMENT 8.89 512,291 213,099 299,192 149,596

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 4.00 164,326 15,486 148,840 74,420

EDUCATION AND TRAINING 7.53 385,068 122,928 262,140 131,070

FINANCE 7.00 396,246 121,900 274,345 137,173

OPERATIONS MANAGEMENT 1.00 94,726 18,945 75,781 37,890

QUALITY ASSURANCE 3.02 162,283 0 162,283 81,142

SERVICE, PLANNING AND REFORM 5.00 321,828 178,376 143,452 71,726

Total Staff 55.55 3,719,713 1,001,809 2,717,904 1,358,952

Non Staff Budgets

ADMINISTRATION & BUSINESS SUPPORT 837,500 0 837,500 418,750 NECS Contract

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT 5,000 0 5,000 2,500

CEO/ BOARD OFFICE 238,983 0 238,983 119,492 Includes Chair and Lay Members

CLINICAL SUPPORT 1,725 0 1,725 863

COMMISSIONING 3,796 0 3,796 1,898

CONTRACT MANAGEMENT 2,144 0 2,144 1,072

CORPORATE COSTS & SERVICES 86,727 0 86,727 43,364

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 4,800 0 4,800 2,400

EDUCATION AND TRAINING 32,968 0 32,968 16,484

ESTATES AND FACILITIES 312,890 0 312,890 156,445 NHSPS Pemberton House CCG Headquarter costs

FINANCE 179,932 0 179,932 89,966 External and internal audit fees. 

GENERAL RESERVE - ADMIN 746,133 0 746,133 373,067 Running costs reserves - mandated underspend of £500k 

as per agreements at CCG GB each financial year. 

IM&T 33,268 0 33,268 16,634

OPERATIONS MANAGEMENT 765 0 765 383

QUALITY ASSURANCE 2,980 0 2,980 1,490

SERVICE, PLANNING AND REFORM 2,485 0 2,485 1,243

Total Non Staff 2,552,096 0 2,492,096 1,246,048

Total Running Costs Budget 55.55 6,271,809 1,001,809 5,210,000 2,605,000  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendix C – Mental Health Investment Standard Indicative Plan  
 
Description Adults

£000s

Childrens

£000s

Total

£000s

Status of Plan

2020/21 MHIS Outturn 54,696 6,313 61,009

 - 2020/21 Non Recurrent spend -295 -181 -476

2021/22 Starting Point 54,401 6,132 60,533

2021/22 Growth Funding

Pot 1: MHIS Growth Funding 1,971 228 2,199 N/A- For info based on metric

Priorities against Growth:

 - Section 117 Growth Funding -600 -600 Unavoidable Pressure

 - Tariff Adjustment Reserve - AFC -720 -83 -803 Unavoidable Pressure

 - Neuro Developmental Pathway Development -100 -100 Plan in place

 - CAMHS Demand Tier 2 - STSFT -115 -115 Plan TBC

 - Early Intervention in Psychosis - Prevention -105 -105 Plan in place

 - Further Enhancements to Eating Disorders -162 -162 Plan in place

 - IAPT and Counselling Business Case -124 -124 Plan in place (partial Funding)

 - OPS Crisis i.e. Universal Crisis -180 -180 Plan in place (partial Funding)

 - Perinatal Service -124 -124 Plan in place

Adults COVID Recovery Risk Reserve (Including 

ADHD waiting Times and Standing down MH 

Emergency Department)

-170 -170 CCG Proposal

 - Childrens COVID Recovery and Transformation 

Reserve

-230 -230 CCG Proposal

Total estimated costs against identified priorities -2,185 -528 -2,713

Forecast 2021/22 Outurn - MHIS Only 56,586 6,660 63,246

Memo: Variance of Costs vs Growth as per 

guidance 81 -119 -38  
 
   



Item:  9.4  

 
 
 
 

 

CATEGORY OF PAPER  

Proposes specific action  

Provides assurance   

For information only  

 
GOVERNING BODY MEETING 

25  May 2021 

Report Title: 
 

2020/21 Annual Accounts 
 

Purpose of report 

 
The purpose of this report is to gain approval of the Annual Accounts for 2020/21 from Governing 
Body for formal adoption.  
 

Key points 

 
The key point is to ensure the CCG has met all its financial duties for 2020/21.  
 

Risks and issues 

 
Risks and issues are documented within the report as appropriate. The CCG has reported full 
achievement of all statutory financial duties and as such has mitigated financial risks for 2020/21.  
 

Assurances  

 
The report provides assurance that the financial outturn for the year 2020/21 has achieved all 
statutory financial duties.  
  

Recommendation/Action Required 

 
Members are asked to: 
 

• Approve the Annual Accounts for 2020/21 for adoption following scrutiny at, and 
recommendation from, the Audit and Risk Committee.  
 

• Authorise the Accountable Officer and Chief Finance Officer to sign the relevant certificates 
relating to the Annual Accounts.  
 

• Authorise the Accountable Officer and Chair of the Audit and Risk Committee to approve 
reasonable adjustments to the Annual Accounts in respect of any revised guidance issued 
from NHS England prior to the final submission date. 

 

Sponsor/approving director: 
David Chandler, Chief Officer and Chief Finance 
Officer  



 
 
 

Reviewed by: Tarryn Lake, Associate Director of Finance  

Report author: Mark Speer, Senior Finance Manager 

Governance and Assurance 

Link to Sunderland CCG corporate objectives (please tick all that apply) 

CO1: Develop and support system transformation and ensure a well-led organisation  

CO2:  Maintain financial control and performance  

CO3: Maintain and improve the quality and safety of CCG commissioned services  

CO4: Identify and deliver the CCG’s strategic priorities      

CO5: Covid-19 Response and Recovery  

Relevant legal/statutory issues 

Health and Social Care Act 2012 
Government Financial Reporting Manual (FReM) 
Department of Health Group Accounting Manual 2020-21 (GAM) 

Any potential/actual conflicts 
of interest associated with the 
paper? (please tick) 

Yes  No  N/A  

N/A 

Equality analysis completed 
(please tick)  

Yes  No  N/A  

Quality impact assessment 
undertaken  
(please tick) 

Yes  No  N/A  

N/A 
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Governing Body  
Approval of Annual Accounts 2020/21 

 
1. Purpose of Report  

 
The purpose of this report is to provide an opportunity for members of the 
Governing Body to examine and approve the Annual Accounts for the year ended 
31st March 2021 for NHS Sunderland CCG for adoption.  
 
 

2. Background Information 
 

All NHS Bodies including Clinical Commissioning Groups have to submit their 
Annual Accounts to NHS England in accordance with a predetermined timetable. 
Annual Accounts attached to this report were completed in accordance with the 
timetable and were submitted in an unaudited form for verification ahead of the 
April 2021 deadline.  
 
NHS Sunderland CCG’s External Auditors have now concluded their formal audit 
of the Annual Accounts and have indicated that they will be issuing an unqualified 
audit opinion on the Accounts and associated information. Once the Accounts 
are adopted and approved by the Governing Body the Auditors will formally 
provide their opinion.   
 
NHS England has set the final submission date for the 2020/21 Annual Accounts 
on the 15th June 2021 and as such it is possible that further national guidance 
may be issued by NHS England which results in amendments required in the 
accounts after approval of the accounts by the Governing Body.  As such, 
approval is being sought to authorise the Chair of the Audit and Risk Committee 
and the Accountable Officer to approve reasonable adjustments to the Annual 
Accounts resulting in revised guidance from NHS England.  
 
 

3. Accounting Policies / Key Estimates  
 

The Accounts for the CCG are in a prescribed format determined by the 
Department of Health’s Group Accounting Manual (GAM).  
 
In producing the Accounts, the CCG has adopted policies in line with guidance 
provided by NHS England.  
 
Key estimates contained within the Accounts relate to prescribing liabilities yet to 
be billed. In preparing these estimates, advice provided by appropriate internal 
and external ‘experts’ has been taken into account as well as information 



provided centrally by NHS England. Assurance can be provided that these 
policies and key accounting estimates are relevant to the CCG’s local 
circumstances and that they have been appropriately and consistently applied.    
 
The main accounting statements are the Statement of Comprehensive Net 
Expenditure (SoCNE) for the year ended 31st March 2021; a Statement of 
Financial Position (SoFP) as at 31st March 2021; a Statement of Changes in 
Taxpayers Equity (SoCITE) for the year ended 31st March 2021; and a Statement 
of Cash Flows (SoCF) for the year ended 31st March 2021. 
 
In addition, and in accordance with the annual reporting guidance, a number of 
notes illustrating further detailed information have to be shown as part of the 
annual accounts information. These notes are an integral part of the Annual 
Accounts and are subject to the same degree of audit scrutiny as the main 
accounting statements.  

 
 
4. Going Concern 

 
It is important to note that the Annual Accounts include a note regarding going 
concern as part of the Accounting Policies (Note 1). The note states:  
 
These accounts have been prepared on the going concern basis. Public sector 
bodies are assumed to be going concerns where the continuation of the provision 
of ongoing services in the future is anticipated, as evidenced by inclusion of 
financial provision for that service in published documents.  Following the 
announcement of the NHS White Paper it is expected that CCG functions will 
transfer into an Integrated Care System (ICS) statutory body from the 1st April 
2022 securing continuation of provision of services.   

 
 
5. Highlights from the Accounts 

 
Contained within the Annual Accounts is the following key information for 
members to note:  
 

• Note 17 contained within the supporting information details the CCG’s 
performance against its financial performance targets. CCGs have a 
number of statutory financial duties, which form part of the overall 
performance management arrangements. The three financial performance 
targets applicable to the CCG are as follows:  

 
o Expenditure not to exceed income. Note 17 states that the CCG 

charged £554,769k against its total income of £559,738k. Note that 
this includes miscellaneous income received by the CCG of £543k 
as well as resource received from NHS England which is in line with 
the GAM requirements. This clearly demonstrates achievement of 
this particular duty. 
 



o Revenue resource use does not exceed the amount specified in 
Directions. Note 17 identifies that the CCG charged £554,226k in 
total (net of miscellaneous income) against its final in year resource 
limit of £559,195k clearly meeting this duty. 

 
o Revenue Administration Resource use does not exceed the amount 

specified in Directions. Note 17 identifies that the CCG charged 
£4,472k against its final resource limit for Administration Spend of 
£5,457k. This produces a £985k underspend, clearly demonstrating 
achievement of this particular duty. 

 

• Note 4 outlines the CCGs operating expenses within the financial year.  
The key point from this note is that expenditure has increased by £17,586k 
from 2019/20.  The main element of this increase was due to the national 
Hospital Discharge Programme which accounted for £11,170k of this 
increase. 
 

• Note 6 records the CCGs achievements regarding the Better Payment 
Practice Code. It can be identified from the note that the CCG was able to 
pay 98.79% of its Non-NHS trade creditors within 30 days of receipt of 
goods or agreed credit terms.  

 
 The main accounting statements and associated notes have been subject to 
detailed scrutiny at the Final Accounts and Annual Report Review Meeting to 
which members of Governing Body and Audit and Risk Committee were invited. 
In addition, personal briefings have been provided to the Accountable Officer and 
Clinical Chair of the CCG.  
 
 

6. Recommendation  
 

Members are asked to:  
 

• Approve the Annual Accounts for 2020/21 for adoption following scrutiny 
at, and recommendation from, the Audit and Risk Committee.  
 

• Authorise the Accountable Officer and Chief Finance Officer to sign all 
relevant certificates relating to the Annual Accounts.  

 

• Authorise the Accountable Officer and Chair of the Audit and Risk 
Committee to approve reasonable adjustments to the Annual Accounts in 
respect of any revised guidance issued from NHS England prior to the 
final submission date. 

 
 
 Mark Speer  
 Senior Finance Manager 
 Sunderland CCG 



NHS Sunderland CCG - Annual Accounts 2020-21

Page Number

The Primary Statements:

Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure for the year ended 31st March 2021 1

Statement of Financial Position as at 31st March 2021 2

Statement of Changes in Taxpayers' Equity for the year ended 31st March 2021 3

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31st March 2021 4

Notes to  the Accounts

Accounting policies 5

Other operating revenue 9

Employee benefits and staff numbers 10

Operating expenses 12

Better payment practice code 13

Operating leases 14

Trade and other receivables 15

Cash and cash equivalents 15

Trade and other payables 16

Provisions 16

Contingencies 16

Financial instruments 17

Operating segments 18

Joint arrangements - interests in joint operations 19

Related party transactions 20

Events after the end of the reporting period 24

Financial performance targets 24

CONTENTS



NHS Sunderland CCG - Annual Accounts 2020-21

Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure for the year ended

31 March 2021

2020-21 2019-20

Note £'000 £'000

Income from sale of goods and services 2 (476) (479)

Other operating income 2 (68) (377)

Total operating income (544) (856)

Staff costs 3 7,208 6,570

Purchase of goods and services 4 547,400 529,720

Other operating expenditure 4 161 254

Total operating expenditure 554,769 536,544

Comprehensive Expenditure for the year 554,225 535,688
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Statement of Financial Position as at

31 March 2021

31/03/2021 31/03/2020

Note £'000 £'000

Current assets:

Trade and other receivables 7 2,656 2,915

Cash and cash equivalents 8 231 153

Total current assets 2,887 3,068

Total assets 2,887 3,068

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 9 (39,871) (37,694)

Provisions 10 (493) (493)

Total current liabilities (40,364) (38,187)

Current Assets less Current Liabilities (37,477) (35,119)

Assets less Liabilities (37,477) (35,119)

Financed by Taxpayers’ Equity
General fund (37,477) (35,119)

Total Taxpayers' Equity: (37,477) (35,119)

The notes on pages 5 to 24 form part of this statement

The financial statements on pages 1 to 4 were approved by the Governing Body on 25 May 2021 and signed on its behalf by:

Neil O’Brien
Accountable Officer

25 May 2021
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Statement of Changes In Taxpayers Equity for the year ended

31 March 2021

General fund

Total 

reserves

£'000 £'000

Changes in taxpayers’ equity for 2020-21

Balance at 01 April 2020 (35,119) (35,119)

Changes in NHS Clinical Commissioning Group taxpayers’ equity for 2020-21
Net operating expenditure for the financial year (554,225) (554,225)

Net recognised CCG expenditure for the financial  year (554,225) (554,225)

Net Parliamentary funding 551,867 551,867

Balance at 31 March 2021 (37,477) (37,477)

General fund Total reserves

£'000 £'000

Changes in taxpayers’ equity for 2019-20

Balance at 01 April 2019 (32,656) (32,656)

Changes in NHS Clinical Commissioning Group taxpayers’ equity for 2019-20
Net operating expenditure for the financial year (535,688) (535,688)

Net recognised CCG expenditure for the financial  year (535,688) (535,688)

Net Parliamentary funding 533,225 533,225

Balance at 31 March 2020 (35,119) (35,119)
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Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended

31 March 2021

31/03/2021 31/03/2020

Note £'000 £'000

Cash flows from operating activities

Net operating expenditure for the financial year (554,226) (535,688)

(Increase)/decrease in trade & other receivables 7 258 (335)

Increase/(decrease) in trade & other payables 9 2,178 2,710

Net cash outflow from operating activities (551,790) (533,313)

Net cash outflow before financing (551,790) (533,313)

Cash flows from financing activities

Net funding received 551,868 533,225

Net cash inflow from financing activities 551,868 533,225

Net increase / (decrease) in cash & cash equivalents 8 78 (88)

Cash & cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 153 241

Cash & cash equivalents at the end of the financial year 231 153
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Notes to the financial statements

1 Accounting Policies

NHS England has directed that the financial statements of clinical commissioning groups shall meet the accounting requirements of the Group 

Accounting Manual issued by the Department of Health and Social Care. Consequently, the following financial statements have been prepared in 

accordance with the  Group Accounting Manual 2020-21 issued by the Department of Health and Social Care. The accounting policies contained in the 

Group Accounting Manual follow International Financial Reporting Standards to the extent that they are meaningful and appropriate to clinical 

commissioning groups, as determined by HM Treasury, which is advised by the Financial Reporting Advisory Board.  Where the Group Accounting 

Manual permits a choice of accounting policy, the accounting policy which is judged to be most appropriate to the particular circumstances of the 

clinical commissioning group for the purpose of giving a true and fair view has been selected. The particular policies adopted by the clinical 

commissioning group are described below. They have been applied consistently in dealing with items considered material in relation to the accounts.

1.1 Going Concern

These accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis.

Public sector bodies are assumed to be going concerns where the continuation of the provision of a service in the future is anticipated, as evidenced by 

inclusion of financial provision for that service in published documents.  

Where a clinical commissioning group ceases to exist, it considers whether or not its services will continue to be provided (using the same assets, by 

another public sector entity) in determining whether to use the concept of going concern for the final set of financial statements.  If services will continue 

to be provided the financial statements are prepared on the going concern basis. Following publication of the proposed white paper it is expected that 

services will continue beyond 31st March 2022.

1.2  Accounting Convention

These accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention modified to account for the revaluation of property, plant and equipment, 

intangible assets, inventories and certain financial assets and financial liabilities.

1.3 Joint arrangements 

Arrangements over which the clinical commissioning group has joint control with one or more other entities are classified as joint arrangements. Joint 

control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement. A joint arrangement is either a joint operation or a joint venture.

A joint operation exists where the parties that have joint control have rights to the assets and obligations for the liabilities relating to the arrangement. 

Where  the clinical commissioning group is a joint operator it recognises its share of, assets, liabilities, income and expenses in its own accounts.

The clinical commissioning group has entered into two pooled budget arrangements with Sunderland City Council in accordance with section 75 of the 

NHS Act 2006. The first arrangement funds are pooled for the Better Care Fund, and in the second arrangement funds are pooled in relation to 

Childrens Preventative Care.  Note 14 provides details of the income and expenditure.

The pool is hosted by Sunderland City Council. The clinical commissioning group accounts for its share of the assets, liabilities, income and 

expenditure arising from the activities of the pooled budget, identified in accordance with the pooled budget agreement

1.4 Operating Segments

Income and expenditure are analysed in the Operating Segments note and are reported in line with management information used within the clinical 

commissioning group.

1.5  Revenue

In the application of IFRS 15 a number of practical expedients offered in the Standard have been employed. These are as follows;

• As per paragraph 121 of the Standard the clinical commissioning group will not disclose information regarding performance obligations part of a 
contract that has an original expected duration of one year or less,

• The clinical commissioning group is to similarly not disclose information where revenue is recognised in line with the practical expedient offered in 
paragraph B16 of the Standard where the right to consideration corresponds directly with value of the performance completed to date.

• The FReM has mandated the exercise of the practical expedient offered in C7(a) of the Standard that requires the clinical commissioning group to 
reflect the aggregate effect of all contracts modified before the date of initial application.

The main source of funding for the clinical commissioning group is from NHS England. This is drawn down and credited to the general fund. Funding is 

recognised in the period in which it is received.

The clinical commissioning group receives revenue in respect of jointly commissioned services.  Details are included in note 2.

Revenue in respect of services provided is recognised when (or as) performance obligations are satisfied by transferring promised services to the 

customer, and is measured at the amount of the transaction price allocated to that performance obligation.

Where income is received for a specific performance obligation that is to be satisfied in the following year, that income is deferred.

Payment terms are standard reflecting cross government principles.

The value of the benefit received when the clinical commissioning group accesses funds from the Government’s apprenticeship service are recognised 
as income in accordance with IAS 20, Accounting for Government Grants. Where these funds are paid directly to an accredited training provider, non-

cash income and a corresponding non-cash training expense are recognised, both equal to the cost of the training funded.

1.6 Employee Benefits

1.6.1 Short-term Employee Benefits

Salaries, wages and employment-related payments, including payments arising from the apprenticeship levy, are recognised in the period in which the 

service is received from employees, including bonuses earned but not yet taken.
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Notes to the financial statements

1.6.2 Retirement Benefit Costs

Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the NHS Pensions Schemes. These schemes are unfunded, defined benefit schemes 

that cover NHS employers, General Practices and other bodies allowed under the direction of the Secretary of State in England and Wales. The 

schemes are not designed to be run in a way that would enable NHS bodies to identify their share of the underlying scheme liabilities. Therefore, the 

schemes are accounted for as if they were a defined contribution scheme; the cost recognised in these accounts represents the contributions payable 

for the year. Details of the benefits payable under these provisions can be found on the NHS Pensions website at www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/pensions.

For early retirements other than those due to ill health the additional pension liabilities are not funded by the scheme. The full amount of the liability for 

the additional costs is charged to expenditure at the time the clinical commissioning group commits itself to the retirement, regardless of the method of 

payment.

The schemes are subject to a full actuarial valuation every four years and an accounting valuation every year.

1.7 Grants Payable 

Where grant funding is not intended to be directly related to activity undertaken by a grant recipient in a specific period, the clinical commissioning 

group recognises the expenditure in the period in which the grant is paid. All other grants are accounted for on an accruals basis.

1.8 Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the lessee. All other leases are 

classified as operating leases.

1.8.1 The Clinical Commissioning Group as Lessee

Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases are initially recognised, at the inception of the lease, at fair value or, if lower, at the present 

value of the minimum lease payments, with a matching liability for the lease obligation to the lessor. Lease payments are apportioned between finance 

charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate on interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are 

recognised in calculating the clinical commissioning group’s surplus/deficit.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Lease incentives are recognised initially as a 

liability and subsequently as a reduction of rentals on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Contingent rentals are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Where a lease is for land and buildings, the land and building components are separated and individually assessed as to whether they are operating or 

finance leases.

1.9 Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash is cash in hand and deposits with any financial institution repayable without penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are 

investments that mature in 3 months or less from the date of acquisition and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk 

of change in value.

1.10 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the clinical commissioning group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable 

that the clinical commissioning group will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The 

amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into 

account the risks and uncertainties. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the obligation, its carrying amount is the 

present value of those cash flows using HM Treasury’s discount rate as follows:
Early retirement provisions are discounted using HM Treasury’s pension discount rate of negative 0.95% (2019-20: negative 0.50%) in real terms.  All 
general provisions are subject to four separate discount rates according to the expected timing of cashflows from the Statement of Financial Position 

date:

• A nominal short-term rate of 0.02% (2019-20: 0.51%) for inflation adjusted expected cash flows up to and including 5 years from Statement of 
Financial Position date.

• A nominal medium-term rate of 0.18% (2019-20: 0.55%) for inflation adjusted expected cash flows over 5 years up to and including 10 years from the 
Statement of Financial Position date.

• A nominal long-term rate of 1.99% (2019-20: 1.99%) for inflation adjusted expected cash flows over 10 years and up to and including 40 years from
the Statement of Financial Position date.

• A nominal very long-term rate of 1.99% (2019-20: 1.99%) for inflation adjusted expected cash flows exceeding 40 years from the Statement of 
Financial Position date.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognised 

as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursements will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

A restructuring provision is recognised when the clinical commissioning group has developed a detailed formal plan for the restructuring and has raised 

a valid expectation in those affected that it will carry out the restructuring by starting to implement the plan or announcing its main features to those 

affected by it. The measurement of a restructuring provision includes only the direct expenditures arising from the restructuring, which are those 

amounts that are both necessarily entailed by the restructuring and not associated with on-going activities of the entity.

1.11 Clinical Negligence Costs

NHS Resolution operates a risk pooling scheme under which the clinical commissioning group pays an annual contribution to NHS Resolution, which in 

return settles all clinical negligence claims. The contribution is charged to expenditure. Although NHS Resolution is administratively responsible for all 

clinical negligence cases, the legal liability remains with clinical commissioning group.
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Notes to the financial statements

1.12 Non-clinical Risk Pooling

The clinical commissioning group participates in the Property Expenses Scheme and the Liabilities to Third Parties Scheme. Both are risk pooling 

schemes under which the clinical commissioning group pays an annual contribution to the NHS Resolution and, in return, receives assistance with the 

costs of claims arising. The annual membership contributions, and any excesses payable in respect of particular claims are charged to operating 

expenses as and when they become due.

1.13 Financial Assets

Financial assets are recognised when the clinical commissioning group becomes party to the financial instrument contract or, in the case of trade 

receivables, when the goods or services have been delivered. Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights have expired or the asset 

has been transferred.

Financial assets are classified into the following categories:

· Financial assets at amortised cost;

· Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income and ;

· Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss.

The classification is determined by the cash flow and business model characteristics of the financial assets, as set out in IFRS 9, and is determined at 

the time of initial recognition.

1.13.1 Financial Assets at Amortised cost

Financial assets measured at amortised cost are those held within a business model whose objective is achieved by collecting contractual cash flows  

and where the cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest. This includes most trade receivables and other simple debt instruments.  After 

initial recognition these financial assets are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method less any impairment.  The effective interest 

rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of the financial 

asset.

1.13.2 Impairment

For all financial assets measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income (except equity instruments designated at fair 

value through other comprehensive income), lease receivables and contract assets, the clinical commissioning group recognises a loss allowance 

representing the expected credit losses on the financial asset.

The clinical commissioning group adopts the simplified approach to impairment in accordance with IFRS 9, and measures the loss allowance for trade 

receivables, lease receivables and contract assets at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.  For other financial assets, the loss allowance 

is measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on the financial instrument has increased significantly since initial 

recognition (stage 2) and otherwise at an amount equal to 12 month expected credit losses (stage 1).

HM Treasury has ruled that central government bodies may not recognise stage 1 or stage 2 impairments against other government departments, their 

executive agencies, the Bank of England, Exchequer Funds and Exchequer Funds assets where repayment is ensured by primary legislation.  The 

clinical commissioning group therefore does not recognise loss allowances for stage 1 or stage 2 impairments against these bodies.  Additionally 

Department of Health and Social Care provides a guarantee of last resort against the debts of its arm's lengths bodies and NHS bodies and the clinical 

commissioning group does not recognise allowances for stage 1 or stage 2 impairments against these bodies. 

For financial assets that have become credit impaired since initial recognition (stage 3), expected credit losses at the reporting date are measured as 

the difference between the asset's gross carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset's 

original effective interest rate.  Any adjustment is recognised in profit or loss as an impairment gain or loss.

1.14 Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognised on the statement of financial position when the clinical commissioning group becomes party to the contractual 

provisions of the financial instrument or, in the case of trade payables, when the goods or services have been received. Financial liabilities are de-

recognised when the liability has been discharged, that is, the liability has been paid or has expired.

1.14.1 Financial Liabilities at Fair Value Through Profit and Loss

Embedded derivatives that have different risks and characteristics to their host contracts, and contracts with embedded derivatives whose separate 

value cannot be ascertained, are treated as financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss. They are held at fair value, with any resultant gain or 

loss recognised in the clinical commissioning group’s surplus/deficit. The net gain or loss incorporates any interest payable on the financial liability.

The clinical commissioning group does not have any financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss.

1.15 Losses & Special Payments
Losses and special payments are items that Parliament would not have contemplated when it agreed funds for the health service or passed legislation. 

By their nature they are items that ideally should not arise. They are therefore subject to special control procedures compared with the generality of 

payments. They are divided into different categories, which govern the way that individual cases are handled.

Losses and special payments are charged to the relevant functional headings in expenditure on an accruals basis, including losses which would have 

been made good through insurance cover had the clinical commissioning group not been bearing its own risks (with insurance premiums then being 

included as normal revenue expenditure).

1.16 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the clinical commissioning group's accounting policies, management is required to make various judgements, estimates and 

assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associates 

assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from those estimates and 

the estimates and underlying assumptions are continually reviewed. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the 

estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future 

periods. These are regularly reviewed.

1.16.1 Critical accounting judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the judgements, apart from those involving estimations, that management has made in the process of applying the clinical 

commissioning group's accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements. 

- None
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Notes to the financial statements

1.16.2 Sources of estimation uncertainty

The following is considered to be the main assumption and source of estimation uncertainty that could potentially have a significant risk of resulting in a 

material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

The assumption applied in the estimation of prescribing liabilities not yet billed as at the Statement of Financial Position date. Nationally derived 

phasing profiles from the NHS Business Services Authority provided for forecasting the likely prescribing outturn has been utilised in deriving the 

estimated liability of costs not yet billed for the clinical commissioning group. This was estimated at £9,131,772 as at the Statement of Financial 

Position date (for the period 31st March 2020 the full value included in the financial statements totalled £8,441,874).

1.17 Accounting Standards That Have Been Issued But Have Not Yet Been Adopted

The Department of Health and Social Care GAM does not require the following IFRS Standards and Interpretations to be applied in 2020-21. These 

Standards are still subject to HM Treasury FReM adoption. 

● HM Treasury revised the implementation date for IFRS 16 in the UK public sector to 1 April 2022. Due to the need to reassess lease calculations, 
together with uncertainty on expected leasing activity from April 2022 and beyond, a quantification of the expected impact of applying the standard in 

2022/23 is currently impracticable. IFRS 16 Leases will replace IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease and 

other interpretations and will remove the distinction between operating and finance leases and as a result bring leases ‘on balance sheet’ for the first 
time. The new standard will be required to be applied retrospectively. However, the CCG does not expect this standard to have a material impact on 

non-current assets, liabilities and depreciation.
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2 Other Operating Revenue

2020-21 2020-21 2020-21 2019-20 2019-20 2019-20

Admin Programme Total Admin Programme Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Income from sale of goods and services (contracts)

Non-patient care services to other bodies 0 3 3 0 12 12

Other contract income 0 473 473 0 467 467

Total income from sale of goods and services 0 476 476 0 479 479

Other operating income

Non cash apprenticeship training grants revenue 0 5 5 3 5 8

Other non contract revenue 0 63 63 0 369 369

Total other operating income 0 68 68 3 374 377

Total operating income 0 544 544 3 853 856

Revenue in this note does not include cash received from NHS England, which is drawn down directly into the bank account of the clinical 

commissioning group and credited to the General Fund.
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3. Employee benefits and staff numbers

3.1. Employee benefits 2020-21 2019-20

Permanent 

Employees

Other Total Permanent 

Employees

Other Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Salaries and wages 5,625 243 5,868 5,185 124 5,309

Social security costs 527 0 527 488 0 488

Employer contributions to NHS Pension scheme 805 0 805 766 0 766

Apprenticeship levy 8 0 8 7 0 7

Gross employee benefits expenditure 6,965 243 7,208 6,446 124 6,570

3.2 Average number of people employed

Permanently 

employed

Other Total Permanently 

employed

Other Total

Number Number Number Number Number Number

Total 106 5 111 105 3 108

None of the above people were engaged on capital projects (2019-20: None).

3.3. Exit packages agreed in the financial year

No exit packages have been agreed in the financial year (2019-20: None).

2020-21 2019-20

Total Total

10



NHS Sunderland CCG - Annual Accounts 2020-21

3.4 Pension costs

Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the two NHS Pension Schemes. Details of the benefits payable and rules 

of the Schemes can be found on the NHS Pensions website at www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/pensions. Both are unfunded defined benefit 

schemes that cover NHS employers, GP practices and other bodies, allowed under the direction of the Secretary of State for Health and 

Social Care in England and Wales. They are not designed to be run in a way that would enable NHS bodies to identify their share of the 

underlying scheme liabilities. Therefore, each scheme is accounted for as if it were a defined contribution scheme: the cost to the NHS 

body of participating in each scheme is taken as equal to the contributions payable to that scheme for the accounting period.  

In order that the defined benefit obligations recognised in the financial statements do not differ materially from those that would be 

determined at the reporting date by a formal actuarial valuation, the FReM requires that “the period between formal valuations shall be 
four years, with approximate assessments in intervening years”. An outline of these follows:

3.4.1 Accounting valuation

A valuation of scheme liability is carried out annually by the scheme actuary (currently the Government Actuary’s Department) as at the 
end of the reporting period. This utilises an actuarial assessment for the previous accounting period in conjunction with updated 

membership and financial data for the current reporting period, and is accepted as providing suitably robust figures for financial reporting 

purposes. The valuation of the scheme liability as at 31 March 2021, is based on valuation data as 31 March 2020, updated to 31 March 

2021 with summary global member and accounting data. In undertaking this actuarial assessment, the methodology prescribed in IAS 

19, relevant FReM interpretations, and the discount rate prescribed by HM Treasury have also been used.

The latest assessment of the liabilities of the scheme is contained in the report of the scheme actuary, which forms part of the annual 

NHS Pension Scheme Accounts. These accounts can be viewed on the NHS Pensions website and are published annually. Copies can 

also be obtained from The Stationery Office.

3.4.2 Full actuarial (funding) valuation

The purpose of this valuation is to assess the level of liability in respect of the benefits due under the schemes (taking into account 

recent demographic experience), and to recommend contribution rates payable by employees and employers. 

The latest actuarial valuation undertaken for the NHS Pension Scheme was completed as at 31 March 2016. The results of this valuation 

set the employer contribution rate payable from April 2019 to 20.6% of pensionable pay (please note that while the employer contribution 

rate for NHS Pensions increased from 14.3% to 20.6% from 1st April 2019, from 2019/20, NHS CCGs continued to pay over 

contributions at the former rate with the additional amount being paid by NHS England on CCGs behalf, however the full cost and related 

funding has been recognised in these accounts). The 2016 funding valuation was also expected to test the cost of the Scheme relative to 

the employer cost cap that was set following the 2012 valuation. In January 2019, the Government announced a pause to the cost 

control element of the 2016 valuations, due to the uncertainty around member benefits caused by the discrimination ruling relating to the 

McCloud case. 

The Government subsequently announced in July 2020 that the pause had been lifted, and so the cost control element of the 2016 

valuations could be completed. The Government has set out that the costs of remedy of the discrimination will be included in this 

process. HMT valuation directions will set out the technical detail of how the costs of remedy will be included in the valuation process. 

The Government has also confirmed that the Government Actuary is reviewing the cost control mechanism (as was originally announced 

in 2018). The review will assess whether the cost control mechanism is working in line with original government objectives and reported 

to Government in April 2021.  The findings of this review will not impact the 2016 valuations, with the aim for any changes to the cost cap 

mechanism to be made in time for the completion of the 2020 actuarial valuations.
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4. Operating expenses Notes

4.1. Operating expenses

2020-21 2020-21 2020-21 2019-20 2019-20 2019-20

Admin Programme Total Admin Programme Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Purchase of goods and services

Purchase of healthcare from NHS and DHSC bodies: Services from other CCGs and NHS England 852 1,756 2,608 1,017 2,702 3,719

Purchase of healthcare from NHS and DHSC bodies: Services from foundation trusts 0 343,646 343,646 0 343,483 343,483

Purchase of healthcare from NHS and DHSC bodies: Services from other NHS trusts 0 0 0 0 270 270

Services from Other WGA bodies 0 147 147 0 240 240

Purchase of healthcare from non-NHS bodies 0 90,402 90,402 0 79,768 79,768

Purchase of social care 0 9,371 9,371 0 9,073 9,073

Prescribing costs 0 52,706 52,706 0 48,713 48,713

GPMS/APMS and PCTMS 0 42,846 42,846 0 40,252 40,252

Supplies and services – general 19 1,925 1,944 48 655 703

Consultancy services 9 0 9 12 0 12

Establishment 354 302 656 201 295 496

Transport 2 30 32 23 18 41

Premises 277 2,360 2,637 301 1,747 2,048

Audit fees 62 0 62 56 0 56

Other non statutory audit expenditure

·  Other services 7 0 7 14 0 14

Other professional fees 95 66 161 111 262 373

Legal fees 15 2 17 27 35 62

Education, training and conferences 80 64 144 142 247 389

Non cash apprenticeship training grants 0 5 5 3 5 8

 Total purchase of goods and services 1,772 545,629 547,401 1,955 527,765 529,720

Other Operating Expenditure

Chair and Non Executive Members 157 0 157 155 0 155

Grants to other bodies 0 0 0 0 41 41

Other expenditure 4 0 4 58 0 58

Total Other Operating Expenditure 161 0 161 213 41 254

Total operating expenditure 1,933 545,629 547,562 2,168 527,806 529,974

Included within Other professional fees is £65k (2019-20: £63k) for internal audit services.

4.2. Analysis of non NHS healthcare operating expenditure

2020-21 2020-21 2020-21 2020-21 2020-21

Total Independent/ 

Private 

Voluntary / 

Not-for-Profit

Local 

Authorities

Devolved 

Administrations

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Total primary healthcare purchased 1,056 1,056 0 0 0

Purchase of secondary healthcare

Social care (learning difficulties) 0 0 0 0 0

Mental health 13,025 2,269 855 9,901 0

Maternity 101 0 101 0 0

General and acute 2,144 1,045 355 655 89

Accident and emergency 45 45 0 0 0

Community health services 30,480 17,476 2,571 10,433 0

Continuing care incl different types of NHS funded care provided on continuous basis 43,552 778 27 42,747 0

Total secondary healthcare purchased 89,347 21,613 3,909 63,736 89

Social care 9,371 0 0 9,371 0

Total non NHS healthcare operation expenditure 99,774 22,669 3,909 73,107 89

2019-20 2019-20 2019-20 2019-20 2019-20

Total Independent/ 

Private 

Voluntary / 

Not-for-Profit

Local 

Authorities

Devolved 

Administrations

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Total primary healthcare purchased 556 556 0 0 0

Purchase of secondary healthcare

Social care (learning difficulties) 0 0 0 0 0

Mental health 12,260 1,950 860 9,450 0

Maternity 77 0 77 0 0

General and acute 6,729 6,033 157 344 195

Accident and emergency 1,916 1,916 0 0 0

Community health services 27,224 16,406 1,735 9,083 0

Continuing care incl different types of NHS funded care provided on continuous basis 31,003 251 0 30,752 0

Total secondary healthcare purchased 79,209 26,556 2,829 49,629 195

Social care 9,073 0 0 9,073 0

Total non NHS healthcare operation expenditure 88,838 27,112 2,829 58,702 195

Included within Premises is £139k (2019-20: £122k) for rentals under operating leases paid to NHS Property Services, the University of Sunderland and  RTC North Limited which is reported in note 6.

Other expenditure relates to a contribution towards exit costs of the South Tyneside CCG Accountable Officer following successful appointment of a Joint Accountable Officer for County Durham CCG, South 

Tyneside CCG and Sunderland CCG.

External audit fees and non audit services are inclusive of VAT.  Non-audit services are in respect of Mental Health Investment Standard assurance that NHSE requires CCGs to obtain from an independent 

reporting accountant, to demonstrate their investment in mental health expenditure rises at a faster rate than their overall published programme funding. The final Mental Health Investment Standard assurance 

2020/21 fee was £9k (including VAT), and the 2019/20 fee was £11.4k (including VAT).

In 2020/21 not all spend with foundations trusts came from Sunderland CCG.  As part of the revised financial regime COVID recovery expenditure that would have previously been paid by Sunderland CCG 

under the previous financial regime was instead paid by the Central ICP lead CCG.  In 2020/21 the lead CCG for the Central ICP was County Durham CCG. 
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5. Better Payment Practice Code

5.1. Measure of compliance 2020-21 2020-21 2019-20 2019-20

Number £'000 Number £'000

Non-NHS Payables

Total Non-NHS Trade invoices paid in the year 6,016 139,592 6,466 133,651

Total Non-NHS Trade Invoices paid within target 5,943 138,707 6,379 133,033

Percentage of Non-NHS Trade invoices paid within target 98.79% 99.37% 98.65% 99.54%

NHS Payables

Total NHS Trade Invoices Paid in the year 1,004 356,500 2,318 349,631

Total NHS Trade Invoices Paid within target 993 356,384 2,314 349,606

Percentage of NHS Trade Invoices paid within target 98.90% 99.97% 99.83% 99.99%

The Better Payment Practice Code requires the clinical commissioning group to aim to pay all valid invoices by the due date or within 30 days of 

receipt of a valid invoice, whichever is later.
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6. Operating Leases

6.1. As lessee

6.1.1 Payments recognised as an Expense 2020-21 2019-20

Buildings Other Total Buildings Other Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Payments recognised as an expense

Minimum lease payments 139 6 145 122 6 128

Total 139 6 145 122 6 128

6.1.2. Future minimum lease payments 2020-21 2019-20

Buildings Other Total Buildings Other Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Payable:

No later than one year 145 1 146 133 3 136

Between one and five years 254 0 254 379 0 379

After five years 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 399 1 400 512 3 515

The clinical commissioning group has entered into a small number of formal operating lease arrangements, relating to leased cars and photocopiers, none of which are 

individually significant.  Specific lease terms vary by individual arrangement but are based upon standard practice for the type of arrangement involved.

The clinical commissioning group also has arrangements in place with NHS Property Services in respect of the utilisation of various clinical and non-clinical properties.  

These largely relate to payments made in respect of void and sessional space in clinical properties, as well as for the clinical commissioning group's accommodation 

costs.

14



NHS Sunderland CCG - Annual Accounts 2020-21

7.1.  Trade and other receivables Current Current

31/03/2021 31/03/2020

£'000 £'000

NHS receivables: revenue 1,748 1,203

NHS prepayments 0 1,205

NHS accrued income 2 0

Non-NHS and other WGA receivables: revenue 673 319

Non-NHS and other WGA prepayments 225 185

VAT 6 0

Other receivables and accruals 2 2

Total trade & other receivables 2,656 2,915

Total current 2,656 2,915

7.2. Receivables past their due date but not impaired

31/03/2021 31/03/2021 31/03/2021 31/03/2020 31/03/2020 31/03/2020

DHSC Group 

Bodies

Non DHSC Group 

Bodies Total

DHSC Group 

Bodies

Non DHSC 

Group Bodies Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

By up to three months 513 0 513 3 1 4

By three to six months 0 10 10 0 0 0

By more than six months 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 513 10 523 3 1 4

8. Cash and cash equivalents

31/03/2021 31/03/2020

£'000 £'000

Balance at 01 April 153 241

Net change in year 78 (88)

Balance at 31 March 231 153

Made up of:

Cash with the Government Banking Service 231 153

Cash and cash equivalents as in statement of financial position 231 153

Balance at 31 March 231 153

The great majority of trade is with NHS England.  As NHS England is funded by Government to provide funding to clinical commissioning groups to 

commission services, no credit scoring for NHS England is considered necessary.

The clinical commissioning group held no cash and cash equivalents at 31 March 2021 on behalf of patients (31 March 2020 : £0)
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9. Trade and other payables Current Current

31/03/2021 31/03/2020

£'000 £'000

NHS payables: revenue 809 2,841

NHS accruals 112 5,857

Non-NHS and other WGA payables: revenue 5,129 3,437

Non-NHS and other WGA accruals 30,948 22,749

Social security costs 82 74

VAT 0 1

Tax 78 69

Other payables and accruals 2,713 2,665

Total trade & other payables 39,871 37,694

Total current 39,871 37,694

10. Provisions

Current Current

31/03/2021 31/03/2020

£'000 £'000

Other 493 493

Total 493 493

Total current and non-current 493 493

Other Total

£'000 £'000

Balance at 01 April 2020 493 493

Arising during the year 0 0

Balance at 31 March 2021 493 493

Expected timing of cash flows:

Within one year 493 493

Balance at 31 March 2021 493 493

Other Total

£'000 £'000

Balance at 01 April 2019 493 493

Arising during the year 0 0

Balance at 31 March 2020 493 493

Expected timing of cash flows:

Within one year 493 493

Balance at 31 March 2020 493 493

11. Contingencies

The clinical commissioning group has no contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2021 (31 March 2020: None).

The clinical commissioning group had no contingent assets as at 31 March 2021 (31 March 2020: None).

At 31 March 2021, the clinical commissioning group had no liabilities due in future years under arrangements to buy out the 

liability for early retirement over 5 years (31 March 2020: £0)

The clinical commissioning group has included a provision relating to a potential sustainability issue with a 

provider organisation.
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12. Financial instruments

12.1. Financial risk management

12.1.1. Credit risk

12.1.2. Liquidity risk

12.1.3. Financial instruments

As the cash requirements of NHS England are met through the Estimate process, financial instruments play a more limited role in creating 

and managing risk than would apply to a non-public sector body.  The majority of financial instruments relate to contracts to buy non-

financial items in line with NHS England's expected purchase and usage requirements and NHS England is therefore exposed to little 

credit, liquidity or market risk.

Because the majority of the NHS clinical commissioning group and revenue comes parliamentary funding, NHS clinical commissioning 

group has low exposure to credit risk. The maximum exposures as at the end of the financial year are in receivables from customers, as 

disclosed in the trade and other receivables note.

NHS clinical commissioning group is required to operate within revenue and capital resource limits, which are financed from resources 

voted annually by Parliament. The NHS clinical commissioning group draws down cash to cover expenditure, as the need arises. The NHS 

clinical commissioning group is not, therefore, exposed to significant liquidity risks.

Financial reporting standard IFRS 7 requires disclosure of the role that financial instruments have had during the period in creating or 

changing the risks a body faces in undertaking its activities.

Because NHS clinical commissioning group is financed through parliamentary funding, it is not exposed to the degree of financial risk faced 

by business entities. Also, financial instruments play a much more limited role in creating or changing risk than would be typical of listed 

companies, to which the financial reporting standards mainly apply. The clinical commissioning group has limited powers to borrow or invest 

surplus funds and financial assets and liabilities are generated by day-to-day operational activities rather than being held to change the 

risks facing the clinical commissioning group in undertaking its activities.

Treasury management operations are carried out by the finance department, within parameters defined formally within the NHS clinical 

commissioning group standing financial instructions and policies agreed by the Governing Body. Treasury activity is subject to review by the 

NHS clinical commissioning group and internal auditors.
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12 Financial instruments cont'd

12.2. Financial assets

Financial assets 

measured at 

amortised cost

Total

31/03/2021 31/03/2021

£'000 £'000

Trade and other receivables with NHSE bodies 1,618 1,618

Trade and other receivables with other DHSC group bodies 132 132

Trade and other receivables with external bodies 675 675

Cash and cash equivalents 231 231

Total at 31 March 2021 2,656 2,656

Financial assets 

measured at 

amortised cost

Total

31/03/2020 31/03/2020

£'000 £'000

Trade and other receivables with NHSE bodies 1,020 1,020

Trade and other receivables with other DHSC group bodies 183 183

Trade and other receivables with external bodies 320 320

Cash and cash equivalents 153 153

Total at 31 March 2020 1,676 1,676

12.3. Financial liabilities

Financial 

liabilities 

measured at 

amortised cost

Total

31/03/2021 31/03/2021

£'000 £'000

Trade and other payables with NHSE bodies 140 140

Trade and other payables with other DHSC group bodies 12,640 12,640

Trade and other payables with external bodies 26,932 26,932

Total at 31 March 2021 39,711 39,711

Financial liabilities 

measured at 

amortised cost

Total

31/03/2020 31/03/2020

£'000 £'000

Trade and other payables with NHSE bodies 1,665 1,665

Trade and other payables with other DHSC group bodies 17,226 17,226

Trade and other payables with external bodies 18,658 18,658

Total at 31 March 2020 37,549 37,549

13. Operating segments

The clinical commissioning group has considered the definition of an operating segment contained within IFRS 8 in 

determining its operating segments, in particular considering the internal reporting to the clinical commissioning group's 

governing body, considered to be the 'chief operating decision maker' of the clinical commissioning group, which was 

used for the purpose of resource allocation and assessment of performance.

All activity performed by the clinical commissioning group relates to its role as a commissioner of healthcare for its 

relevant population.  As a result, the clinical commissioning group considers that it has only one operating segment, 

being the commissioning of healthcare services. 
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14. Joint arrangements - interests in joint operations

The clinical commissioning group’s shares of the income and expenditure handled by the pooled budget in the financial year were:

14.1. Interests in joint operations

Name of 

arrangement

Parties to the 

arrangement

Description of 

principal activities
Income Expenditure Income Expenditure

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Better Care Fund

NHS Sunderland 

CCG and 

Sunderland City 

Council

Commissioning of out 

of hospital care
0         (167,717) 0   (152,594)

Children's 

Preventative Care

NHS Sunderland 

CCG and 

Sunderland City 

Council

Children's 

preventative care and 

improving 

commissioning 

initiatives 

490 (1,795) 460         (1,776)

Amounts recognised in entities books

2020-21

Amounts recognised in entities books

2019-20

The clinical commissioning group has entered into two pooled budget arrangements with Sunderland City Council. Both pools are hosted by 

Sunderland City Council.
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15. Related party transactions

During the year 2020-21 the clinical commissioning group has undertaken transactions with the following clinical commissioning group Governing Body members or key management staff, or parties related to any of them:

Name Title Declaration Related Party Payments to 

Related 

Party

Receipts 

from 

Related 

Party

Amounts 

owed to 

Related 

Party

Amounts 

due from 

Related 

Party

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Ian Pattison Governing Body Chair GP Partner at Southlands Medical Group Southlands Medical Group 1,152 0 37 0

Ian Pattison Governing Body Chair GP Appraiser NHS England 1,119 2,010 137 1,317

Ian Pattison Governing Body Chair Wife is a Portfolio GP NHS England 1,119 2,010 137 1,317

Neil O'Brien Accountable Officer Working as Accountable Officer/Chief Clinical Officer County Durham CCG 0 510 0 162

Neil O'Brien Accountable Officer Working as Accountable Officer/Chief Clinical Officer South Tyneside CCG 121 392 11 46

Neil O'Brien Accountable Officer  Wife works at County Durham and Darlington NHS 

Foundation Trust

County Durham and Darlington NHS 

Foundation Trust

8,176 0 7 0

David Chandler Chief Finance Officer and 

Deputy Chief Officer

Friends with Assistant Finance Director income and 

Contracting, Newcastle Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust

Newcastle Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 12,345 90 254 0

David Chandler Chief Finance Officer and 

Deputy Chief Officer

Friends with Head of Finance and Business Development 

- South Locality, Cumbria, Northumberland Tyne & Wear 

NHS Foundation Trust

Northumberland, Tyne and Wear NHS 

Foundation Trust

56,465 0 207 0

David Chandler Chief Finance Officer and 

Deputy Chief Officer

Wife is Assistant Director of Finance – Costing & 
Contracting at Gateshead Health NHS Foundation Trust

Gateshead Health NHS Foundation Trust 21,136 0 0 2

David Chandler Chief Finance Officer and 

Deputy Chief Officer

Sister is a nurse in ITU unit South Tyneside and 

Sunderland NHS Foundation Trust

South Tyneside and Sunderland NHS 

Foundation Trust

232,440 1 15 46

David Chandler Chief Finance Officer and 

Deputy Chief Officer

HFMA Northern Branch Chair HFMA 4 0 0 0

David Chandler Chief Finance Officer and 

Deputy Chief Officer

HFMA Commissioning Faculty Forum Chair HFMA 4 0 0 0

David Chandler Chief Finance Officer and 

Deputy Chief Officer

HFMA Trustee HFMA 4 0 0 0

Ann Fox Director of Nursing, Quality and 

Safety

Honorary title from University of Sunderland University of Sunderland 44 0 56 0

Scott Watson Director of Contracting and 

Informatics

Mother employed by South Tynesiide & Sunderland NHS 

Foundation Trust

South Tyneside and Sunderland NHS 

Foundation Trust

232,440 1 15 46

Scott Watson Director of Contracting and 

Informatics

Step mother is member of Sunderland City Council Sunderland City Council 68,148 105 12,037 591

Scott Watson Director of Contracting and 

Informatics

Aunt is employed by South Tyneside and Sunderland 

NHS Foundation Trust

South Tyneside and Sunderland NHS 

Foundation Trust

232,440 1 15 46

Scott Watson Director of Contracting and 

Informatics

Friends with Director South Tyneside and Sunderland NHS 

Foundation Trust

232,440 1 15 46

Tarryn Lake Deputy Chief Finance Officer Friends with Divisional Finance Manager South Tyneside and Sunderland NHS 

Foundation Trust

232,440 1 15 46

Claire Bradford Medical Director Deputy Chair of Northern Cancer Alliance (hosted by 

NHS England)

NHS England 1,119 2,010 137 1,317

Raj Bethapudi Executive GP GP Partner,  Galleries Medical Group Galleries Medical Group 1,559 0 15 0

Raj Bethapudi Executive GP Brother is a consultant radiologist at County Durham and 

Darlington NHS Foundation Trust

County Durham and Darlington NHS 

Foundation Trust

8,176 0 7 0

Raj Bethapudi Executive GP Brother is GP Partner in a practice in Durham which falls 

under Durham CCG

NHS County Durham CCG 0 510 0 162

Karthik Gellia Executive GP GP Partner, Dr Gellia and Dr Balaraman Dr Gellia and Dr Balaraman 678 0 0 0

Fadi Khalil Executive GP GP Partner at Broadway Medical Practice Broadway Medical Practice 971 0 0 25

Fadi Khalil Executive GP GP Partner at  New Silksworth Medical Practice 

(Sunderland GP Alliance)

Sunderland GP Alliance 13,007 0 468 47

Tracey Lucas Executive GP GP Partner at Deerness Park Medical Group Deerness Park Medical Group 1,982 0 205 0

Saira Malik Executive GP GP Partner at Sunderland GP Alliance Sunderland GP Alliance 13,007 0 468 47

Saira Malik Executive GP Provides advice re ICAR services to South Tyneside and 

Sunderland NHS Foundation Trust

South Tyneside and Sunderland NHS 

Foundation Trust

232,440 1 15 46

Saira Malik Executive GP Brother is a Doctor at South Tyneside and Sunderland 

NHS Foundation Trust

South Tyneside and Sunderland NHS 

Foundation Trust

232,440 1 15 46

Saira Malik Executive GP Electee public governor South Tyneside and Sunderland NHSFT 232,440 1 15 46

Eric Harrison Executive Practice Manager Managing Partner at Deerness Park Medical Group Deerness Park Medical Group 1,982 0 205 0

Clare Nesbit Director of People and Primary 

Care

Ex daughter-in-law is employed by Gateshead Health 

NHS  Foundation Trust

Gateshead Health NHS Foundation Trust 21,136 0 0 2

Clare Nesbit Director of People and Primary 

Care

Sister employed by Gateshead Health NHS Foundation 

Trust as the integration agenda lead.   

Gateshead Health NHS Foundation Trust 21,136 0 0 2

Clare Nesbit Director of People and Primary 

Care

Sister in law employed as Breast Screening Nurse at 

Gateshead NHS  Foundation Trust

Gateshead Health NHS Foundation Trust 21,136 0 0 2

Debbie Burnicle Lay Member PPI Ambassador in a voluntary role acting as a critical friend 

and promoting the needs of carer and how the centre can 

support carers to continue to care for Sunderland Carers 

Centre

Sunderland Carers Centre 50 0 0 0

Pat Harle Lay Member PCCC Lay member of South Tyneside CCG South Tyneside CCG 121 392 11 46

Pat Harle Lay Member PCCC Appointed member of council of governors for South 

Tyneside and Sunderland NHS FT

South Tyneside and Sunderland NHS 

Foundation Trust

232,440 1 15 46

Florence Gunn Strategic Practice Nurse Practice Nurse at Forge Medical Practice Forge Medical Practice 1,334 0 40 0

Florence Gunn Strategic Practice Nurse Son is project lead for value based commissioning at the 

North of England Commissioning Support Unit

North of England Commissioning Support Unit 5,862 75 128 0

Matt Thubron Head of Contracting and 

Performance

Sister-in-law is employed by South Tyneside and 

Sunderland NHS Foundation Trust

South Tyneside and Sunderland NHS 

Foundation Trust

232,440 1 15 46

Helen Steadman Head of Strategy and Planning Brother is Estates Officer at Newcastle Hospitals NHS 

Foundation Trust

Newcastle Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 12,345 90 254 0
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Name Title Declaration Related Party Payments to 

Related 

Party

Receipts 

from 

Related 

Party

Amounts 

owed to 

Related 

Party

Amounts 

due from 

Related 

Party

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Ian Pattison Governing Body Chair GP Partner at Southlands Medical Group Southlands Medical Group 1,229 0 72 0

Ian Pattison Governing Body Chair Partner is a locum GP at Southlands Medical Group Southlands Medical Group 1,229 0 72 0

Ian Pattison Governing Body Chair GP Appraiser NHS England 782 493 215 434

David Gallagher Chief Officer Daughter is store manager at Specsavers Peterlee Ltd. Specsavers Hearcare Ltd. 768 0 70 0

David Gallagher Chief Officer Non- Executive Director for Academic Health Science 

Network

Academic Health Science Network For The 

North East & North Cumbria LTD

203 10 72 0

David Chandler Chief Finance Officer and 

Deputy Chief Officer

Friends with Assistant Finance Director income and 

Contracting, Newcastle-upon-Tyne Hospitals NHS 

Foundation Trust 

Newcastle-upon-Tyne Hospitals NHS 

Foundation Trust 

11,148 5 549 0

David Chandler Chief Finance Officer and 

Deputy Chief Officer

Friends with Head of Finance and Business Development 

- South Locality, Cumbria Northumberland Tyne & Wear 

NHS Foundation Trust

Cumbria, Northumberland, Tyne and Wear 

NHS Foundation Trust

54,287 0 495 2

David Chandler Chief Finance Officer and 

Deputy Chief Officer

Wife is Assistant Director of Finance – Costing & 
Contracting at Gateshead Health NHS Foundation Trust

Gateshead Health NHS Foundation Trust 20,396 0 51 0

David Chandler Chief Finance Officer and 

Deputy Chief Officer

Sister is a nurse in ITU unit South Tyneside and 

Sunderland NHS Foundation Trust

South Tyneside and Sunderland NHS 

Foundation Trust

232,489 72 490 178

David Chandler Chief Finance Officer and 

Deputy Chief Officer

HFMA Northern Branch Chair HFMA 6 0 0 0

David Chandler Chief Finance Officer and 

Deputy Chief Officer

HFMA Commissioning Faculty Forum Chair HFMA 6 0 0 0

Ann Fox Director of Nursing, Quality and 

Safety

Honorary title from University of Sunderland University of Sunderland 202 0 1 0

Scott Watson Director of Contracting and 

Informatics

Mother employed by South Tyneside & Sunderland NHS 

Foundation Trust

South Tyneside and Sunderland NHS 

Foundation Trust

232,489 72 490 178

Scott Watson Director of Contracting and 

Informatics

Sister is employed by Ward Hadaway solicitors Ward Hadaway Solicitors 26 0 0 0

Scott Watson Director of Contracting and 

Informatics

Step mother is member of Sunderland City Council Sunderland City Council 60,362 574 5,621 298

Scott Watson Director of Contracting and 

Informatics

Aunt is employed by South Tyneside and Sunderland 

NHS Foundation Trust

South Tyneside and Sunderland NHS 

Foundation Trust

232,489 72 490 178

Scott Watson Director of Contracting and 

Informatics

Friends with Director South Tyneside and Sunderland NHS 

Foundation Trust

232,489 72 490 178

Tarryn Lake Deputy Chief Finance Officer Friends with Divisional Finance Manager South Tyneside and Sunderland NHS 

Foundation Trust

232,489 72 490 178

Claire Bradford Medical Director Deputy medical referee Newcastle City Council Newcastle City Council 0 0 0 17

Claire Bradford Medical Director Deputy Chairman of Northern Cancer Alliance (hosted by 

NHS England)

NHS England 782 493 215 434

Derek Cruickshank Secondary Care Clinician Secondary Care Clinician at NHS South Tees CCG NHS South Tees CCG 442 8 4 5

Raj Bethapudi Executive GP GP Partner,  Galleries Medical Group Galleries Medical Group 1,352 0 102 0

Raj Bethapudi Executive GP Brother is a consultant radiologist at County Durham and 

Darlington NHS Foundation Trust

County Durham and Darlington NHS 

Foundation Trust

7,377 0 585 0

Raj Bethapudi Executive GP Brother works at Spire Healthcare Spire Healthcare Ltd 2,821 0 0 155

Karthik Gellia Executive GP GP Partner, Dr Gellia and Dr Balaraman Dr Gellia and Dr Balaraman 603 0 49 0

Fadi Khalil Executive GP GP Partner at Broadway Medical Practice Broadway Medical Practice 932 0 62 0

Fadi Khalil Executive GP GP Partner at  New Silksworth Medical Practice 

(Sunderland GP Alliance)

Sunderland GP Alliance 10,985 0 167 0

Tracey Lucas Executive GP GP Partner at Deerness Park Medical Group Deerness Park Medical Group 2,008 0 258 0

Saira Malik Executive GP Father is a member of the South Tyneside and 

Sunderland NHS Foundation Trust Board

South Tyneside and Sunderland NHS 

Foundation Trust

232,489 72 490 178

Saira Malik Executive GP Provides advice re ICAR services to South Tyneside and 

Sunderland NHS Foundation Trust

South Tyneside and Sunderland NHS 

Foundation Trust

232,489 72 490 178

Saira Malik Executive GP Brother is a Doctor at STSFT South Tyneside and Sunderland NHS 

Foundation Trust

232,489 72 490 178

Chris Macklin Lay member Audit and Risk 

Committee Chair

Wife is a Medical Secretary  at Northumbria Healthcare Northumbria Healthcare Foundation Trust 693 0 454 0

Eric Harrison Executive Practice Manager Managing Partner at Deerness Park Medical Group Deerness Park Medical Group 2,008 0 258 0

Clare Nesbit Director of People and Primary 

Care

Daughter employed as an Operations Manager within the 

NHS Business Services Authority 

NHS Business Services Authority 9 0 0 0

Clare Nesbit Director of People and Primary 

Care

Ex daughter-in-law is employed by Gateshead Health 

NHS FT

Gateshead Health NHS Foundation Trust 20,396 0 51 0

Clare Nesbit Director of People and Primary 

Care

Sister employed by Gateshead Health NHS Foundation 

Trust as the integration agenda lead.   

Gateshead Health NHS Foundation Trust 20,396 0 51 0

Clare Nesbit Director of People and Primary 

Care

Sister in law employed as Breast Screening Nurse at 

Gateshead NHSFT

Gateshead Health NHS Foundation Trust 20,396 51 0

Debbie Burnicle Lay Member PPI Ambassador in a voluntary role acting as a critical friend 

and promoting the needs of carer and how the centre can 

support carers to continue to care for Sunderland Carers 

Centre

Sunderland Carers Centre 130 0 0 0

Pat Harle Lay Member PCCC Lay member of South Tyneside CCG South Tyneside CCG 24 74 26 502

Pat Harle Lay Member PCCC Appointed member of council of governors for South 

Tyneside and Sunderland NHS FT

South Tyneside and Sunderland NHS 

Foundation Trust

232,489 72 490 178

Florence Gunn Executive Practice Nurse Practice Nurse at Pallion Family Practice Pallion Family Practice 1,440 0 112 0

Florence Gunn Executive Practice Nurse Son is project lead for value based commissioning at the 

North of England Commissioning Support Unit

North of England Commissioning Support Unit 2,475 77 803 1

Matt Thubron Head of Contracting and 

Performance

Sister-in-law is employed by South Tyneside and 

Sunderland NHS Foundation Trust

South Tyneside and Sunderland NHS 

Foundation Trust

232,489 72 490 178

Helen Steadman Head of Strategy, Planning and 

Reform

Brother is Estates Officer at Newcastle-upon-Tyne 

Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 

Newcastle-upon-Tyne Hospitals NHS 

Foundation Trust 

11,148 5 549 0

During the year 2019-20 the clinical commissioning group has undertaken transactions with the following clinical commissioning group Governing Body members or key management staff, or parties related to any of them:
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15. Related party transactions (continued)

Payments to 

Related Party

Receipts from 

Related Party

Amounts owed to 

Related Party

Amounts due 

from Related 

Party

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Ashburn Medical Centre* 717 0 28 0

Bridge View Medical Group* - Dr Weatherhead and Cloak 62 0 146 0

Broadway Medical Practice* 971 0 0 25

Castletown Medical Centre* 349 0 22 0

Chester Surgery* 397 0 3 0

Church View Medical Centre*1 0 0 5 0

Colliery Medical Group 0 0 0 0

Concord Medical Practice 756 0 26 0

Conishead Medical Group (Dr Hipwell)*6 0 0 26 0

Deerness Park Medical Group* 1,982 0 205 0

Dr Bhate & El-Shakankery (Riverview Health Centre)*3 862 0 134 0

Dr Gellia and Dr Balaraman * (formerly Roker Family practice) 678 0 27 0

Dr Nathan*2 0 0 53 0

Dr Obonna*5 0 0 13 0

Dr Stephenson & Partners* 1,935 0 59 0

Dr Weatherhead & Associates* (Bridgeview - merge with Dr Cloak)4 2,367 0 0 0

Forge Medical Practice - Old Forge Surgery* 1,334 0 40 0

Fulwell Medical Centre* 1,313 0 31 0

Galleries Medical Practice - The Galleries Medical Group (formerly Dr Dixit Practice) 1,559 0 15 0

Grangewood Surgery* 1,036 0 35 0

Happy House Surgery 938 0 31 0

Herrington Medical Centre* 1,361 0 43 0

Hetton Group Practice* 1,931 0 15 0

Houghton Medical Group* 1,083 0 48 0

Hylton Medical Group 773 0 49 0

IJ Healthcare - Harraton Surgery 621 0 21 0

Kepier Medical Practice* 1,369 0 18 0

Millfield Medical Group* 1,902 0 72 0

New Silksworth Medical Practice (GP Alliance) 0 0 37 0

New Washington Medical Group3 950 0 105 0

Pallion Family Practice* 1,582 0 11 0

Park Lane Practice* 528 0 15 0

Redhouse Medical Centre* 774 0 29 0

Rickleton Medical Centre* 287 0 9 0

South Hylton Surgery* (GP Alliance) 7 0 17 0

Southlands Medical Group* 1,152 0 37 0

Springwell Medical Group* 887 0 35 0

St. Bede Medical Centre* 1,259 0 32 0

Sunderland GP Alliance 13,007 0 468 47

The New City Medical Group 903 0 0 17

Villette Surgery* (Dr Brigham & Partners) 873 0 41 0

Village Surgery* (Joshi) 640 0 20 0

Wearside Medical Practice* (Dr Shetty) 1,050 0 52 0

Westbourne Medical Group* 871 0 35 0

* Member Practice of Sunderland GP Alliance http://www.sunderlandgpalliance.co.uk/member-practices/ 

2
Dr Nathan merged with Drs Bhate & El-Shakankery (Riverview Health Centre) on 01 April 2018.

3
Dr Thomas, Drs Bhatt and Ben, and Dr Ray merged on 2 May 2018 to form New Washington Medical Group.

4
Dr Wheatherhead merged with Bridgeview Medical Group on 1st April 2020

5
Dr Obonna closed - patient list disbursed in 2019

6
Conishead Practice was closed and the patient list dispersed in 2017; transactions relate to outstanding 2017/18 balances.

Other Government Bodies Payments to 

Related Party

Receipts from 

Related Party

Amounts owed to 

Related Party

Amounts due 

from Related 

Party

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Sunderland City Council 68,148 105 12,037 591

The clinical commissioning group is a membership organisation.  The GP Practices of Sunderland are all members of the clinical commissioning group. The table below 

lists the 2020-21 related party transactions with the Member Practices of Sunderland. In addition, the clinical commissioning group works with the Sunderland GP 

Alliance who are part of a collaboration agreement with practices in Sunderland. The table below outlines the transactions with this organisation and outlines the 

practices who are members of each GP alliance.  

Related Party

1 
Church View Practice (owned by City Hospitals Sunderland NHS Foundation Trust) and Colliery Medical Group merged in June 2017 to form New Silksworth Medical 

Practice.   Transactions shown for Colliery Medical Group relate to reconciling balances prior to the merger; transactions relating to New Silksworth Medical Practice are 

shown within the transactions for Sunderland GP Alliance.

The Department of Health and Social Care is regarded as a related party. During the year 2020-21 the clinical commissioning group has had a significant number of 

material transactions with entities for which the Department is regarded as the parent Department.

The Annual Report sets out details of the Sunderland All Together Better Alliance in place from 1 April 2019, which is an ‘alliance’ of providers and commissioners, working together to 
join up out of hospital health and care services and improve health outcomes. The main partners are already listed in this disclosure note, being Sunderland Council, the CCG itself, the 

Sunderland GP Alliance, STSFT and CNTW (value of All Together Better Alliance transactions for year ended 31 March 2021 being £222,923k). 

Department of Health Entity

South Tyneside and Sunderland NHS Foundation Trust 

Cumbria, Northumberland, Tyne and Wear NHS Foundation Trust 

Gateshead Health NHS Foundation Trust 

North East Ambulance Services NHS Foundation Trust 

In addition, the clinical commissioning group has had a number of material transactions with other government departments and other central and local government 

bodies in 2020-21. Most of these transactions have been with Sunderland City Council as outlined below.
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15. Related party transactions (continued)

Payments to 

Related Party

Receipts from 

Related Party

Amounts owed to 

Related Party

Amounts due 

from Related 

Party

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Ashburn Medical Centre* 756 0 45 0

Bridge View Medical Group* 1,477 0 103 0

Castletown Medical Centre* 317 0 0 0

Chester Surgery* 363 0 19 0

Church View Medical Centre* 0 0 10 0

Colliery Medical Group1 0 0 94 0

Concord Medical Practice 765 0 41 0

Conishead Medical Group (Dr Hipwell)*1 16 0 0 0

Deerness Park Medical Group* 2,008 0 258 0

Dr Bhate & El-Shakankery (Riverview Health Centre)*2 878 0 89 0

Dr Gellia and Dr Balaraman * 603 0 49 0

Dr Nathan*2 0 0 0 0

Dr Obonna*4 209 0 18 0

Dr Stephenson & Partners* 2,154 0 102 0

Dr Weatherhead & Associates* 604 0 47 0

Forge Medical Practice - Old Forge Surgery* 1,276 0 67 0

Fulwell Medical Centre* 1,361 0 60 0

Galleries Medical Practice - The Galleries Medical Group (formerly Dr Dixit Practice)* 1,352 0 102 0

Grangewood Surgery* 1,033 0 57 0

Happy House Surgery 901 0 43 0

Herrington Medical Centre* 1,258 0 87 0

Hetton Group Practice* 2,039 0 122 0

Houghton Medical Group* 1,021 0 69 0

Hylton Medical Group 783 0 56 0

IJ Healthcare - Harraton Surgery 632 0 34 0

Kepier Medical Practice* 1,209 0 78 0

Millfield Medical Group* 1,811 0 109 0

New Silksworth Medical Practice* 0 0 0 0

New Washington Medical Group*3 1,123 0 69 0

Pallion Family Practice* 1,440 0 112 0

Park Lane Practice* 489 0 29 0

Redhouse Medical Centre* 760 0 0 0

Rickleton Medical Centre* 279 0 17 0

South Hylton Surgery* 426 0 34 0

Southlands Medical Group* 1,229 0 72 0

Springwell Medical Group* 859 0 63 0

St. Bede Medical Centre* 1,240 0 0 0

Sunderland GP Alliance 10,985 0 167 0

Broadway Medical Practice* 932 0 62 0

The New City Medical Group 840 0 46 0

Villette Surgery* 848 0 58 0

Village Surgery* 627 0 35 0

Wearside Medical Practice* 1,041 0 67 0

Westbourne Medical Group* 891 0 55 0

* Member Practice of Sunderland GP Alliance

1 Conishead Practice was closed and the patient list dispersed in 2017; transactions relate to outstanding 2017/18 balances.

2 Dr Nathan merged with Drs Bhate & El-Shakankery (Riverview Health Centre) on 01 April 2018.

3 Dr Thomas, Drs Bhatt and Ben, and Dr Ray merged on 2 May 2018 to form New Washington Medical Group.

4 Dr Obonna retired in September 2019 with the list being dispersed

Department of Health Entity

South Tyneside and Sunderland NHS Foundation Trust 

Cumbria, Northumberland, Tyne and Wear NHS Foundation Trust 

Gateshead Health NHS Foundation Trust 

North East Ambulance Services NHS Foundation Trust 

Other Government Bodies Payments to 

Related Party

Receipts from 

Related Party

Amounts owed to 

Related Party

Amounts due 

from Related 

Party

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Sunderland City Council 60,362 574 5,621 298

The clinical commissioning group is a membership organisation.  The GP Practices of Sunderland are all members of the clinical commissioning group. The table below 

lists the 2019-20 related party transactions with the Member Practices of Sunderland. In addition, the clinical commissioning group works with the Sunderland GP Alliance 

who are part of a collaboration agreement with practices in Sunderland. The table below outlines the transactions with this organisation and outlines the practices who are 

members of each GP alliance.  

Related Party

The Department of Health and Social Care is regarded as a related party. During the year 2019-20 the clinical commissioning group has had a significant number of material transactions 

with entities for which the Department is regarded as the parent Department.

In addition, the clinical commissioning group has had a number of material transactions with other government departments and other central and local government bodies in 2019-20. Most 

of these transactions have been with Sunderland City Council as outlined below.

The Annual Report sets out details of the Sunderland All Together Better Alliance in place from 1 April 2019, which is an ‘alliance’ of providers and commissioners, working together to join 
up out of hospital health and care services and improve health outcomes. The main partners are already listed in this disclosure note, being Sunderland Council, the CCG itself, the 

Sunderland GP Alliance, STSFT and CNTW (value of All Together Better Alliance transactions for year ended 31 March 2020 being £204,907k). 
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16. Events after the end of the reporting period

17. Financial performance targets

NHS Act Section Duty Duty Duty 

Target Performance Achieved? Target Performance Achieved? 

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

223H (1) Expenditure not to exceed income 559,739 554,769 Yes 540,385 536,544 Yes

223I (2) Capital resource use does not exceed the amount specified in Directions 0 0 Yes 0 0 Yes

223I (3) Total Revenue resource use does not exceed the amount specified in 

Directions

559,195 554,226 Yes 539,528 535,688 Yes

223J (1) Capital resource use on specified matter(s) does not exceed the amount 

specified in Directions

0 0 Yes 0 0 Yes

223J (2) Revenue resource use on specified matter(s) does not exceed the amount 

specified in Directions

0 0 Yes 0 0 Yes

223J (3) Revenue administration resource use does not exceed the amount specified 

in Directions

5,457 4,472 Yes 6,148 5,483 Yes

The clinical commissioning group received no capital resource during the year ended 31 March 2021 and incurred no capital expenditure (year ended 31 March 2020: £0)

The financial targets included in the table above are as per CCG Allocations Directions published by NHS England and Improvement.

Performance against the revenue expenditure duties is further analysed below:

2020-21 2020-21 2020-21 2019-20 2019-20 2019-20

Programme Administration Total Programme Administration Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Revenue resource 553,738 5,457 559,195 533,380 6,148 539,528

Net operating cost for the financial year 549,754 4,472 554,226 530,205 5,483 535,688

Underspend against in year revenue resource available 3,984 985 4,969 3,175 665 3,840

2020-21 2020-21 2020-21 2019-20 2019-20 2019-20

Programme Administration Total Programme Administration Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

In year revenue resource available to the clinical commissioning group 573,947 5,457 579,404 549,749 6,148 555,897

Net operating cost for the financial year 549,754 4,472 554,226 530,205 5,483 535,688

Underspend against revenue resource 24,193 985 25,178 19,544 665 20,209

There are no post balance sheet events which would have a material effect on the financial statements of the clinical commissioning group (2019-20: None)

2019-202020-21

Prior to the start of the 2019/20 financial year the CCG agreed with NHS England and Improvement to drawdown (£4,500k) of cumulative surpluses to support transformation, which is included within the programme 

revenue resource totals provided above. The 2019/20 financial year underspend against the revenue resource includes £3,700k additional surplus agreed by the CCG Governing Body to support system wide 

pressures. 

The revenue resources outlined in the table above only includes the  financial performance against in year resources available to the clinical commissioning group. The table below outlines the clinical commissioning 

groups cumulative financial position incorporating brought forward surpluses from previous financial years which have not been utilised.

Within 2020/21 NHSE/I introduced a revised financial regime in response to the COVID pandemic, which effectively split the financial year in two.  The first six months of the financial year involved the suspension of 

normal business rules and replaced these with a retrospective top up model whereby the CCG were funded based on reported expenditure, whilst for the second six months there was a return to allocated resource 

both at CCG level and within systems.  The most relevant of these systems for Sunderland CCG being the Central Integrated Care Partnership (ICP) which contains Sunderland CCG, South Tyneside CCG, County 

Durham CCG, South Tyneside and Sunderland NHS Foundation Trust and County Durham NHS FountationTrust.  Of the above in year underspend £1,200k of this was in relation to system resource, and £3,234k 

related to unutilised transformation funding in part linked to the COVID pandemic as agreed with NHS England and Improvement.

Please note that the CCG funding mechanism was different in 2020/21 compared to 2019/20, due to a revised financial regime introduced by NHS England and Improvement in response to the COVID -19 pandemic.  

Therefore, comparisons beween 2019/20 and 2020/21 target figures are not able to be made.
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CATEGORY OF PAPER  

Proposes specific action  

Provides assurance   

For information only  

 
GOVERNING BODY  

 
25 May 2021 

Report Title: 
 

Committee Annual Reviews 2020/21 
 

Purpose of report 

 
To provide the Governing Body with the annual reviews of each formal sub-committee for the 
period 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021.   

Key points 

In order to provide assurance to the Governing Body on the delivery of the functions that have 
been delegated to a formal sub-committee, each committee undertakes an annual review of its 
performance and effectiveness throughout the year as specified in its terms of reference.  This 
includes identifying the main areas of work the committee has focused on and any key challenges 
in the delivery of these.   
 
The attached report outlines the achievements and assurances the committee has gained 
throughout the year to demonstrate its roles and responsibilities and also includes any risks 
identified as part of this work.  The report also includes a review of attendance and a forward look 
to the coming financial year 
 
The attached paper provides an overview of each of the Governing Body sub-committee’s as 
follows: 

• Appendix 1 - Executive Committee 

• Appendix 2 - Quality and Safety Committee 

• Appendix 3 - Audit and Risk Committee 

• Appendix 4 - Primary Care Commissioning Committee 

• Appendix 5 – Patient and Public Involvement Committee 
 
The attached reviews focus on the committees’ performance and effectiveness throughout the 
year, as well as identifying the main areas of work the committees has focused on.  The review 
also outlines the achievements and assurances each committee has gained through this work and 
also includes highlights the main challenges they have faced as well as forward look to the coming 
financial year. 
 
The committees have also asked each of their formal sub- groups to undertake an annual review to 
provide it with assurance on their effectiveness in delivering their roles and responsibilities.  The 
committees have received and reviewed the sub-group annual reviews and were assured that they 
had operated within their agreed terms of reference.  
 
Please note due to the infrequency of meetings and the nature of the information 
(sensitive/personal) considered by the Remuneration Committee, an annual review is not 
undertaken.  However, the Committee met one occasion and assurance gained via its minutes 
(submitted to the Governing Body for assurance) that the Committee has performed its functions as 
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set out in its terms of reference.   

Risks and issues 

The key challenges faced by the Committee are detailed in the attached reviews. 

Assurances  

All Committees have met their terms of reference throughout the year for 2020/21. 

Recommendation/Action Required 

The Governing Body is asked to: 

• Receive the committee end of year reviews for assurance; 

• Note that a summary of the reviews is included in the annual governance statement within 
the annual report.  

Sponsor/approving director   D Chandler, Chief Officer/Chief Finance Officer 

Report author D Cornell, Head of Corporate Affairs  

Governance and Assurance 

Link to CCG corporate objectives  (please tick all that apply) 

CO1:  Develop and support system transformation and ensure a well-led organisation  

CO2:  Maintain financial control and performance  
 

CO3: Maintain and improve the quality of CCG commissioned services 
 

CO4:  Identify and deliver the CCG’s strategic priorities 
 

CO5:  Covid-19 Response and Recovery  
 

Relevant legal/statutory issues 

DH manual for accounts and NHS England and Improvement statutory reporting guidance. 

Any potential/actual conflicts 
of interest associated with the 
paper? (please tick) 

Yes  No  N/A  

If yes, please specify  

Equality analysis completed 
(please tick)  

Yes  No  N/A  

Key implications 

Are additional resources 
required?   

 
None identified as annual reviews only 

Has there been appropriate 
clinical engagement?  

Not applicable as annual reviews only 

Has there been/or does there 
need to be any patient and 
public involvement? 

 
Not applicable as annual reviews only 

Is there an expected impact on 
patient outcomes/experience?  
If yes, has a quality impact 

 
Not applicable as annual reviews only 
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assessment been undertaken? 

Has there been member 
practice and/or other 
stakeholder engagement if 
needed?   

Not applicable as annual reviews only 
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           Appendix 1 
 

 
ANNUAL REVIEW OF 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE   
 

 
In line with its terms of reference, this committee reports to the governing body and must undertake an annual 
review of its performance and provide an account of its work.  This template is aimed at assisting the chairs of 
those groups to produce a standardised report on that review.   
 

Review period 
 

1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021 

 
Number of Meetings  
  

 
12 formal meetings (4 were held in-common with NHS South 
Tyneside CCG between September and December 2020) 
 

Members Number of 
meetings eligible to 

attend: 

Number of meetings 
attended by 
members: 

Number of meetings 
deputy attended: 
(*n/a – no deputy) 

Dr Neil O'Brien Accountable 
Officer (chair) 

12 8 4 

Dr Ian Pattison, Executive GP 
and Clinical Chair  

12 11 N/A 

Dr Fadi Khalil, Executive GP 12 10 N/A 

Dr Saira Malik, Executive GP 12 11 N/A 

Dr Tracey Lucas, Executive GP 12 9 N/A 

Dr Raj Bethapudi, Executive GP 12 12 N/A 

Dr Karthik Gellia, Executive GP 12 11 N/A 

Mrs Ann Fox, Director of 
Nursing, Quality and Safety 

12 10 2 

Mr David Chandler, Chief Officer 
and Chief Finance Officer  

12 11 1 

Mr Eric Harrison, Executive 
Practice Manager  

12 8 N/A 

Mrs Florence Gunn, Strategic 
Practice Nurse (up to July 2020) 

5 4 N/A 

Mrs Joanne Hilton, Strategic 
Practice Nurse (from September 
2020) 

7 7  

The following are regular attendees to the meeting but are not members:  

Dr Claire Bradford, Medical 
Director  

12 7 N/A 

Ms Deborah Cornell, Head of 
Corporate Affairs  

12 11 N/A 

Mr Scott Watson, Director of 
Contracting and Informatics 

12 7 1 

Mrs Clare Nesbit, Director of 
People and Primary Care 

12 7 N/A 
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Mrs Gillian Gibson, Director of 
Public Health Sunderland City 
Council (until 31 August 2020) 

 
5 

 
2 

 
3 

Mrs Gerry Taylor, Executive 
Director of Public Health and 
Integrated Commissioning  
(from 1 September 2020) 

 
6 

 
1 

 
3 

 
Role and responsibilities of the committee  
 

The committee is a management committee to support the CCG, its governing body and myself, as 
chief officer, in the discharge of the CCG’s functions.  The committee assists the Governing Body in 
its duties to promote a comprehensive health service, reduce inequalities and promote innovation.   
The remit of the committee includes contributing to the development and implementation of strategy, 
monitoring and delivery of statutory duties, operational, financial, contractual and clinical performance 
as well as ensuring the coordination and monitoring of risks and internal controls.  It has authority to 
make decisions as set out within its terms of reference and the CCG’s scheme of reservation and 
delegation. 

Membership of the committee includes: 

• Accountable Officer (Chair) 

• Chief Officer/Chief Finance Officer 

• GP Clinical Chair 

• Five elected GPs (locality lead roles) 

• Executive Practice Manager (localities) 

• Strategic Practice Nurse (localities) 

• Executive Director of Nursing, Quality and Safety 
 
The following attend the committee on a regular basis but do not have a voting right. 

• Medical Director 

• Head of Corporate Affairs 

• Director of Contracting and Informatics 

• Director of People and Primary Care 

• Executive Director of Public Health, Sunderland City Council  

 
Details of main work areas 

 

Strategy and Planning: 

• Prepare the strategy and annual commissioning plan on behalf of the governing body and oversee 
delivery of the commissioning plans 

• Formulate and implement service change and development arising out of the strategy 

• Prepare and recommend to the governing body the organisational development plan and enabling 
strategies and oversee their delivery 

• Develop CCG input to the joint health and wellbeing strategy and contributing to the joint strategic 
needs assessment 

• Establish links and working arrangements with other CCGs, providers, local authority, other health 
partners, NHS England area team and the clinical senate 

• Ensure the views of patients and the public are reflected in the development and implementation 
of CCG policies and plans.  

Delivery 

• Deliver target outcomes and outputs set by the Secretary of State, NHS England and 
Improvement or other national/regional authorised bodies 
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• Manage the performance of the CCG against its financial and non-financial targets including QIPP 

• Ensure the control, co-ordination and monitoring within the organisation of risk and internal 
controls, monitoring key risks as appropriate 

• Approval of business cases and procurement contract awards in line with the financial scheme of 
delegation and approved budgets 

• Agree contracts with providers providing clinical or other services in line with the financial scheme 
of delegation 

• Leading the delivery of the CCG educational programme 

• Approval of operational policies and procedures. 

 
Main achievements and assurances 

 

The Committee met on a monthly basis throughout 2020/21 to discuss progress and development of 
the CCG’s commissioning agenda, making decisions relevant to this agenda as appropriate and 
required.  Its main focus this year was on the CCG's response to the Covid- 19 pandemic, recovery and 
the vaccination programme. The impact on outcomes for patients was the main priority as well as 
ensuring any financial implications were within the CCG’s financial budgets.  
 
The Committee continued to receive monthly reports on both finance and performance issues, key 
issues and risks and regular reports on areas such as medicines optimisation (including Area 
Prescribing Committee recommendations); governance report (covering both information governance 
and corporate governance) as well as monitoring progress against NHS England’s improvement and 
assessment framework for CCGs on behalf of the Governing Body. 

 
Some of the key items considered by the Committee included: 

• CCG Covid-19 response 

• Financial pressures and performance issues, including impact of Covid-19  

• Winter planning evaluation 

• Care home support (infection, prevention and control) 

• Continuing healthcare packages 

• Children and young people's mental health commissioning/service model redesign 

• SEND Commissioning 

• Cancer services updates  

• All Together Better assurance  

• Covid-19 recovery and vaccination programme  

• HR and workforce updates  
 
The Committee has also approved a number of policies and strategies for submission to the 
Governing Body including: 

• HR and organisational development   

• Healthcare and procurement  

• Information governance strategy and policies 

• Intellectual property management and revenue sharing policy 
 

Due to the impact of the pandemic throughout the year, the Committee did not hold separate 
development sessions in addition to formal meetings as in previous years.  Instead, the development 
sessions were combined with Governing Body development sessions to enable both Executive and 
Governing Body members to focus on key issues such as: 

• Covid-19 response and recovery 

• Process for the transfer of NHS Property Services estate to NHS Trusts 

• Next steps for All Together Better 

• Development of the strategy for adults' mental health 
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• Next phase of the Path to Excellence transformation programme  

• Sunderland Eye Infirmary update  

• Development of ICS new ways of working and place-based commissioning arrangements 
 
The Committee’s sub-groups also met on a regular basis to ensure they met their terms of reference 
as agreed by the Committee.  This included detailed reviews of their relevant work streams and 
identifying issues or actions to be addressed.  The Committee received assurance on this work via its 
sub-group minutes but also by more detailed reports by exception when required.  

 
Details of main challenges faced by the committee 

 

There were a number of key challenges faced by the Committee including: 

• CCG's Covid-19 response (both as a commissioner and an employer) 

• Operating under a level 4 national incident (command and control) 

• Recovery planning from Covid-19 

• Impact of the pandemic on performance of commissioned services 

• Financial pressures as a result of the pandemic  

• Workforce pressures as a result of the pandemic  

• Continuing healthcare packages and support for care homes during the pandemic  
 
The Committee monitored these areas closely and put mitigating actions in place wherever possible 
and in line with national requirements.  The Governing Body was provided with assurance on these 
via the Committee's minutes, detailed reports and presentations and as part of the joint informal 
development sessions.  Where risks were identified, these were added to the CCG’s risk register if 
appropriate to ensure more detailed monitoring against progress to mitigate these risks has been 
undertaken.   

 
Prospective forward look at main areas of work for the coming year (2021/22) 
 

The Committee will continue to focus on the roles and responsibilities as specified in its terms of 
reference.  There will continue to be standing agenda items, for both management and assurance 
purposes, on items such as finance, Covid-19 recovery (including addressing inequalities widened as 
a result of the pandemic) and performance of commissioned services as well as any other key areas 
of focus to support the delivery of the CCG’s key priorities for the coming year.    
 
The financial position for the CCG remains challenging for 2021/22 as a result of the pandemic and 
the Committee will continue to manage the systems and processes needed to support robust financial 
control.   
 
Another key focus of the Committee will be on the developing North East and North Cumbria 
Integrated Care System (NENC ICS) structures and establishing more collaborative ways of working 
across the Sunderland health and care economy.  This will include next steps for All Together Better 
and other provider collaboratives as well as place-based commissioning arrangements as part of the 
transition to the NENC ICS.   
 
The Committee will need to ensure these the CCG continues to meet its statutory duties and 
functions throughout the transition period as relevant to its terms of reference and until such times as 
new legislation transfers this responsibility to the new NENC ICS structure.    
 

Proposal to review Terms of 
Reference? 
  

Yes – they will need to be reviewed as part of the CCG 
closedown processes and also the developing NENC ICS 
governance arrangements.  
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Chair(s) of the Committee 
 

Dr N O'Brien, Accountable Officer   
D Chandler, Chief Officer/Chief Finance Officer  
  

 
Report Author 
 

 
D Cornell, Head of Corporate Affairs  

 
Date: 
 

 
20 April 2021 
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           Appendix 2 
 

 

 

 
ANNUAL REVIEW OF 

QUALITY AND SAFETY COMMITTEE   
 

 
In line with its terms of reference, this committee reports to the governing body and must undertake an annual 
review of its performance and provide an account of its work.  This template is aimed at assisting the chairs of 
those groups to produce a standardised report on that review.   
 

Review period 
 

1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021 

 
Number of Meetings  
  

 
8 formal meetings held virtually (5 as part of Integrated Assurance 
Committee and 3 as formal meetings) 
 

 
Members 

 

 
Number of apologies / deputies attended (see below) 
 

Number of meetings 
eligible to attend: 

Number of meetings 
actually attended by 
members: 

Number of meetings 
where deputy attended: 
(*n/a – no deputy) 

Mrs Pat Harle, Lay member for 
Primary Care and Quality, Chair  

8 8 n/a 

Mrs Ann Fox, Director of 
Nursing, Quality and Safety (vice 
chair) 

8 6 2 

Dr Neil O'Brien, Accountable 
Officer 

8 4 0 

Dr Claire Bradford, Medical 
Director  

8 6 0 

Dr Karthik Gellia, Executive GP  8 8 n/a 

Dr Saira Malik, Executive GP 3 2 n/a 

Mr Derek Cruikshank, Secondary 
Care Clinician  

8 7 n/a 

Mrs Debbie Burnicle, Lay 
Member for PPI 
(from July 2019) 

8 8 n/a 

Ms Deborah Cornell, Head of 
Corporate Affairs 

8 7 n/a 

Ms Deanna Lagun, Head of 
Safeguarding until 1 April 2020;        
Interim Director of Nursing until 1 
July 2020 when became 
Associate Director of Nursing 

8 2 n/a 

Mr Ewan Maule, Head of 
Medicines Optimisation  

8 0 0 
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Mr Matt Thubron, Head of 
Performance and Business 
Intelligence  

8 5 n/a 

Ms Kirstie Hesketh, Head of 
Quality and Patient Safety  
(Joint post with South Tyneside 
CCG) 

3 2 n/a 

 
Role and responsibilities of the committee  
 

The Committee is responsible for ensuring the appropriate governance systems and processes are in 
place to  

• Commission, monitor and ensure the delivery of high-quality safe patient care in commissioned 
services, 

• Facilitate, monitor and ensure quality improvement in general medical practice working with 
NHS England and in line with our quality strategy 

• Ensure that all systems are in place and operating effectively for the identification, assessment 
and prioritisation of potential risk in line with the CCG’s scheme of reservation and delegation 
and quality strategy. 
 

In achieving this, the committee seeks to promote a culture of continuous improvement and 
innovation with respect to safety of services, clinical effectiveness and patient experience, to secure 
public involvement and to provide assurance to the governing body about the quality, safety and any 
clinical risks of the services being commissioned.   

 
The committee, as delegated by the governing body, provides oversight and scrutiny of arrangements 
for supporting NHS England in relation to securing continuous improvement in the quality of primary 
medical services through the planning process and future primary care commissioning arrangements. 

 
Details of main work areas 

 

Quality in commissioned services: 

• Quality reports  

• External assurance for providers from regulatory bodies 

• Oversee the development of quality incentive schemes, e.g. CQUIN 

• Escalation processes 

• Collaboration with NHS England and NHS Improvement 
 

Quality in general medical practice: 

• Agreements and developing processes for the CCG member practices to improve quality of 
primary medical services in terms of clinical effectiveness, patient safety and patient 
experience in GP practices in collaboration with NHS England. 

 
Patient Safety 

• Clinical risks, incidents, serious incidents, complaints and claims 

• Scrutiny of independent investigation reports 

• Assurance on the management of infection control issues 

• Assurance in relation to medicines optimisation (including controlled drugs) 

• Assurance in relation to safeguarding duties for both children and adults. 
 

Patient experience 

• Ensure the views of patients and the public are appropriately reflected in the development and 
implementation of CCG policies and procedures 
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• Oversee the development and implementation of a structured approach to collect and use 
patient experience data (including from providers). 

 
Clinical effectiveness: 

• Promote an evidence based culture within the CCG and wider health economy 

• Take account of national guidance such as NICE  
guidance, quality standards and other relevant standards 

• Promote the use of research 
   

 
Main achievements and assurances 

 

The Committee has met eight times virtually during the year, 5 as part of the Integrated Assurance 
Committee and three times in its own right. 
 
Due to the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic, the CCG agreed a temporary governance structure 
during the period April to September 2020.  The Committee was temporarily combined with the 
Quality and Safety and Primary Care Commissioning Committees to free up clinician time to support 
the CCG's response to the pandemic. 
 
The Committee has continued to receive assurance for its key roles and responsibilities and has 
gained assurance by receiving regular reports/updates on the following: 

• CCG quality strategy 

• Safeguarding 

• Quality in commissioned services, covering performance and contractual issues that impact 
on quality including: 
➢ Infection control 
➢ Annual survey/audit results 
➢ Mortality reporting 
➢ Friends and family test results  
➢ Complaints and serious incidents 

• Quality in older persons’ commissioned services  

• Continuing health care 

• Transforming care/Learning disabilities 

• Mental health 

• Quality and safety risks  

• Medicines optimisation 

• Patient and public involvement (including compliance with the statutory guidance and project 
plans) 

• Medicines optimisation  

• Clinical assurance visits with providers 

• Proposal for a Joint Quality and Safety Committee with South Tyneside CCG including terms 
of reference 

 
The reports/updates cover key issues and any quality or patient safety issues arising as a result.  The 
reports also provide key assurances and identify risks, both actual and potential.  The Committee 
seeks assurance on mitigating actions to address these risks and ensures these are captured on the 
corporate risk register and managed in line with the CCG’s risk management arrangements.  Any 
items requiring a more detailed focus by the Committee are given additional time on the agenda to 
allow for a more in-depth discussion to address any areas of concern relating to quality and patient 
safety and to provide additional assurance on work undertaken to mitigate the risks associated with 
this.  
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The confirmed minutes from each meeting are submitted to the Governing Body to provide assurance 
on the delegated functions the committee manages on its behalf. 
 
The Committee also receives assurance from the following subgroups via receipt of regular minutes: 

• Designated and Named Professionals Assurance Group  

• HCAI Improvement Group  

• Serious Incident Panel (joint with South Tyneside CCG) 

• Local Quality Group (Primary Care Medical Services) 

• Communication and Engagement Steering Group 
 
The Committee’s sub-groups meet on a regular basis to undertake detailed reviews of their relevant 
work streams and identify any issues or actions that need to be addressed.  The outcome of this work 
is fed up to the committee via the minutes but also by any more detailed reporting by exception when 
required.  
 
In addition to the above sub-groups, the Committee receives minutes and updates for information and 
assurance from the following groups:  

• South Tyneside and Sunderland Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust Quality Review Group  

• North East Ambulance NHS Foundation Trust Quality Review Group  

• Northumberland, Tyne and Wear NHS Foundation Trust Quality Review Group 

• Cumbria and North East Quality Surveillance Group    
 
The provider quality review groups undertake the detailed operational planning and review of the 
quality of their commissioned services and also identify any areas for improvement/action and 
develop and monitor robust action plans to ensure pr.  The committee seeks assurance on 
implementation and progress of the action plans via the minutes, and any exception reporting as 
appropriate, to ensure the quality of the services the CCG commissions are safe and of a high 
standard.     

 
Details of main challenges faced by the committee 

 

The Committee has faced a number of challenges over the year and has worked with the relevant 
leads closely to ensure actions were undertaken and progress made wherever possible. These have 
included: 

• Provider quality and safety performance issues  

• Safeguarding adults and children activity 

• Delivery of statutory duties relating to continuing health care 

• Joint commissioning – nursing, residential care; learning disabilities; continuing 
healthcare and healthcare packages  

• Transforming care agenda  

• Medicines optimisation - shared care and joint formulary 

• Quality within primary medical care services   

• Childhood immunisations  

 
Prospective forward look at main areas of work for coming year (2021/22) 
 

The Committee will continue to focus on the roles and responsibilities as specified in its terms of 
reference.  There will continue to be standing items on the agenda for assurance purposes and also 
any key areas of focus will be highlighted to support the delivery of the CCG’s strategic priorities for 
the coming year, including the continued development of the Central ICP approach across Durham, 
South Tyneside and Sunderland, as well as the wider ICS, to establish more collaborative working 
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across the local health economy. 
 
However in light of the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic, the Committee will maintain focus on the 
quality and safety implications as a result of this, particularly in relation to care homes, infection 
control processes, safeguarding and the overall quality of commissioned services.  
 
Work will continue throughout 2021/22 to capture the positive transformation changes that have been 
put in place due to the pandemic as well as new ways of working to support these, alongside any 
areas that require a more in-depth focus or review.  The Committee will seek assurance on how 
quality and safety is being made throughout all of this work as well as ensuring patients in Sunderland 
continue to have a positive experience of care.  

 
Proposal to review Terms of 
Reference? 
  

 
No – this will be done as part of the CCG closedown and 
transition to the Integrated Care System structure. 

 
Chair of the Committee 
 

 
Pat Harle, Lay Member for Primary Care Commissioning and 
Quality  

 
Report Author 

 
D Cornell, Head of Corporate Affairs 

 

Date: 15 April 2021 
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           Appendix 3 
 

 

 
ANNUAL REVIEW OF THE AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE   

 
 

In line with its terms of reference, this committee reports to the governing body and must undertake an 
annual review of its performance and provide an account of its work.  This template is aimed at assisting 
the chairs of those groups to produce a standardised report on that review.   
 

Review period 
 

1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021 

 
Number of formal meetings:  
(in financial year)  

 
 4 (held virtually due to the pandemic) 

 
Attendance  
 

 
Number of apologies / deputies attended (see below) 
 

Number of formal 
meetings eligible to 
attend: 

Number of formal 
meetings actually 
attended by 
members: 

Number of meetings where 
deputy/representative  
attended (n/a - no deputy) 

Members: 

Mr Chris Macklin, Lay Member 
Audit (Chair) 

4 4 NA 

Mrs Pat Harle, Lay Member, 
Primary Care Commissioning 
and Quality  

 
4 

 
4 

 
NA 

Mr Neil Weddle, Independent 
Support (audit)  

4 4 NA 

 

Mr David Chandler, Chief 
Officer/Chief Finance Officer 

4 4 NA 

Mr Cameron Waddell, Partner 
Mazars 

4 4 NA 

Ms Diane Harold, Senior 
Manager, Mazars 

4 4 NA 

Mr Carl Best, Director of 
Internal Audit, AuditOne 

4 3 1 

Ms Alyson Williams, Internal 
Audit manager, AuditOne 

4 4 NA 

Ms Deborah Cornell, Head of 
Corporate Affairs  

4 4 NA 

Mrs Tarryn Lake, Associate 
Director of Finance   

4 4 NA 

Martyn Tait, Counter Fraud 
Specialist  

4 3 1 

 
Roles and responsibilities of the committee  
 

An independent Audit and Risk Committee is a central means by which the Governing Body 
obtains assurance that suitable internal control arrangements are in place and are operating 
effectively. The Audit and Risk Committee provides an independent check of the executive 
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functions of the Governing Body. In accordance with the Prime Financial Policies, the Governing 
Body shall formally establish an Audit and Risk Committee, with clearly defined terms of reference 
and following guidance from the NHS Audit Committee Handbook (2018) to perform the following 
tasks 
 
The Committee is a non-executive committee of the Governing Body as it has no executive 
powers, other than those specifically delegated to it and as set out in its terms of reference. 
 
The Committee has met its terms of reference throughout the year for 2020/21.  

 
Details of main work areas 
 

The Committee critically reviews the CCG’s financial reporting and internal control principles and 
ensures an appropriate relationship with both internal and external auditors is maintained. The 
main work areas of the committee are as follows: 
 
Governance, Risk Management and Internal Control 

• Review the establishment and maintenance of an effective system of integrated governance, 
risk management and internal control, across the whole of the organisation’s activities (both 
clinical and non-clinical), that supports the achievement of the organisation’s objectives 

• Utilise the work of internal audit, external audit and other assurance functions, but is not 
limited to these sources.  It also seeks reports and assurances from directors and managers 
as appropriate, concentrating on the over-arching systems of integrated governance, risk 
management and internal control, together with indicators of their effectiveness 

• Ensure the adequacy and effectiveness of the governing body assurance framework, using it 
to guide its work and that of audit and assurance functions that report to it 

• Scrutinise the processes of the CCG’s QIPP/resource releasing initiative programme linked 
to financial resources 

• Ensure robust controls are in place to actively manage conflicts of interest including 
hospitality and gifts 

• Ensure adequate arrangements are in place for countering fraud and reviews the outcomes 
of counter fraud work and instigate investigation should the committee become aware of 
suspected fraudulent activity. 

 
Internal Audit 

• Ensure an effective internal audit function is in place that meets mandatory NHS Internal 
Audit Standards and provides appropriate independent assurance to the audit committee, 
accountable officer and the governing body 

• Consider the provision of the internal audit service, the cost of the audit and any questions of 
resignation and dismissal 

• Review and approve the internal audit strategy, operational plan and detailed programme of 
work 

• Consider the major findings of internal audit work (and management’s response), and seeks 
to ensure co-ordination between internal and external auditors to optimise audit resources 

• Ensure that the internal audit function is adequately resourced and has appropriate standing 
within the organisation. 

 
External Audit 

• Review the work and findings of the external auditors and considers the implications and 
management’s responses to their work 

• Consider the appointment and performance of the external auditors, as far as the rules 
governing the appointment permit 

• Discuss and agree the nature and scope of the external audit annual plan  
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• Review external audit reports, including the report to those charged with governance, agrees 
the annual audit letter before submission to the governing body and any work undertaken 
outside the annual audit plan, together with the appropriateness of management responses. 

 
Other Assurance Functions 

• Review the findings of other significant assurance functions, both internal and external to the 
organisation, and considers the implications for the governance of the organisation 

• Review the work of other committees whose work can provide relevant assurance to the 
committee’s own scope of work. 

 
Financial Reporting 

• Monitor the integrity of the financial statements of the CCG and any formal announcements 
relating to the CCG’s financial performance 

• Ensure that the systems for financial reporting to the Governing Body, including those of 
budgetary control, are subject to review as to completeness and accuracy of the information 
provided to the governing body 

• Review the annual report and financial statements before submission to the Governing 
Body.  

 

Auditor Panel 

• Advise on the maintenance of an independent relationship with external auditors 

• Advise on the selection and appointment of external auditors 

• Advise on any proposal to enter into a limited liability agreement (if required). 
 
To ensure the activities of the Auditor Panel are distinctive to the other activities of the committee, 
the auditor panel meetings are arranged separately as required and the minutes of meetings are 
formally recorded and submitted to the Governing Body.  In addition the panel is required to 
provide a separate annual report to the Governing Body on its activities and decisions. 

 
Main achievements and assurances 

The Committee has continued to receive assurance for its key roles and responsibilities and has 
gained assurance by receiving regular reports/updates on the following: 

• Governing Body assurance framework  

• Corporate risk register  

• Annual governance statement   

• Annual report and accounts review and recommendation to the Governing Body 

• Financial updates (including schedules of losses and special payments) 

• Implications/risks of the financial framework 2020/21 

• All Together Better financial framework  

• Sustainability Delivery Group   

• Scheme of reservation and delegation  

• Overview of tender waivers 

• Register of interests 

• Internal audit strategy and progress reports, including an annual review  

• External audit progress and completion reports, including VFM arrangements  

• Counter fraud annual plan and updates 

• NHS Counter Fraud Authority self-assessment submission  

• Management processes and arrangements 

• CCG governance during Covid-19 
 
The Audit Chair attends NHS England Audit Chair briefings and is an active member of a North 
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East Audit Chair group whose membership is open to all providers and CCG’s across the North 
East.  The Audit Chair is also the sole CCG representative on the HFMA Audit and Governance 
Committee. 
 
Informal meetings have been held with the internal auditor, the counter fraud lead and the 
external auditors to ensure any issues of concern can be discussed. No matters were raised in 
these meetings. 
 
The Committee also reviewed the CCG’s financial management arrangements (FMAs) which 
support the prime financial policies as part of the CCG’s constitution.   
Risk management reports, including as part of the Governing Body assurance have also been 
received on a regular basis.  The committee has sought assurance on mitigating actions to 
address these risks and ensures these are captured on the corporate risk register.   
 
Any identified actions are noted on the committee action log which is updated after each formal 
meeting and identifies an appropriate lead and timescale to ensure any necessary actions are 
taken as required by the committee. 
 
Auditor Panel Annual Report  

The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 requires CCGs to ensure there is sufficient scrutiny 
and oversight of the CCG’s relationship with its external auditors by having an auditor panel, 
chaired by an independent member who is not part of the management structure, such as a lay 
member of the Governing Body. 
 
In order to meet these requirements, the committee performs the role of the Auditor Panel for the 
CCG. The chair and members of the committee will also be the chair and members of the Auditor 
Panel.   

 
To ensure the activities of the Auditor Panel are distinctive to the other activities of the committee, 
separate meetings are arranged when required and the minutes of the meetings formally 
recorded and submitted to the Governing Body for assurance.   During the year, the Auditor Panel 
has met once to discuss and confirm the arrangements to the arrangements for external audit 
services.  The existing contract held with Mazars LLP was due to expire on 31 March 2021and 
the Panel considered the following options: 

• Procurement of a new provider 

• Direct award to a new provider 

• Extension of current contract with Mazars LLP  
 
The Panel discussed these options in detail and recommended extension of the current contract 
with Mazars LLP for the period 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022 to the Governing Body. 
Challenges throughout the year 
 

Some key challenges the Committee faced in 2020/21 have included: 

• Financial framework for 2020/21 (impact of Covid-19) 

• Increased risks (due to the impact of Covid-19)  

• Forecast overspends   

• Sustainability Delivery Group – delivery of cost improvement schemes  

Prospective forward look at main areas of work for coming year (2021/22) 
 

The Committee will continue to focus on the roles and responsibilities as specified in its terms of 
reference.  There will continue to be standing items on the agenda for assurance purposes and 
also any key areas of focus will be highlighted. The financial position for the CCG remains 
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challenging for 2021/22 in the light of the Covid-19 pandemic and a continued emphasis on good 
systems and processes to support robust financial control and governance will be critical.  The 
Committee will keep a continued focus on the governance arrangements around the Covid-19 
recovery planning and implementation.   
 
Another key focus of the Committee will be on the developing ICS structures.  This will be to 
ensure due diligence is undertaken in relation to the closedown of the CCG as well as ensuring 
robust governance arrangements are put in place in the developing ICS governance framework.  
The Committee will need to ensure these the CCG continues to meet its statutory duties and 
functions throughout the transition period and until such times as new legislation transfers this 
responsibility to the new ICS structure.    

 
 
Terms of reference review 
  

 
 
These were reviewed at the meeting held on 19 January and 
no changes were recommended. 
 

 
Chair of the Committee 
 

 
Chris Macklin, Lay Member for Audit and Governing Body 
Vice Chair   

 
Report author: 
 

 
Deborah Cornell, Head of Corporate Affairs  

 
Date: 

 
26 March 2021 
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           Appendix 4 
   
 
 

 
ANNUAL REVIEW OF 

PRIMARY CARE COMMISSIONING COMMITTEE  
 

 
In line with its terms of reference, this committee reports to the governing body and must undertake an annual 
review of its performance and provide an account of its work.  This template is aimed at assisting the chairs of 
those groups to produce a standardised report on that review.   
 

 
Review period 
 

 
1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021 

 
Number of Meetings  
  

 
8 formal meetings held virtually (5 as part of Integrated Assurance 
Committee and 3 as formal meetings) 

 
Members 

 

 
Number of apologies / deputies attended (see below) 
 

Number of meetings 
eligible to attend: 

Number of meetings 
attended by members: 

Number of meetings 
where deputy attended: 
(*n/a – no deputy) 

Mrs Pat Harle, Lay Member 
Primary Care Commissioning 
Chair  

8 8 n/a 

Mrs Debbie Burnicle, Lay 
Member Patient and Public 
Involvement 

8 7 n/a 

Dr Neil O'Brien Accountable 
Officer 

8 0 8 

Dr Karthik Gellia, GP Executive   8 8 n/a 

Dr Geoff Stephenson, Primary 
Care Advisor 

8 8 n/a 

Dr Ian Pattison, Clinical Chair 8 8 n/a 

Mr David Chandler, Chief Officer 
and Chief Finance Officer 

8 7 1 

Mrs Ann Fox, Director of 
Nursing, Quality and Safety  

8 8 n/a 

Mrs Clare Nesbit, Director of 
People and Primary Care 

8 7 1 

Ms Wendy Thompson, Head of 
Primary Care  

8 6 2 

Ms Deborah Cornell, Head of 
Corporate Affairs 

8 7 n/a 

NHS England primary care 
contracting representative 

3 2 n/a 

*Mr John Dean, Chair of 
Healthwatch 

3 3 n/a 
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*Mrs Fiona Brown, Director of 
People Services, Sunderland 
City Council 

3 1 1 

*These members are invited to attend but do so as and when required 

 
Role and responsibilities of the Committee  
 

The Committee, established in accordance with statutory provisions, makes collective decisions on 
the review, planning and procurement of primary medical care services in Sunderland, under 
delegated authority from NHS England. The role of the Committee is to carry out the functions relating 
to the commissioning of primary medical care services under section 83 of the NHS Act. 

In performing its role, the Committee will exercise its management of the functions in accordance with 
the agreement entered into between NHS England and the CCG, which will sit alongside the 
delegation and terms of reference. 

The functions of the Committee are undertaken with a view to increasing the quality, efficiency, 
productivity and value for money within co-commissioning as well as removing any potential 
administrative barriers.  

 
Details of main work areas 

 

The main areas of work for the Committee include: 

• GMS, PMS and APMS contracts (including the design of PMS and APMS contracts, 
monitoring of contracts, taking contractual action such as issuing branch/remedial notices, 
and removing a contract) 

• Newly designed enhanced services (‘local enhanced services’ and ‘directed enhanced 
services’) 

• Design of local incentive schemes as an alternative to the Quality Outcomes Framework 
(QOF) 

• Decision making on whether to establish new GP practices in an area 

• Approving practice mergers; and 

• Making decisions on ‘discretionary’ payment (e.g., returner/retainer schemes). 
 

The Committee also carries out the following activities under delegated authority from the Governing 
Body: 

• Planning, including needs assessment, of primary medical care services in Sunderland 

• Undertaking reviews of primary medical care services in Sunderland 

• Co-ordinating a common approach to the commissioning of primary care services 
generally 

• Managing the budget for commissioning of primary medical care services in Sunderland. 
 

 
Main achievements and assurances 

 

Due to the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic, the CCG agreed a temporary governance structure 
during the period April to September 2020.  The Committee was temporarily combined with the 
Quality and Safety and Primary Care Commissioning Committees to free up clinician time to support 
the CCG's response to the pandemic. 
 
The Committee has met seven times virtually during the year, five as part of the Integrated Assurance 
Committee and three in its own right to ensure continued effective management of the primary 
medical care commissioning function.  
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The Committee has continued to make decisions (where appropriate) and receive assurance for its 
key roles and responsibilities by receiving regular reports/updates on the following: 

• Financial updates on the management of the delegated general practice budgets 

• Primary Care response to Covid 19 pandemic and regular vaccination programme updates 

• Practice and branch mergers, boundary changes, expansion business cases and list closures 

• GP Practice contract performance concerns 

• Update General Practice Forward View initiatives 

• General Practice Strategy implementation updates 

• Primary care estates subsidiaries 

• General practice transformation funding 

• GP Patient Survey results 

• Internal audit reports 

• GP contract reform  

• General Practice Quality Premium Proposal for 2019/20 

• General practice quality and GP retention scheme 

• An evaluation of the GP Career Start scheme 
 
The reports/updates cover key issues and any risks and or issues arising as a result.  The reports 
also provide key assurances and identify risks, both actual and potential.  The Committee seeks 
assurance on mitigating actions to address these risks and ensures these are captured on the 
corporate risk register and managed in line with the CCG’s risk management arrangements.  Any 
items requiring a more detailed focus by the Committee are given additional time on the agenda to 
allow for a more in-depth discussion to address any areas of concern relating to primary care to 
provide additional assurance on work undertaken to mitigate the risks associated with this.  
 
The confirmed minutes from each meeting are submitted to the Governing Body to provide assurance 
on the delegated functions the Committee manages on its behalf. 
 
The Committee also receives assurance from the following subgroups via receipt of regular minutes: 

• General Practice Workforce Steering Group  

• Primary Medical Care Local Quality Review Group  
 

 
Details of key issues faced by the Committee 

 

Some of the key issues faced by the committee in 2020/21 have included: 

• The impact on general practice in relation to the Covid- 19 pandemic 

• Continued management of conflicts of interest 

• GP recruitment and retention  

• Quality issues in primary care 

• Underspend on delegated general practice budgets  

• NHS Property Services increase in charges for practices   

• Practice mergers and contractual changes  
 

 
Prospective forward look at main areas of work for coming year (2021/22) 
 

The Committee will continue to focus on the roles and responsibilities as specified in its terms of 
reference.  There will be standing items on the agenda for assurance purposes, such as the primary 
care finance report, Covid-19 recovery and the impact on general practice as part of All Together 
Better, along with any key areas of focus for primary care to ensure the Committee can provide robust 
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assurance to the Governing Body on its delegated functions.    
 
The Committee will continue to focus on the supporting the delivery of the CCG’s strategic priorities, 
plans and key deliverables as well harnessing the positive transformation changes that have been put 
in place due to the pandemic.  The Committee will seek assurance on these areas of work to ensure 
patients in Sunderland continue have a positive experience of general practice and services. 
 
Another key focus of the Committee will be on the developing North East and North Cumbria 
Integrated Care System (NENC ICS) structures and the establishment of more collaborative ways of 
working at across the Sunderland health and care economy.  This will include next steps for primary 
care networks, All Together Better and other provider collaboratives as well as place-based 
commissioning arrangements as part of the transition to the NENC ICS.   
 
The Committee will need to ensure these the CCG continues to meet its statutory duties and 
functions throughout the transition period as relevant to its terms of reference and until such times as 
new legislation transfers this responsibility to the new NENC ICS structure.    

 
Proposal to review terms of 
reference? 
 

       
No 

 
Chair of the Committee 
 

 
P Harle, Lay Member for Primary Care Commissioning and 
Quality 
 

Report Author J Thwaites, Governance Officer 
D Cornell, Head of Corporate Affairs 
 

Date: 
 

 25 April 2021 
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           Appendix 5 
 
 
 

 
ANNUAL REVIEW OF 

PATIENT AND PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT COMMITTEE  
 

 
In line with its terms of reference, this committee reports to the governing body and must 
undertake an annual review of its performance and provide an account of its work.  This 
template is aimed at assisting the chairs of those groups to produce a standardised report on 
that review.   
 

 
Review period 
 

 
1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021 

 
Number of Meetings  
  

 
8 formal meetings held virtually (4 of which were as part of 
Integrated Assurance Committee) 
 

 
Members 

 

 
Number of apologies / deputies attended (see below) 
 

Number of 
meetings eligible 
to attend: 

Number of 
meetings attended 
by members: 

Number of meetings 
where deputy 
attended: 
(*n/a – no deputy) 

Mrs Debbie Burnicle 
Lay Member for PPI (chair) 

8 8 0 

Dr Ian Pattison,  
CCG Clinical Chair 

8 4 n/a 

Ms Deborah Cornell,  
Head of Corporate Affairs South 
Tyneside and Sunderland CCGs 

8 7 n/a 

Dr Fadi Khalil 
Executive GP 

8 5 n/a 

Mrs Ann Fox 
Executive Director of Nursing, 
Quality and Safety 

8 7 0 

Miss Anisah Sharmeen 
Engagement Officer 

4 4 n/a 

Ms Lisa Anderson 
Involvement and Engagement 
Lead, South Tyneside and 
Sunderland CCGs 

4 4 n/a 

Ms. Amanda Brown 
Chief Executive Officer, 
Sunderland Carers Centre 

4 4 n/a 
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Ms. Anna Gillingham,  
Healthwatch representative  
 

4 4 n/a 

Mrs. Wendy Thompson 
Head of Primary Care, SCCG 
 

8 4 1 

Ms. Liz Davies 
Director of Communications, 
South Tyneside and Sunderland 
Foundation Trust 

4 3 0 

 
Role and responsibilities of the committee  
 
 The Patient and Public Involvement Committee has been established as a sub- committee of the 

Governing Body.  A summary of the Committee's responsibilities are as follows 

Statutory duties 

• Ensure patients and the public are involved, in accordance with the CCG’s statutory duties in 
relation to patient and public involvement 

• Ensure arrangements are in place to secure public involvement in the planning, development and 

consideration of proposals for changes and decisions affecting the operation of commissioning 

arrangements  

• Hold the CCG to account to ensure that all involvement activity is transparent and that value for 

money for the taxpayer is achieved 

• Oversee the production of the annual report on involvement  

• Oversee development and delivery of the CCG’s Involvement Strategy, providing assurance to 

the Governing Body  

• Seek assurance that the CCG’s Involvement Strategy is accessible to all members of the public 

and voluntary and community organisations in Sunderland and that every effort is made to 

access and involve seldom heard groups 

Systems and process 

• Review and scrutinise the CCG’s involvement processes to ensure they are in line with CCG 

values and cover all geographical localities across the CCG as appropriate 

• Review, challenge and evaluate the CCG’s involvement processes 

• Ensure that systems and processes are in place to listen to the voice of patients and the public 

and ensure actions are taken, learning from experience and that they are taken into account and 

feedback is given to the relevant audience(s).  

Partnerships 

• Be a two-way communication channel between patients, public, carers, member practices and 

CCG management/support teams to ensure that ideas and concerns can be communicated and 

actioned as appropriate 

• Contribute to plans for partnership working across the region, in particular linking with the City-

wide Strategic Involvement Partnership for Sunderland. 

 
Details of main work areas 

 
The principle functions of the Committee are to: 

• Champion robust and meaningful patient and public involvement underpinned by principles of 
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equality and inclusion 

• Oversee involvement activities to provide assurance to the Governing Body that the CCG is 

fulfilling its statutory duties and legal requirements with regards to involvement  

• Monitor and review the CCG’s fulfilment of its duties to inform and consult as set out in the 
NHS Constitution and the Health and Social Act 2012. 

• Seek assurance that the CCG is meeting the requirements for commissioners as set out in the 

Equality Act 2010 

• Work with the Quality and Safety Committee to provide assurance to the Governing Body that 

providers are fulfilling their statutory duties with regards to involvement. 

 
Main achievements and assurances 

 
Due to the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic, the CCG agreed a temporary governance structure 
during the period April to September 2020.  The Committee was temporarily combined with the 
Quality and Safety and Primary Care Commissioning Committees to free up clinician time to support 
the CCG's response to the pandemic. 
 
The Committee has met eight times virtually during the year, 4 as part of the Integrated Assurance 
Committee and four times in its own right.  
 
The Committee has ensure it has met its terms of reference throughout the year and continued to 
receive assurance for its key roles and responsibilities.  It has gained assurance by receiving regular 
reports/ updates on the following: 

• Involvement and engagement reports and action plans 

• Communications highlight reports 

• Engagement with VCSOs in Sunderland  

• Path to Excellence position statements 

• Development of the CCG's involvement strategy 

• Primary Care Networks communication and engagement plans 

• All Together Better engagement updates 

• Healthwatch team reports 

• Patient stories and the supporting process 

• Sunderland Involvement Partnership updates 

• CYP Mental Health Service model re-design 

• Reviewing the CCG's self-assessment against the NHS Oversight Framework  

 
Details of key issues faced by the Committee 

 
Some key challenges the Committee faced in 2020/21 have included: 

• Undertaking its roles and responsibilities both as a newly established Committee and as part 
of the temporary governance arrangements  

• Ensuring the CCG maintained good levels of engagement and involvement with patients and 
the public during first and second waves of the pandemic 

• Ensuring the CCG continued to meet its statutory duties as a result  

• Service user and carer involvement for the mental health strategy research  

• Ensuring the CCG captured the learning from Covid and utilised the benefits of having to work 
in different ways, particularly in relation to General Practice. 

 
Prospective forward look at main areas of work for coming year (2021/22) 
 



Official 

26 

 

The Committee will continue to focus on the roles and responsibilities as specified in its terms of 
reference.  There will be standing items on the agenda for assurance purposes, such as the 
involvement and engagement update reports, communications and patient stories. 
 
All Together Better, along with any key areas of focus for primary care to ensure the Committee can 
provide robust assurance to the Governing Body on its delegated functions.    
 
The Committee will continue to focus on the supporting the delivery of the CCG’s strategic priorities, 
plans and key deliverables as well harnessing the positive transformation changes that have been put 
in place due to the pandemic and ensure the patient voice is reflected in all of this work.  The 
Committee will seek assurance on these areas of work to ensure patients and the public in 
Sunderland continue play an important part in the commissioning of services. 
 
Another key focus of the Committee will be on the developing North East and North Cumbria 
Integrated Care System (NENC ICS) structures and the establishment of more collaborative ways of 
working at across the Sunderland health and care economy.  This will include next steps for primary 
care networks, All Together Better and provider collaboratives, the Path to Excellence programme 
and place-based commissioning arrangements to ensure the views of patients and the public are built 
into these developments, taken into account and acted upon.   
 
The Committee will need to ensure these the CCG continues to meet its statutory duties and 
functions throughout the transition period as relevant to its terms of reference and until such times as 
new legislation transfers this responsibility to the new NENC ICS structure. 

 
Proposal to review terms of 
Reference 
 

       
No – this will be undertaken as part of the CCG closedown 
and transition arrangements  

 
Chair of the Committee 
 

 
D Burnicle, Lay Member for PPI 
 

 
Report Author 

 
D Cornell 
Head of Corporate Affairs 
 

 
Date: 
 

 
 29 April 2021 

 


	00P_Statutory_Accounts_Template_2020-21_M12 v11-POST_DRAFT-contents
	00P_Statutory_Accounts_Template_2020-21_M12 v11-POST_DRAFT-main_pages

